
 
Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Tuesday, September 8, 2020 at 1:00 PM
Valley Sanitary District Board Room

45-500 Van Buren Street, Indio, CA 92201

 

 

 *****SPECIAL NOTICE – Telephonic Accessibility*****

 
Pursuant to Paragraph 11 of Executive Order N-25-20, executed by the Governor of California on March 12, 
2020, as a response to mitigating the spread of coronavirus known as COVID-19, during the September 8, 
2020, regular meeting of Valley Sanitary District Board of Directors members of the public will be allowed 
to attend and address the Board of Directors during the open session of the meeting telephonically.

 
Members of the public wanting to listen to the open session of the meeting may do so by calling (425) 436-
6376 and when prompted, enter access code 166514. Members of the public wanting to address the 
Board, either during public comment or for a specific agenda item, or both, are requested to send an 
email notification no later than 12:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting to the Valley Sanitary District’s Clerk 
of the Board at hgould@valley-sanitary.org.

 

 

Page

1. CALL TO ORDER

1.1. Roll Call

1.2. Pledge of Allegiance 

1.3. September Employee Anniversaries
 - Scott Graham, Operator II - 30 years
 - Marin Gutierrez, Collection Tech I - 1 year

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

Page 1 of 85



This is the time set aside for public comment on any item not appearing on the 
agenda. Please notify the Secretary in advance of the meeting if you wish to speak 
on a non-hearing item.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR
Consent calendar items are expected to be routine and noncontroversial, to be 
acted upon by the Board of Directors at one time, without discussion. If any Board 
member requests that an item be removed from the consent calendar, it will be 
removed so that it may be acted upon separately.

3.1. Approve August 25, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes

3.1 Aug 25 2020 Meeting Minutes.pdf

4 - 7

3.2. Approve Warrants for August 20 to September 2, 2020

3.2 Warrants for Aug 20 to Sep 2, 2020.pdf

8

4. NON-HEARING ITEMS

4.1. Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Contract with 
Desert Arc for Janitorial Services in an Amount Not to Exceed 
$50,000 for a 12-month Period

4.1 Staff Report Desert ARC Janitorial Contract.pdf

4.1 Attachment A Desert Arc_Valley Sanitary District VSD.pdf

4.1 Attachment B VSD Janitorial Services RFP July 1 2020.pdf

4.1 Attachment C 2019 Staffing Analysis.pdf

9 - 41

4.2. Award a Contract to Desert Concepts Construction, Inc. in the 
Amount of $40,425 for the Cabazon Road Stabilization Project

4.2 Staff Report Slope Protection Project Award.pdf

4.2 Attachment A Desert Concepts Bid Package.pdf

4.2 Attachment B Contractors License Detail.pdf

4.2 Attachment C DIR Number Information.pdf

42 - 64

4.3. Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Contract with 
Harris & Associates in an Amount Not to Exceed $47,400 for 
Inspection Services for the Indio Boulevard Rehabilitation 
Project

65 - 70

Page 2 of 85



4.3 Staff Report Award of Contract Harris Inspection.pdf

4.3 Attachment A Proposal Inspection Services Indio Sewer 

lining_07312020.pdf

5. GENERAL MANAGER'S ITEMS
General Manager's items not listed are for discussion only; no action will be taken 
without an urgency vote pursuant to State law.

5.1. Monthly General Manager's Report - July

5.1 Staff Report General Manager Monthly Report July 2020.pdf

5.1 Attachment A Admin Services Report July 2020.pdf

5.1 Attachment B NPDES Report July 2020.pdf

5.1 Attachment C Development Services July.pdf

5.1 Attachment D Collection Services Report July.pdf

71 - 83

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS

6.1. Budget & Finance Committee - Draft September 1, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes

6.1 1 Sep 2020 Committee Meeting Minutes.pdf

84 - 85

7. DIRECTOR'S ITEMS
Director’s items not listed are for discussion only; no action will be taken without an 
urgency vote pursuant to State law.

8. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
September 19, 2020 is National Cleanup Day. Started by a couple of hikers, this day, 
in coordination with Keep America Beautiful and Earth Day Network, are 
encouraging grassroots organizations and communities to clean up local green 
spaces, urban landscapes, and waterways across the U.S. In 2019, more than 2 
million volunteers participated in this event. Imagine what could happen if everyone 
picked up at least on piece of trash on this day. www.nationalcleanupday.org 

9. ADJOURNMENT

Pursuant to the Brown Act, items may not be added to this agenda unless the Secretary to the 
Board has at least 72 hours advance notice prior to the time and date posted on this notice.

Page 3 of 85



UNOFFICAL UNTIL APPROVED 
                                                

  VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

August 25, 2020 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

*****SPECIAL NOTICE – Telephonic Accessibility***** 
Pursuant to Paragraph 11 of Executive Order N-25-20, executed by the Governor of California on March 
12, 2020, as a response to mitigating the spread of coronavirus known as COVID-19, during the August 
25, 2020 regular meeting of Valley Sanitary District Board of Directors, members of the public will be 
allowed to attend and address the Board of Directors during the open session of the meeting 
telephonically. 
 
Members of the public wanting to listen to the open session of the meeting were able to do so by 
calling (425) 436-6376 and when prompted, enter access code 166514.  Members of the public 
wanting to address the Board, either during public comment or for a specific agenda item, or both, were 
requested to send an email notification no later than 12:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting to the Valley 
Sanitary District’s Clerk of the Board at hgould@valley-sanitary.org. 

 
A regular Board Meeting of the Governing Board of Valley Sanitary District (VSD) was 
held at the District offices, 45-500 Van Buren Street, Indio, California, on Tuesday, 
August 25, 2020. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
President Duran called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.   

 
1.1 Roll Call   
 

  Directors Present:  
 Debra Canero (via telephone), Dennis Coleman (via telephone), Mike Duran (via 

telephone), Scott Sear, William Teague 
  

Staff Present:   
Beverli Marshall, General Manager, Holly Gould 
Via Telephone: Ron Buchwald, Jeanette Juarez, Robert Hargreaves, Best Best & 
Krieger 

 
1.2 Pledge of Allegiance 
   
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This is the time set aside for public comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  
Please notify the Secretary in advance of the meeting if you wish to speak on a non-
hearing item. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
None. 
 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
3.1 Approve August 11, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
3.2 Approve Warrants for August 6 to August 19, 2020 
 

Page 4 of 85

mailto:hgould@valley-sanitary.org


____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes August 25, 2020                                      2                            Approved:  

3.3 Accept Monthly Financial Report for Period Ending July 31, 2020 
 
3.4 Accept Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending June 30, 2020 
______________________________________________________________________ 
ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION:  Director Coleman a motion to approve the consent calendar as  
   presented. Director Teague seconded the motion. Motion   
   carried unanimously. 

 MINUTE ORDER NO.  2020-3032 
 
4. NON-HEARING ITEMS 
 
4.1 Authorize the Purchase of a 25hp Floating Brush Aerator from ECS House 

Industries in an Amount Not to Exceed $40,425 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Staff recommends replacing one S&N Airflo aerator with a new 25hp floating brush 
aerator from ECS House Industries for a total cost of $40,425. This is a sole source 
procurement and is included in the fiscal year 2020/21 budget. 
 
ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION:  Secretary Canero made a motion to authorize the General Manager 
   to purchase one 25hp floating brush aerator from ECS House  
   Industries for a total cost of $40,425. Director Coleman seconded  
   the motion. Motion carried by the following roll call vote: 
   AYES: Canero, Coleman, Duran, Sear, Teague 
   NOES: None 

 MINUTE ORDER NO.  2020-3033 
 
4.2 Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Contract with NBS for Services 

Related to a Sewer Rate Study in an Amount Not to Exceed $49,000 
___________________________________________________________________ 
As part of the strategic planning process, the Board expressed a desire for an updated 
analysis that takes into consideration the Reclaimed Water project as well as operations 
and maintenance needs. The Board included $50,000 in the adopted budget to 
complete this task. Staff published Request for Proposals on July 1, 2020 and sent it out 
to eight firms, with a deadline for submission of August 3. The District received a total of 
seven proposals from firms that have experience in performing rate analysis. A review 
committee was established consisting of the General Manager, Engineering Services 
Manager, Business Services Manager, and the Assistant Engineer. The committee 
concluded that NBS was the firm best suited to perform the tasks identified in the RFP. 
 
ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION:  Director Coleman made a motion to authorize the General Manager 
   to execute a contract with NBS to perform a rate study and assist  
   with the public hearing process in an amount not to exceed   
   $48,435. Director Teague seconded the motion. Motion carried by  
   the following roll call vote: 
   AYES: Canero, Coleman, Duran, Sear, Teague 
   NOES: None 
   MINUTE ORDER NO.  2020-3034 

Page 5 of 85



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes August 25, 2020                                      3                            Approved:  

 
 
4.3 Establish a Standing Budget & Finance Committee, Set Time and Place for the 

Meetings, and Appoint Directors to the Committee 
______________________________________________________________________ 
As a mechanism to enhance public and Board education on District finances, staff 
believes that a Budget & Finance Committee should be established and charged with 
discussing the O&M budget, CIP, audit, reserve policies, investments, and other 
financial issues. As a standing committee, it would be subject to the Brown Act. Staff 
suggests that the committee meet every other month on the first Tuesday of January, 
March, May, July, September, and November at 1:00 p.m. If approved, the first meeting 
will be Tuesday, September 1 at 1:00 p.m.  President Duran appointed Vice President 
Scott Sear and Director Dennis Coleman to serve on this committee. 
 
ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION:  Secretary Canero made a motion to establish the Budget & Finance 
   Committee, set the meeting time as the first Tuesday of January,  
   March, May, July, September, and November at 1:00 p.m., and  
   appoint directors to the committee. Director Teague seconded the  
   motion. Motion carried by the following roll call vote: 
   AYES: Canero, Coleman, Duran, Sear, Teague 
   NOES: None 
   MINUTE ORDER NO.  2020-3035 
 
4.4 Adopt a Resolution Amending Bylaws to Reinstate and Appoint Member of the 

Board of Directors as Treasurer to Perform the Duties Required by California 
Health & Safety Code Section 6801 

______________________________________________________________________ 
On December 11, 2018, the Board adopted Resolution 2018-1109, updating the 
District’s bylaws and rules of procedures, eliminating the position of Treasurer. Under 
California Health and Safety Code, Section 6801, a Board must “appoint a treasurer 
who shall be responsible for the deposit and withdrawal of the district funds.” To comply 
with this requirement, the Board needs to modify its bylaws to include the Treasurer 
position, which can be combined with the Secretary like it was previously or separately. 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-1136 amending its Bylaws 
and Rules of Procedure to reinstate the Treasurer position and appoint a member of the 
Board of Directors as Treasurer to perform the duties required by California Health & 
Safety Code Section 6801. President Duran appointed Secretary Debra Canero to the 
position of Secretary/ Treasurer. 
 
“A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VALLEY SANITARY 
DISTRICT AMENDING BYLAWS AND RULES OF PROCEDURE FIR THE CONDUCT 
OF BOARD BUSINESS” 
 
ACTION TAKEN: 
MOTION:  Director Teague made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2020-1136 
   amending its Bylaws and Rules of Procedure to reinstate the  
   Treasurer position and appoint a member of the Board of Directors  
   as Treasurer to perform the duties required by California Health &  

Page 6 of 85



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Board Minutes August 25, 2020                                      4                            Approved:  

   Safety Code Section 6801. Director Coleman seconded the   
   motion. Motion carried by the following roll call vote: 
   AYES: Canero, Coleman, Duran, Sear, Teague 
   NOES: None 
   RESOLUTION NO.  2020-1136 
 
 
5. GENERAL MANAGER’S ITEMS 
General Manager’s items not listed are for discussion only; no action will be taken 
without an urgency vote pursuant to State law. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Ms. Marshall informed the Board that she is President Elect of the Indio Sunrise Rotary 
and will take office July 2020. 
 
6. DIRECTOR’S ITEMS 
Director’s items not listed are for discussion only; no action will be taken without an 
urgency vote pursuant to State law 
______________________________________________________________________ 
None. 
 
7. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
7.1 August 26, 2020, is recognized as National Toilet Paper Day. The first toilet paper 

sold on a roll was August 26, 1871. The average person in the US household 
flushes 80,000 sheets each year. 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 1:58 p.m. The 
next regular board meeting will be held September 8, 2020. 

 
 
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
        Holly Gould, Clerk of the Board 
        Valley Sanitary District 

Page 7 of 85



38537 Western Water Works Pumps and Valves for Plant $2,376.19
38538 Alliance Protection Fire Alarm Monitoring Services 09/2020 - 11/2020 $366.00
38539 Analytical Technology, Inc. Air Pump Replacement Kit $236.90
38540 Carollo Engineering, Inc *Professional Services from 07/01/2020-07/31/2020 $7,898.00
38541 Cintas Corp Uniforms, Mats, Towels, Etc for Week of 08/20/2020 $631.87
38541 Cintas Corp Uniforms, Mats, Towels, Etc for Week of 08/27/2020 $601.05
38542 Consolidated Electrical Distributors, Inc. RK5 TD Fuse $82.00
38542 Consolidated Electrical Distributors, Inc. 9W Lamp $182.05
38543 Downing Construction, Inc *Emergency Repair of Sinkhole at Citrus Ave $3,160.26
38544 Eberhard Equipment Filters for Kubota Cart $173.34
38545 Eisenhower Occupational Health Pre-employment $125.00
38546 Enthalpy Analytical, LLC TRE Work Plan Update, TIE Testing $2,840.00
38547 EOA, Inc. NPDES Assistance for July 2020 $128.55
38548 Ferguson Enterprises #1350 Retrofitting Hands-Free Plumbing Fixtures $7,120.05
38548 Ferguson Enterprises #1350 Hoses for Faucets $131.11
38549 Fulton Distributing Co. Bleach $283.85
38550 Goldstreet Design Agency, inc Toilet Trash Door Hangers $386.90
38551 GPE Controls, Inc. UV Sensor $3,353.39
38552 Grainger Replacement Fluid $97.26
38552 Grainger Door Pull Plates $1,513.80
38552 Grainger Door Push Plates $574.20
38553 Hach Company Ammonium Ionic $1,115.19
38553 Hach Company Chlorine and Filter Set $2,119.45
38554 Ivan Monroy Boot Reimbursement $163.07
38555 Ixom Watercare Inc *Solar Mixer Pond Aerator Replacement $47,767.45
38556 Joseph McElrone Safety Boot Reimbursement $250.00
38557 McMaster-Carr Supply Co. Metal Antifatigue Mat $184.16
38558 Northern Safety Co. Electrolyte Sticks $39.48
38559 Northwest Scientific, Inc. Narrow Tubing Brushes $23.44
38560 Pitney Bowes, Inc. Billing as of 08/14/2020 $208.99
38561 Powerstride Battery Co. Battery $117.59
38562 Praxair Distribution, Inc. Acetylene Tank Rentals $124.39
38563 Rain For Rent Riverside 4" Spacer Groove $244.69
38564 RDO Equipment Company Starter for Cart $507.55
38565 ReadyRefresh by Nestle Water Service 7/23/2020-8/22/2020 $1,393.13
38566 Safety-Kleen Systems, Inc. Used Oil Service on 08/18/2020 $333.25
38567 SGH Architects Inc * New Building Design Project $12,851.30
38568 Southern California Boiler, Inc. Monthly Boiler Maintenance $1,004.99
38569 Southwest Networks, Inc. *Monitors for Engineering $434.13
38570 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. *Influent Pump Station Rehab Professional Services $13,323.00
38571 Tops 'N Barricades   Inc. Hard Hat Sunshade MSA $474.15
38572 Underground Service Alert Dig Alerts for August $178.30
38572 Underground Service Alert Dig Safe Board Fee 09/2020 $68.99
38573 United Refrigeration Inc. 1/2 HP EVAP Cooler Motor Kit $102.42
38573 United Refrigeration Inc. RND Dual Capacitor $10.89
38574 United Way of the Desert PR 08/07/2020 - 08/20/2020 PD 08/28/2020 $25.00
38575 Univar Solutions Ferric Chloride $7,223.61
38575 Univar Solutions Sodium Hypocholorite $7,188.63
38576 UPS UPS Shipping Charges as of 08/15/2020 $25.73
38577 USA Blue Book Sludge Judge II $116.54

202008251 Umpqua Bank * New Charges for July 2020 $20,437.58
202008252 CalPERS Health Health Insurance for September 2020 $34,300.89
202008271 Standard Insurance Company Vision and Dental Insurance for September 2020 $3,004.06
202008272 Basic COBRA Admin 8/2020 - 7/2021 $300.00
202008276 Nationwide Retirement Solution PR 08/07/2020 - 08/20/2020 PD 08/28/2020 $1,535.00
202008281 Paychex - Direct Deposit PR 08/07/2020 - 08/20/2020 PD 08/28/2020 $75,161.85
202008282 Paychex - Fee PR 08/07/2020 - 08/20/2020 PD 08/28/2020 $150.22
202008283 Paychex - Garnishment PR 08/07/2020 - 08/20/2020 PD 08/28/2020 $210.46
202008284 Paychex - Tax PR 08/07/2020 - 08/20/2020 PD 08/28/2020 $32,682.01
202008285 MassMutual PR 08/07/2020 - 08/20/2020 PD 08/28/2020 $10.00
202008286 CalPERS Retirement PR 08/07/2020 - 08/20/2020 PD 08/28/2020 $18,922.95
202008287 CalPERS 457 PR 08/07/2020 - 08/20/2020 PD 08/28/2020 $1,000.00
202008288 Vantage Point Transfer Agents - ICMA PR 08/07/2020 - 08/20/2020 PD 08/28/2020 $1,495.00
202009011 Imperial Irrigation District Electricity for July 2020 $37,767.96
202009012 Standard Insurance Company Life and Disability Insurance for September 2020 $1,262.25
202009051 Indio Water Authority Water for July 2020 $1,316.48

*Capital Expenditures $359,437.99

DISBURSEMENTS
Approved at the Board Meeting of 

September 8, 2020

Page 8 of 85



  
 

Valley Sanitary District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

September 8, 2020 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Contract with Desert 

ARC for Janitorial Services in an Amount Not to Exceed $50,000 
for a 12-month Period 

 
☒ Board Action ☒ New expenditure request ☒ Contract Award 
☐ Board Information ☐ Existing FY Approved Budget ☐ Closed Session 

 
Executive Summary  
The purpose of this report is for the Board of Directors to discuss contracting out 
janitorial services rather than using District staff. 
 
Strategic Plan Compliance 
This item complies with VSD Strategic Plan Objective 1.1: Enough staff to fulfill goals 
and objectives safely and efficiently. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
The total cost of this contract is $40,008 for the basic services and approximately 
$10,000 for as-needed enhanced services. The current budget does not include funding 
for this. Staff will include this as a mid-year budget request. 
 
The current fully loaded cost of staff time associated with performing these services is 
approximately $50,000. The fully loaded cost of hiring a full-time Utility Worker, as 
originally proposed, is approximately $70,000. The Utility Worker would also perform 
landscaping and other semi-skilled duties. 
 
Background 
In November 2019, staff presented a staffing analysis to the Board for discussion and 
direction (Attachment C). Based on the analysis, VSD was significantly short on product 
work hours in several areas, one of which was maintenance. Using the conservative 
guide, the District was short approximately five maintenance positions. The Board 
authorized one full-time Electrical/Instrumentation Supervisor position in February.  
 
As part of the budget discussions for FY 2020/21, the Board proposed that staffing 
remain at the FY 2019/20 level and that staff bring this issue to a future meeting early 

 

Page 9 of 85



Page 2 
 

into the new fiscal year. In addition, the Board requested that staff get quotes to see if 
general maintenance services, primarily janitorial and landscaping, could be provided by 
outside contracts more cost efficiently and thus free up staff to perform more technical 
wastewater specific functions. 
 
In response to the Board’s request, and in compliance with the VSD Purchasing Policy, 
staff published a request for proposals (RFP) for janitorial services on July 1, 2020, with 
a due date of July 24, 2020 (Attachment B). In addition to publishing the RFP, staff e-
mailed it to various local services providers. The District received no proposals in 
response to the RFP. 
 
Staff reached out to Desert ARC to negotiate for services and received a quote to 
provide the services (Attachment A). Desert ARC is a local vendor that provides a 
variety of services to the community while supporting people with disabilities. The scope 
of services is consistent with the RFP and the cost is approximately $3,334 per month. 
Additional enhanced services will be requested on an as-needed basis at an additional 
cost to be quoted at the time. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to 
execute a contract with Desert ARC for janitorial services in an amount not to exceed 
$50,000 for a 12-month period. 
 
Attachments 
Attachment A: Desert ARC Proposal for Janitorial Services  
Attachment B: Request for Proposals for Janitorial Services 
Attachment C: 2019 Staffing Analysis 

Page 10 of 85



 

 

Tax ID is 95-6006700 
Desert Arc Janitorial Division 
73255 Country Club Drive 
Palm Desert, CA 92260 
 
August 25, 2020 
 
RE:  Valley Sanitary District VSD – Janitorial Services RFP 
 
Ryan Williams 
Facilities Maintenance Supervisor 
45-500 Van Buren Street 
Indio CA 92201 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with a proposal for Desert Arc’s 
Janitorial Services for the Valley Sanitary District (VSD). 
 
I have enclosed a proposal for your review encompassing the following sections: 

• Background 
• Scope of Service Areas 
• Pricing Quote 
• Business Credentials 
• References 

 
Desert Arc’s Janitorial Division offers competitive pricing and our mission is to 
deliver excellence, while supporting people with disabilities. We perceive every job 
as an opportunity and obligation to our client, the community and the environment. 
 
Thank you, 

Donnya Villarreal 

 
Donnya Villarreal 
Assistant Director of Vocational Programs 
Desert Arc – Janitorial Division 
dvillarreal@desertarc.org 
760.404.1364 
DesertArc.org 
  

Page 11 of 85



 

Project Background 
 
Ryan Williams has requested a proposal for Janitorial Services for the Valley 
Sanitary District located at 45-500 Van Buren Street in Indio, CA 92201 
 
 

 
 

 

Project Scope 
 
The scope of work for this project is weekly janitorial services.  The scope is 
specifically outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 
 
Staff assigned to this project will consist of a bilingual supervisor, and a crew of 
three. Pricing is outlined in Exhibit B, Pricing Quote. 
 
 

Qualification Summary   
 
Desert Arc has championed the rights of people with developmental and intellectual 
disabilities since 1959. Our mission is to enhance the quality of life and create 
opportunities for people with disabilities.  As a nonprofit, charitable human services 
organization, per Federal Tax ID 95-6006700 under the Internal Revenue Code 
section 501 (c)(3), Desert Arc serves people with developmental and intellectual 
disabilities including conditions such as Autism, Cerebral Palsy, Down Syndrome, 
Epilepsy and many others. Desert Arc is situated in the desert communities of 
Southern California with corporate headquarters in Palm Desert, a Recycling Center 
in Indio and a site in Yucca Valley. 
 
 

Page 12 of 85



 

 
Desert Arc is dedicated to social innovation and has also created a variety of 
enterprises providing Business Services for local companies and residents. These 
include our Janitorial, Shredding, Recycling, Landscape Maintenance and Fulfillment 
divisions. Desert Arc trains and employs our clients while taking into account each 
person’s unique needs and abilities, enabling them to learn job skills.   
 
A leader in the field of environmental stewardship and sustainability, Desert Arc 
received the prestigious Riverside County Department of Waste Resources’ 
Sustainability Award in 2019.  Desert Arc is committed to implementing eco-
friendly business practices and promotes a green world in its diverse business 
service offerings with its motto, “Every Day is Earth Day!”   
 
Under the leadership of longtime President/CEO Richard Balocco, Desert Arc 
employees 307 people and has been in business and an active participant in the 
local community,   providing janitorial services in the Coachella Valley and Morongo 
Basin for the past ten years.   
 
Desert Arc Janitorial Division verifies all employees’ receive a physical, background 
clearance and drug screen prior to employment. All employees receive monthly 
safety training and are First Aid and CPR certified.   
 
A list of references can be found in Exhibit C, References.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13 of 85



 

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

 
 

VSD 
Scope of Work 
  

Basic Services Office Areas/Conference Rooms/Lobby/Mail Room/Common Areas 
 

• Clean glass in doors  
• Remove all cobwebs  
• Wipe down all surfaces including, door frames, windowsills, file cabinets, counters, 

etc.  
• Remove smudges from kick plates, handrails, walls and light switches  
• Empty all trash cans and reline Arrange furniture and magazines in reception 

waiting area  
• Disinfect conference room tables, chairs, counters, exterior of cabinets, sinks, 

handrails, etc.  
• Vacuum all carpet areas and mats  
• Sweep and mop all hard floor surfaces including rolling mats in offices and cubicles  

 
Restrooms  

• Clean and disinfect all urinals, toilets, mirrors, counters, sinks, shower stalls 
•  Clean and polish all bright work and dispensers  
• Spot clean walls, partitions, and light fixtures  
• Empty trash cans and reline  
• Sweep /mop all floors and clean exhaust fan grating  
• Wipe down tops of partitions, dispensers  
• Restock all products including toiletries, soap and paper products  

 
Lunchroom/Lunchroom areas  

• Clean and disinfect chairs, tables, counters and exterior of cupboards  
• Clean microwaves in and out  
• Clean and sanitize all sinks including garbage disposal  
• Wipe down outside of appliances and lighting fixtures 
•  Restock paper towels  

 
 
 

Page 14 of 85



 

Exhibit A 
Scope of Work 

Continued 
 

• Sweep and mop all floors  
• Turn off coffee makers  

 
Outdoor  

• Empty trash cans and reline, remove cobwebs  

 
General instructions  

• Janitorial closet clean and orderly  
• All furniture is returned and arranged neatly including desk and conference room 

chairs  
• Contact District and share any repairs that are needed  
• Turn off all lights and fans prior to departing  
• All doors and windows are closed and secure  

 
 

 
Miscellaneous  

• There will be an additional fee for any additional work requested beyond the scope 
of work. To be approved by Facility Maintenance Supervisor 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 15 of 85



 

 
Exhibit B 

Pricing Quote 
 

 
Weekly Janitorial Services 
Monthly Fee: $3,333.68 
Property will be serviced three times per week 
Start Date, Days/ Times TBD 
 
VSD will supply the following: restroom toiletries, soaps, chemicals, and trash can 
liners.  
Desert Arc must provide own equipment (vacuum, duster, carts, rags, buckets, etc.).  
 
Desert Arc Janitorial Division will make every attempt to coordinate services around 
holidays. 
 
Please reference Exhibit D, Holiday Schedule for observed holidays.   
 
MISCELLANIOUS 
 
Special events, additional work days/hours or any additional work crews will be 
discussed prior to scheduling and may be subject to a service fee. 
 
 

1. Administration Building 3x Weekly 45-500 Van Buren $ 1,175.00 
2. Operations Building 3x Weekly 45-500 Van Buren $ 839.67 
3. Maintenance Building 2x Weekly 45-500 Van Buren $ 339.67 
4. Collection Services Building 2x Weekly 45-500 Van Buren $ 339.67 
5.  Lab Building 3x Weekly 45-500 Van Buren $ 639.67 

 
TOTAL $3,333.68 

 
Proposed percent increase for additional option year 2 - 5% $3,500.36 
Proposed percent increase for additional option year 3 - 5% $3,675.37 
 
 
 
 

Page 16 of 85



 

EXHIBIT C 
ENHANCED SERVICES 
  
Enhanced Services shall be quoted at the time service is requested. The District may 
elect to contract with another provider for these services. 
 
ENHANCED SERVICES  
 
INDOOR 
 
Carpet Cleaning & Stain Removal (annually)-Sub-contracted 
Strip, service, wax hard floors (semi-annually)- Sub-contracted 
Window cleaning (Quarterly)- Sub-contracted 
Clean/steam upholstered furniture and partitions (semi-annually)- Sub-contracted 
X  Clean light fixtures (quarterly) 
X  Dust clean blinds, vents, display cases (semi –annually) 
 
OUTDOOR 
 
X Power wash walkways (monthly) 
 
Window cleaning (Quarterly)- Sub-contracted 
 
Clean light fixtures (semi-annually) TBD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 85



 

Business Credentials 
 
CONTACT 
 
Donnya Villarreal  
760-404-1364 Office 
442-400-4570 Cell 
dvillarreal@desertarc.org 
 
Camerena Corrales  
760-3446-1611 Office 
760-660-9390 cell 
ccorrales@deserarc.org 
 
 
CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 
 
73255 Country Club Drive 
Palm Desert, Ca 92260 
 
EMPLOYEE POLICY 
 
All Desert Arc employees receive a physical, a background clearance and drug 
screen prior to employment. Every person employed by Desert Arc are First Aid and 
CPR certified, plus, are required to participate in monthly safety trainings. 
 
 
Tax ID is 95-6006700 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 18 of 85

mailto:dvillarreal@desertarc.org
mailto:ccorrales@deserarc.org


 

Exhibit B 
Pricing Quote 

Continued 
 

 

 

• Termination of contract can be done with a 30 day written notice  
• The price of this contract is good for one year. Pricing will be reviewed 

30days prior to the end of the contract 
 
 

For the purposes of issuing a purchase order or invoice, the following contact 

information is provided: 

 
 

Mr. Kurt Parish 

Controller 

Desert Arc 

73-255 Country Club Drive 

Palm Desert, CA  92260-2309 

(760) 346-1611, extension 216 

 

 

 

 
Donnya Villarreal__Date 08/25/2020                               _______________________Date __________ 

Donnya Villarreal                                                          Ryan Williams        
Assistant Director of Vocational Programs           Facilities Maintenance Supervisor                      
Desert Arc                 Valley Sanitary District 
73255 Country Club Drive                                       45-500 Van Buren Street   
Palm Desert, CA  92260                Indio CA 92201   
     
 

 
 
 

 

Page 19 of 85



 

Exhibit C 
References 

 
 
 

1. The Management Trust 
Contact: Damian Jenkins 
39755 Berkey Drive #A 
Palm Desert Ca 92211 
760-776-5100 
damian.jenkins@managementtrust.com 

 
2. Renova Solar & Energy   

Contact: Jasmine Coleman, Office Manager 
760-568-3413 
jcoleman@renovaenergy.com 

 
3. Community Associations Institute 

Contact: Cal Lockett- Executive Director 
760-341-0559 
clockett@cai-cv.org 
 

4. Desert Resort Management 
Contact: Loni Peterson-General Manager for PGA WEST II Residential Association   
760-346-1161 
lperterson@drminternet.com 
 

5. Marriott Desert Springs Resort and Spa 
Contact: Jessica Ramirez, Assistant Director of Services  

Office 760.862.1509 | Fax 760.862.1563 

Jessica.Ramirez@marriott.com 
 

6. Gerald Green Realtor Keller Williams 
Contact: Gerald Green 
760-218-5675 
GeraldGreenrepro@gmail.com 

 
 

 

Page 20 of 85

mailto:jcoleman@renovaenergy.com
mailto:clockett@cai-cv.org
mailto:lperterson@drminternet.com
mailto:Jessica.Ramirez@marriott.com


 

Exhibit D 
Holiday Observance Schedule 

FY 2020   
 
 

 
Monday, September 7,  2020          Labor Day 
Thursday,  November 26,  2020     Thanksgiving Day 
Friday, November  27, 2020  Thanksgiving Holiday 
Thursday,  December 24,  2020  Christmas Holiday 
Friday, December 25, 2020   Christmas Day 
Thursday,  December 31,  2020 New Year’s Eve 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21 of 85



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
 

JANITORIAL SERVICES 
 
 
 
 
 

Release Date: July 1, 2020 
 

Deadline for Submission: July 24, 2020 
 

Contact Person: Ryan Williams, Facilities Maintenance Supervisor 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VSD 
45-500 Van Buren St 

Indio, CA 92201 
 

Page 22 of 85



VSD 
Janitorial Services RFP 
July 1, 2020 
Page 2 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
JANITORIAL SERVICES 

 
RELEASE DATE: Wednesday, July 1, 2020 
 
CLOSING DATE: Proposals must be received no later than by Friday, July 24, 2020 by 

4:00 p.m. by the means listed in the RFP. 
 
CONTACT PERSON: Ryan Williams, Facilities Maintenance Supervisor 
 E-mail: rwilliams@valley-sanitary.org 
 Phone: 760-238-5400 
 

Valley Sanitary District 
45-500 Van Buren St 
Indio, CA 92201 
 
Counter Hours: M-F 8:00 AM – 5:00 PM 

 
PURPOSE 
The Valley Sanitary District (VSD) is requesting proposals from experienced and qualified firms 
(“Proposers”) for the provision of Janitorial Services at VSD facilities. It is VSD’s intent to award 
one contract for janitorial services at Administration and Treatment Plant property in Indio, 
Riverside County. 
 
ABOUT THE DISTRICT 
VSD is in the Coachella Valley about 20 miles southwest of the Palm Springs airport. VSD is a 
wastewater district, founded in 1925, operating under the Sanitary District Act of 1923. The 
District has over 28,000 service connections in a 19.5 square mile service area serving a 
population of about 75,000 in the communities of Indio, Coachella, La Quinta, and 
unincorporated Riverside County. The District’s Adopted FY 2019/20 Operating Budget is $8.3 
million. 
 
VSD is governed by a five-member Board of Directors and led by a senior management team 
comprised of a General Manager, District Engineer, Chief Plant Operator, and Administrative & 
Finance Manager. Staff includes a total of 32 full-time employees spread across three 
Departments: Administrative Services Department, Operations & Maintenance Department, 
and the Engineering Department. 
 
Keeping infrastructure up to date and reliable is a significant part of the District’s commitment 
to provide quality service to its customers. Capital improvement and replacement projects are 
necessary to replace aging underground infrastructure and to ensure that the District offers 
superior treatment to meet environmental standards. 
 

Page 23 of 85

mailto:rwilliams@valley-sanitary.org


VSD 
Janitorial Services RFP 
July 1, 2020 
Page 3 
 

INTRODUCTION 
The successful Proposer shall be required to provide the janitorial scope of services outlined in 
Exhibit A (“Basic Services & Enhanced Services Upon Request”) for the above referenced 
properties. 

 
The successful Proposer shall be required to furnish equipment, machinery, transportation and 
other implements necessary to execute the contract. The Proposer shall supply a plan as to how 
the Basic Services will be executed. The plan shall include the number of personnel, which will 
be used to execute the services and when (outside of business days and hours) the services will 
be performed, and estimated time to complete each service. 
 
The successful Proposer shall maintain that all employees have been trained in appropriate 
safety measures to ensure Proposer’s employees are performing their work in a safe manner. 
The Proposer shall state their qualifications as a professional janitorial firm, which can include 
but not be limited to, previous janitorial services offered to businesses within Riverside County, 
current janitorial contracts being performed by Proposer, the length of time that this Proposer 
has been performing these types of services, and any special qualifications those employees 
might have. 
 
TERM OF AGREEMENT 

The agreement shall begin on September 1, 2020. The terms of the agreement for janitorial 

services will be negotiated with the selected proposer. VSD expects a minimum term of one 

year with two additional years at its sole discretion. The contract will be monitored for 

acceptable services rendered throughout the contract term. The District will have the option to 

cancel the contract in whole or in part during the contract term, for any reason, without 

penalty, upon notice. The Proposer will not be entitled to lost profits or any further 

compensation not earned prior to the time of cancellation. 

PAYMENTS 

For payment due for Basic and Enhanced Services the Proposer shall submit invoices at the end 

of each monthly billing period. Invoice amounts shall be based on the Proposer’s services as 

rendered in a format acceptable to VSD. 

The Proposer shall submit an invoice which provides detailed billing for services provided no 

later than 45 calendar days after the date the services have been rendered. Payments shall be 

paid to the Proposer within 30 days upon the receipt of invoice. 

 
 
RFP RESPONSE FORMAT 
The RFP respondent shall submit one PDF Electronic copy of the RFP response with all the 
information requested. In order to simplify the proposal evaluation process, the District is seeking 
RFP responses in the following format: 
 
1. Cover/Cover Letter 

Page 24 of 85



VSD 
Janitorial Services RFP 
July 1, 2020 
Page 4 
 

 

• Name of Business/Company: 

• Business/Company Address: 

• Telephone Number(s): 

• E-mail Address: 

• Website Address: 

• Federal Tax ID Number: 

• Name, title, telephone number and, if different, address of person(s) authorized to 
represent business entity: 

• Name, title, telephone number and, if different, address of person(s) authorized to sign 
contracts for the business entity: 

 
2. RFP Response 
 

A. Information about the consulting firm including the following information. 

 organization type (corp, llc, etc) 

 organizational structure(s) 

 location of principal office(s) 

 years in business 

 number of employees 

 other pertinent information 
 

B. Key personnel and roles 
 

 Name of the principal point-of-contact in the firm/entity that will have direct and 
continued responsibility for the services provided to the District. This person will be the 
District staff’s first point-of-contact on all matters at the contract administration level 
dealing with the services offered, and will either handle day-to-day activities or assign a 
point-of-contact and other firm staff as needed for that responsibility. 
 

 Outline of responsibilities/roles of firm/entity personnel with respect to providing the 
services requested. 
 

 Experience/resumes of assigned personnel including certifications. 
 

 Location of resources assigned to project and availability for on-site work activities. 
 

C. Qualifications of the Firm/Entity 
 

 Description of at least five similar projects/assignments. Describe the roles of both 
parties, description and size of environments serviced, services performed, annual 
charges and resources utilized. 

 

Page 25 of 85



VSD 
Janitorial Services RFP 
July 1, 2020 
Page 5 
 

 Five References for similar assignments/work performed. If different from above 
project list, describe the nature of the project/assignment as described above. 
 

 Business partner relationships and level of your firm (i.e. Microsoft Gold). 
 

 Tenure with firm of key personnel to be assigned to project. 
 

 Discuss your customer knowledge continuity process for maintaining customer 
environment knowledge as staff resources change. 
 

D. Response to the Scope of Services requested and other key issues raised in RFP 
 

The respondent should address how it will provide the services requested in the scope of 
services. Including the establishment of the processes and procedures for maintaining and 
supporting all of the District’s network infrastructure, how the support desk will function, 
how documentation and change control will be implemented, how managed services are 
provided and discuss other key issues raised in this RFP or are anticipated during the 
course of performing the scope of services requested. 

 
E. Cost Proposal – Separate Attachment 

 

 The District desires an all-inclusive based fees proposal for the scope of services listed 
(required). In addition, firms may disclose a fixed fee schedule for specific managed 
service offerings provided. 
 

 Include hourly billable rates of all personnel who could be assigned to the project. 
 

 Include any other billable costs (and corresponding unit costs) associated with the 
proposal (e.g., direct charges such as copying costs, travel, etc.) as applicable. 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. Consultant Questions during Proposal Process: Proposing firms are encouraged to ask 
questions to strengthen proposals to the District. Please direct your questions to: Ryan 
Williams at rwilliams@valley-sanitary.org. Please provide all inquiries in writing (e-mail). 
Questions will be accepted up to 3:00 pm Pacific Time on Friday, July 10, 2020. All 
questions and answers will be e-mailed to all firms who indicate their intention to respond 
to the RFP. Please email your intention to respond to Ryan Williams. You will receive 
confirmation of receipt of your email. Question sources will remain anonymous. 

 
2. Limitation: The Request for Proposals (RFP) does not commit the District to award a 

contract, to pay any cost incurred in the preparation of the firm’s RFP response or to 
procure or contract for services or supplies. The District reserves the right to accept or 
reject any or all RFP responses received as a result of this request, to negotiate with any/all 

Page 26 of 85

mailto:rwilliams@valley-sanitary.org


VSD 
Janitorial Services RFP 
July 1, 2020 
Page 6 
 

qualified sources or to cancel all or part of this RFP. 
 
3. Award: The firm/entity chosen may be required to participate in negotiations and to 

submit such revisions of its proposals as may result from negotiations. The District reserves 
the right to award a contract/select a service provider without discussion based upon the 
initial proposals. 

 
4. Signature: The consultant’s RFP response shall provide the following information: name, 

title, address and telephone number of individuals with authority to bind the service 
provider and who may be contacted during the period of proposal evaluation. The 
consultant’s RFP response shall be signed by an official authorized to bind the consultant. 

 
PROPOSAL SUBMISSION 
One PDF electronic copy of the proposal must be received no later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, July 
24, 2020, by one of the following two methods. Late proposals will not be accepted. 
 

1. Delivered to VSD Administrative Office 
or 

2. Emailed to rwilliams@valley-sanitary.org  
 
SELECTION CRITERIA 
In reviewing proposals, the District’s proposal reviewers will use a standardized selection: 
 

• Experience and qualifications of assigned staff (20 points) 
 

• References (particularly public agencies) and relevant work performed (20 points) 

 

• Firm/entity key personnel assigned to the project (10 points) 
 

• Demonstrated ability to competently implement the scope of services (20 points) 
 

• Demonstrated understanding of issues raised by District in RFP and completeness in 
addressing the scope of work (30 points) 

 
A review panel will rate the initial proposals based upon standardized selection criteria and will 
select up to 3 of the highest scoring consultants to attend interviews (see selection process and 
time frame below). All other consultants will be notified according to the schedule provided below. 
 
SELECTION PROCESS AND TIME FRAME 
Wednesday, July 1, 2020 Release date of RFP 
Friday, July 10, 2020 Questions due no later than 3:00 PM PDT 
Friday, July 24, 2020 RFP responses due no later than 4:00 PM PDT 
Tuesday, August 11, 2020 Board approval of contract 
Tuesday, September 1, 2020 Services begin 

Page 27 of 85

mailto:rwilliams@valley-sanitary.org


VSD 
Janitorial Services RFP 
July 1, 2020 
Page 7 
 

Exhibit A 
Scope of Services 

 
The District will supply the following: restroom toiletries, soaps, chemicals, and trash can liners. 
Contractor must provide own equipment (vacuum, duster, carts, rags, buckets, etc.). 
 

Basic Services 

Office Areas/Conference Rooms/Lobby/Mail Room/Common Area 

Clean glass in doors 

Remove all cobwebs 

Wipe down all surfaces including, door frames, windowsills, file cabinets, counters, etc. 

Remove smudges from kick plates, handrails, walls and light switches 

Empty all trash cans and reline 

Arrange furniture and magazines in reception waiting area 

Disinfect conference room tables, chairs, counters, exterior of cabinets, sinks, handrails, etc. 

Vacuum all carpet areas and mats 

Sweep and mop all hard floor surfaces including rolling mats in offices and cubicles 

Restrooms 

Clean and disinfect all urinals, toilets, mirrors, counters, sinks, shower stalls 

Clean and polish all bright work and dispensers 

Spot clean walls, partitions, and light fixtures 

Empty trash cans and reline 

Sweep /mop all floors and clean exhaust fan grating 

Wipe down tops of partitions, dispensers 

Restock all products including toiletries, soap and paper products 

Lunchroom/Lunchroom areas 

Clean and disinfect chairs, tables, counters and exterior of cupboards 

Clean microwaves in and out 

Clean and sanitize all sinks including garbage disposal 

Wipe down outside of appliances and lighting fixtures 

Restock paper towels 

Sweep and mop all floors 

Turn off coffee makers 

Outdoor 

Empty trash cans and reline, remove cobwebs 

General instructions 

Janitorial closet clean and orderly 

All furniture is returned and arranged neatly including desk and conference room chairs 

Contact District and share any repairs that are needed 

Turn off all lights and fans prior to departing 

All doors and windows are closed and secure 

 
Proposer is to describe below how the Basic Services will be performed. The plan should include 

Page 28 of 85



VSD 
Janitorial Services RFP 
July 1, 2020 
Page 8 
 

the number of personnel to execute the services and estimated time to complete each service. 
The contractor will have access to the work site only between the hours of 2:30 p.m. to 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday. 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Print Name:   Print Title:   
 
 
Signature:   Date:    

Page 29 of 85



VSD 
Janitorial Services RFP 
July 1, 2020 
Page 9 
 

Exhibit B 
Cost of Services 

 
The Proposer, in compliance with the request for proposals for the Janitorial Services, having 
examined Exhibit A: Scope of Services and written specifications, hereby proposes to furnish 
Janitorial Services for the following unit prices. 
 

 Name Basic Services 
Provided 

Address Total Cost Per Month 

1 Administration Building 3x Weekly 45-500 Van Buren $ 

2 Operations Building 3x Weekly 45-500 Van Buren $ 

3 Maintenance Building 2x Weekly 45-500 Van Buren $ 

4 Collection Services 
Building 

2x Weekly 45-500 Van Buren $ 

6 Lab Building 3x Weekly 45-500 Van Buren $ 

TOTAL $  

Proposed percent increase for additional option year 2 % 

Proposed percent increase for additional option year 3 % 

 
Enhanced Services shall be quoted at the time service is requested. The District may elect to 
contract with another provider for these services. Please note on Exhibit C which services 
Proposer can supply. 
 
The above unit prices listed in the Price Schedule shall include all labor, materials, removal, 
overhead, profit, insurance, and any other cost necessary to cover the finished work. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Print Name:   Print Title:   
 
 
Signature:   Date:    

Page 30 of 85



VSD 
Janitorial Services RFP 
July 1, 2020 
Page 10 
 

 

Exhibit C 
Enhanced Services 

 

Please indicate what Enhanced Services your firm can supply to the District. Enhanced Services 

shall be quoted at the time service is requested. The District may elect to contract with another 

provider for these services. Please submit duplicate pages if necessary, to list additional services 

proposer can provide. 

 

ENHANCED SERVICES 

Indoor Outdoor 

 Carpet Cleaning & Stain Removal 
(annually) 

 Power wash walkways (monthly) 

 Strip, service, wax hard floors (semi-
annually) 

 Window cleaning (quarterly) 

 Window cleaning (quarterly)  Clean light fixtures (semi-annually) 

 Clean/steam upholstered furniture and 
partitions (semi-annually) 

  

 Clean light fixtures (quarterly)  

 Dust/clean blinds, vents, display cases 
(semi-annually) 

 

LIST ADDITIONAL SERVICES PROPOSER CAN PROVIDE 

Indoor Outdoor 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Print Name:   Print Title:   
 
 
Signature:   Date:   

Page 31 of 85



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Staffing Analysis 

and 

Wages & Benefits Comparison 

November 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Prepared by: 

Beverli A. Marshall, SDA 

General Manager 

 

Page 32 of 85



1 

Executive Summary 

The Board of Directors indicated that it would be beneficial to have an analysis of the District’s 

staffing level, workload, succession planning, and future needs based on anticipated changes in 

upcoming permit renewals, and implementation of a recycled water project. In addition, the Board 

wanted more data on wages and benefits from other agencies to further a discussion on addressing 

recruitment and retention issues. 

 

This report utilizes various industry best management practices (BMP), published guidelines, and 

analysis of comparable agencies to analyze staffing levels, wages, and benefits that will allow VSD to 

operate at its full potential and be competitive in its recruiting and retention of staff. The findings 

in this report are intended to provide the District with opportunities to address both recruitment 

and retention as well as plan for future needs. 

 

Introduction 

Valley Sanitary District (VSD or District) is a special district that provides wastewater collection, 

treatment, and discharge for the citizens of Indio and a small portion of Coachella and La Quinta. 

The total population is approximately 90,000. VSD operates 254 miles of gravity sewer line, five 

pump stations, and a treatment plant that processes an average of 5.6 million gallons of wastewater 

each day. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors that are elected at-large 

every four years. 

 

VSD has been leanly staffed and challenged to perform its day-to-day tasks in addition to the 

numerous special projects ever since the plant was upgraded and expanded in the mid-2000’s. In 

general, I have observed that the District is understaffed in several functional areas and does not 

have the capacity to take on the second phase of the plant expansion and upgrades and the 

recycled water project. 

 

Background 

The General Manager oversees a total of 30 employees that are responsible for delivering services 

to the ratepayers and community served by Valley Sanitary District. There are three departments 

(Operations, Administration, and Field Services) that are managed by the District’s management 

team. The following list reflects the positions approved in the FY 2019/20 Budget. 

 

Authorized Positions 

FY 2019/20 

 Classification #  

 Accounting Technician 1 

 Admin & Finance Manager 1 

 Assistant Engineer 1 

 Accounting Clerk 1 

 Chief Facility Operator 1 

 Collection System Supervisor 1 

 Collection System Technician I/II/III 4 

 Development Services Technician I/II/III 2 

 Electrical/Instrumentation Technician I/II/III 1 

 Environmental Compliance Technician I/II/III 1 

 General Manager 1 

 Director of Engineering 1 

Page 33 of 85



2 

 Laboratory Supervisor 1 

 Laboratory Technician I/II/III 1 

 Maintenance Supervisor 1 

 Maintenance Technician I/II/III 4 

 Procurement Technician 1 

 Wastewater Operator I/II/III 6 

 Wastewater Operator Supervisor 1 

 

Organizational Chart 

Constituents
 

Board of Directors
 

Beverli A. Marshall

General 
Manager

Joanne Padgham

Administration & 
Finance Manager

Ron Buchwald

Engineering 
Services Manager

Ian Wilson

Plant Operations 
Manager

Accounting 
Technician
Karen Hopper

Board Clerk/ 
Records Tech
Holly Gould

Ryan Williams

Maintenance 
Supervisor

James Mills

Operations 
Supervisor

Wastewater 
Operator III
Andy Boyd

Wastewater 
Operator III
Kenny Kepley

Wastewater 
Operator III
Jose Juarez

Wastewater 
Operator II
Scott Graham

Wastewater 
Operator II
Lorenzo Yelder

Wastewater 
Operator-in-
Train ing
Austin  Lopanec

Maintenance 
Technician III
Vacant

Maintenance 
Technician I
Daniel Mills

Maintenance 
Technician III
Brian Sprueill

Tito Moreno

Collection System 
Supervisor

Collection System 
Technician I
Joey McElrone

Collection System 
Technician I
 Nicholas  
Castaneda

Collection System 
Technician I
Marin Gutierrez

Collection System 
Technician I
Grant Fournier

Associate Engineer
Adrian Contreras

Environmental 
Compliance Tech
Ivan Monroy

Development 
Technician II
Steve Shepard

Development 
Technician II
Hector Guzman

Electrician

Tino Tijerina

Anna Bell

Laboratory 
Supervisor

Laboratory 
Technician
Stephanie Jiron

Procurement 
Technician
Branden 
Rodriguez

Maintenance 
Technician I
Jimmy Garcia

 

Page 34 of 85



3 

Methodology 

As part of the analysis, I completed the following tasks to independently determine the number 

and type of staff needed to properly operate the treatment facility, meet permit requirements, 

perform field services, support the administrative functions, and plan for future needs.  

 

1. Reviewed and evaluated history of staffing over the past 10 years 

2. Reviewed organizational charts, classification specifications, budgets, and CAFRs. 

3. Calculated the productive hours available with existing staff. 

4. Calculated the work hours needed for current activities and services. 

5. Compared staffing levels with comparable agencies. 

6. Compared wages and benefits with comparable agencies. 

 

To gather the necessary data, I had informal discussions with staff, supervisors, and managers to 

identify areas of concern, tasks and functions that have lagged due to insufficient resources (staff or 

contractors), training and cross-training needs, and succession concerns. The employees that I 

talked with were open, frank, and friendly. They were honest and supportive of having the “right” 

number of staff without going to any extremes. In fact, I would say that they were very conservative 

in their suggestions. I believe that this is the outcome of a history of being thinly staffed and a lack 

of willingness to raise rates.  

 

I also utilized “The Northeast Guide for Estimating Staffing at Publicly and Privately-Owned 
Wastewater Treatment Plants” (Northeast Guide) to determine the baseline staffing needs for the 

VSD plant operations, maintenance, and laboratory functions. I used the “Core Attributes of 
Effectively Managed Wastewater Collection Systems” (Core Attributes), a product of a joint effort 

including the Water Environment Federation (WEF) and the National Association of Clean Water 

Agencies (NACWA), to determine baseline staffing needs for the Collection System. 

 

To provide context, I also looked for public agencies within the geographical area that provide 

similar services. I looked at population, plant flow, number of employees, type of agency, and 

location in, or proximity to, Coachella Valley to identify those that most closely matched VSD. I 

was able to identify 11 agencies within, or near, the Coachella Valley. These agencies were: 

 

City of Coachella (Wastewater Division) 

Coachella Valley Water District 

Desert Water Agency 

Hi-Desert Water District 

Indio Water Authority 

Mission Springs Water District 

Rancho California Water District 

Rincon del Diablo Municipal Water 

Victor Valley Water Reclamation Authority 

West Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District 

 

The only outlier in the group was Coachella Valley Water District, which is considerably larger in 

both flow and population served. It is the primary competition for recruitment and retention in the 

Coachella Valley and needs to be included for that reason. CVWD data was not used to calculate 

Mean to avoid skewing comparison. Table 1 reflects the comparable agencies data. 

Page 35 of 85



4 

 

Table 1. Comparable Agencies 

Agency 

 # of 

EEs 

Avg. 

Flow 

Ratio 

EEs to 

Flow Population  

Ratio EEs 

to 

Population 

City of Coachella (Wastewater Division) 16 1.5 10.5 45,839 0.000344 

Coachella Valley Water District 
  

 
 

 

Desert Water Agency 85  - 106,000 0.000802 

Hi-Desert Water District 46  - 24,000 0.001917 

Indio Water Authority 49 
 

- 100,000 0.000490 

Mission Springs Water District 45 2.0 22.5 40,000 0.001125 

Rancho California Water District 150 5.0 30.0 150,000 0.001000 

Rincon del Diablo Municipal Water 21 
 

- 30,000 0.000700 

Victor Valley Water Reclamation Authority 41 10.7 3.8 293,000 0.000140 

West Valley Water District 79 
 

- 103,562 0.000763 

Yucaipa Valley Water District 63 4.0 15.8 59,000 0.001068 

# of Comparisons 10 5  10  

Mean 59 4.6 12.8 95,140 0.000625 

Valley Sanitary District 31 5.5 5.6 89,863 0.000345 

% Above /-Below Mean -92% 16% -127% -6% -81% 

 

Staffing Analysis 

Reviewing the data from the identified agencies, VSD’s staffing level is below the mean. Based on 

flows, VSD’s ratio is significantly lower (-127%) than the average of the five comparable agencies. 

Based on population, VSD’s ratio is approximately half of the mean. While these are not sole 

indicators of a need for additional staff, it does provide context for the other data and analyses. To 

determine how many hours were available for each employee to perform the necessary tasks I 

used the standard of 1,500 annual hours for each full-time equivalent (FTE) of available work time, 

calculated as: 

 

2,080 gross hours 

-104 training hours (13 days) 

-96 sick leave hours (12 days) 

160 vacation hours (20 days) 

-104 holiday hours (13 days) 

-110 break hours (30 minutes/day) 

1,506 total available hours 
 

I looked at the calculations for both the 1.0-5.0 mgd and 5.0-10.0 mgd flow categories based on 

VSD’s average flow of 5 to 6 mgd. Table 2 shows the number of VSD employees in each 

functional area, the work hours needed to complete the related tasks based on the Northeast 
Guide, and the related staffing levels to meet the workload. 

 

Page 36 of 85



5 

Table 2. Work Hours by Functional Area 

Functional Area VSD 1.0-5.0 mgd Guide 5.0-10.0 mgd Guide 

Basic and Advanced Operations 4.5 6,752 4.5 8,848 5.9 

Maintenance 6.0 17,972 12.0 34,008 22.7 

Laboratory 2.5 3,698 2.5 3,698 2.5 

Biosolids/Sludge Handling 2.0 3,840 2.6 5,120 3.4 

Yardwork 1.0 530 .4 530 .4 

Estimated O & M Hours 22,500 32,742  52,204  

Estimated O & M Staff 16.0 21.8 22 34.8 35 

Estimated Additional Staff (Chart 7)  1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

Total Staffing 16  23  36 

 

Erring on the conservative side, this report focuses on the 1.0-5.0 mgd category. Looking at staffing 

in each functional area, VSD is understaffed in Maintenance by approximately 7.0 positions. This 

is partially offset by contracting out highly specialized or infrequent tasks to contractors and 

consultants. Taking that into account, it is still clear that the Northeast Guide indicates that VSD is 

significantly understaffed based on a plant that processes approximately 5.0 mgd flow. This does 

not include the planned upgrades and implementing recycled water in the next three to five years. 

 

The Northeast Guide does not calculate the staffing needed to perform collection service tasks. I 

used the Core Attributes to identify staffing levels for the Collection System division functions. 

Industry best management practices (BMP) indicate that a crew of 2.5 employees can clean 95 

miles (500,000 feet) of gravity line per year. VSD owns 254 miles of gravity line and cleans an 

average of 134 miles (705,000 feet) each year. This would indicate a need for at least 3.5 

employees. For safety in some locations, such as high traffic areas, a crew of 3 is needed, which 

reduces the availability for that employee to work on a second crew. In addition to the line 

cleaning, staff also assists the Plant Operations department when needed. Two crews of 2 

employees each, for a total of 4, would allow for more efficiency in completing the annual cleaning 

function. 

 

CCTV work is also a function of the Collection System division. The BMP indicates that a 

collection system should be reviewed via CCTV no less than once every 10 years for system 

assessment – 134,000 feet each year for VSD. Approximately 2% (14,000 feet) of lines cleaned 

each year should be reviewed by CCTV for quality control. A CCTV crew, usually two employees, 

can survey 2,000 feet per day. VSD should survey at least 150,000 feet per year, which is 

approximately 1,200 hours of staff time dedicated to CCTV tasks. VSD averages 148,000 feet per 

year. This equates to almost 1 full-time employee for just CCTV tasks. For safety, the CCTV crew 

should consist of 2 employees. 

 

General planning, supervising, marking gravity lines and force mains in response to USA requests, 

and monthly and annual reporting requires a full-time position. Therefore, based on BMP, the 

Collection System division staffing level should be at least 6 positions. The Collection System 

division is approved currently for 5 positions. 

 

The Development Services division consists of 4 employees and is the only O & M division that 

does not have a supervisor. The District Engineer oversees this division, the Collection System 

division, and the capital improvement program. This typically results in little day-to-day interaction 

with the Development Services division staff. It would be more effective and efficient to assign a 

Page 37 of 85



6 

supervisor to this division and allow the District Engineer to focus on the capital improvement 

program. This would result in an increase of one position in the Development Services division. 

 

The Administrative Services department has 5 employees, including the General Manager. There 

is no redundancy in the positions and in the past when an employee has left, there has been both a 

workload impact and knowledge vacuum with the vacancy. Aside from the Administration & 

Finance Manager, there is no confidential employee to perform human resources tasks. No other 

position has the classification or capacity to perform these tasks. 

 

Wage & Benefit Analysis 

In addition to the staffing levels at the identified agencies, I looked at the wages payed and benefits 

provided by the comparable agencies to the classifications most like those at VSD. Based on the 

geographical proximity to VSD, I did not adjust for cost of living variances. Rather than listing the 

data for each classification for agency, Table 3 lists the VSD classifications and monthly wages, the 

mean based on comparable agency data, and the percent above or below the mean.  

 

Table 3. Monthly Wages 

VSD Classification VSD Wage Comparable 

Mean 

% Above/ 

(Below) Mean 

Accounting Technician $6,316 $6,590 (4.3%) 

Accounting Clerk $5,728 $5,764 (0.6%) 

Administration & Finance Manager $9,331 $13,683 (46.6%) 

Assistant Engineer $7,677 $8,458 (10.2%) 

Associate Engineer $8,463 $10,131 (19.7%) 

Chief Plant Operator $9,331 $11,679 (25.2%) 

Collection System Supervisor $8,463 $8,720 (3.0%) 

Collection System Tech-in-Training $4,948 $4894 1.1% 

Collection System Technician I $5,728 $4,997 12.8% 

Collection System Technician II $6,316 $5,646 10.6% 

Collection System Technician III $6,963 $6,529 6.2% 

Development Services Technician I $6,693 $6,006 13.7% 

Development Services Technician II $8,463 $6,951 17.9% 

District Engineer $13,129 $15,528 (18.3%) 

Electrician/Instrumentation Tech III $7,677 $7,422 3.3% 

Environmental Compliance Tech I $6,963 $6,063 12.9% 

Environmental Compliance Tech II $8,463 $6772 20.0% 

General Manager $18,750 $19,907 (6.2%) 

Laboratory Supervisor $8,463 $9,332 (10.3%) 

Laboratory Technician I $6,316 $6,260 0.9% 

Laboratory Technician II $6,963 $7,351 (5.6%) 

Maintenance Supervisor $8,463 $9,012 (6.5%) 

Maintenance Technician I $5,456 $5,307 2.7% 

Maintenance Technician II $6,015 $5861 2.6% 

Maintenance Technician III $6,631 $6778 (2.2%) 

Management Analyst $6,963 $7,400 (6.3%) 

Procurement Technician $6,316 $5,965 5.6% 

Wastewater Operations Supervisor $8,463 $9,212 (8.9%) 

Page 38 of 85



7 

Wastewater Operator-in-Training $4,948 $4,719 4.6% 

Wastewater Operator I $5,728 $5,620 1.9% 

Wastewater Operator II $6,316 $6,268 0.8% 

Wastewater Operator III $6,963 $7,100 (2.0%) 

 

Two of the classifications (Collection System Tech-in-Training, Environmental Compliance 

Technician II) had fewer than the four comparable data points. At minimum, at least four are 

needed for an accurate comparison. The mean was recorded for these classifications, but there was 

a low confidence level regarding the comparison. The remaining classifications met the minimum 

of four data points. 

 

Most notable in this analysis was that VSD has a wage schedule that was not based on market 

comparisons. The variances were all over the place with the greatest above the mean 17.9% and 

below the mean (46.6%). The other notable issue was that the past practice of internal parity 

among the supervisors created a significant variance from the market for these classifications. This 

creates a potential recruitment and retention problem if it is not corrected so that VSD is more 

competitive with its wages. 

 

In addition to reviewing the wages offered by the comparable agencies, I also reviewed the benefits 

provided by the agencies. Table 4 lists the benefits offered by VSD, the mean based on 

comparable agency data, and the percent above or below the mean. 

 

Table 4. Benefits 

 

Benefits 

 

VSD 

Comparable 

Mean 

% Above/ 

(Below) Mean 

PERS Tier 1 Plan 2.5% 2.6% (2.7%) 

PERS Tier 1 EPMC - 4% (100%) 

Social Security 6.2% - (100%) 

Medical (Family) $1,851 $1,565 15% 

Dental (Family) 50% 94% (89%) 

Vision (Family) 100% 94% 6% 

Cash-in-Lieu of Medical $450 $492 (9%) 

Retiree Health $136 $1,303 (858%) 

Safety Shoe Reimbursement $225 $220 2% 

Holidays (set + floating) 10 13 (29%) 

Sick Leave 12 12 - 

Sick Leave Accrual Cap 960 Unlimited - 

Vacation (Start) 15 12 22% 

Vacation (Top) 25 24 4% 

Administrative Leave (Management) 10 7 27% 

Bereavement Leave 4 4 - 

Standby Pay (weekday) $35 $57 (62%) 

Standby Pay (weekend day) $75 $83 (11%) 

Callback Minimum 2 2 - 

Bilingual Pay - $33 (100%) 

Deferred Comp Match - $1,380 (100%) 

Life Insurance $150,000 $183,750 (23%) 

Page 39 of 85



8 

Life Insurance (Management) $200,000 $202,500 (1%) 

Tuition Reimbursement $3,000 $4,600 (53%) 

Tuition Reimbursement (Management) $3,000 $4,200 (40%) 

Long-Term Disability 100% 100% - 

Longevity Yes Yes - 

 

In reviewing the benefits provided by all the agencies, the most notable issue was that VSD 

participates in Social Security while only two of the comparable agencies do. Since contributions 

are made by the employees, this has an impact on their take-home compensation. Three of the 

comparable agencies continue to pay a portion of the EPMC. These two issues exacerbate the 

wage variances for those classifications that are below the mean.  

 

While VSD pays a significant portion of the cost of medical coverage, it lags in paying for other 

benefits, such as dental and retiree medical costs. VSD is below the mean for holidays, standby 

pay, and life insurance coverage for its non-management staff. This creates a potential recruitment 

and retention problem if not corrected to be more competitive. 

 

Findings 

Leanly staffed agencies risk neglecting preventive and BMP activities that eventually affect the 

overall operations of the system. This is due to resources (staff) being redeployed to address 

emergencies, unanticipated projects, and covering for staff that are on extended leaves. This needs 

to be addressed to avoid significant impacts on equipment and staff burnout. 

 

Finding #1: The various functional areas need to be reviewed and the quantity of staff and 

necessary classifications need to be identified to resolve the deficit. Based on the Northeast Guide 
and the Core Attributes, the plant Operations, Maintenance, and Collection System divisions are 
understaffed by 8 FTE. However, some of the workload could be offset by contracting out the 
more complex or infrequent tasks.  
 
Finding #2: Staffing recommendations included in the engineering analysis for the upcoming plant 
upgrades and recycled water projects need to be reviewed. Any additional staff will need to be 
added to the increases already identified so as not to perpetuate the staffing shortage. 
 
Finding #3: Regular work tasks need regular reviews to ensure that efforts are necessary, not being 
duplicated, and are carried out in the most efficient manner while adhering to BMP. 
 
Finding #4: Supervisors are the backup for day-to-day operations, which takes them away from 
their own work and responsibilities. When supervisors are relied upon to fill in for staff that are in 

training, out on leave, or reassigned to other tasks, the District risks key responsibilities not being 
performed and burning out the supervisors. The Operations, Maintenance, and Collection System 

divisions need to resolve this ongoing issue. 
 
Finding #5: Staff should have regular, quality interaction with supervisors. If there is no direct 
supervisor over the staff, or if the supervisor is already tasked with too great a workload, staff are 
not receiving proper oversight and training. The Development Services division does not have a 
supervisor to provide the day-to-day oversight. 
 

Page 40 of 85



9 

Finding #6: Other than the Administration & Finance Services Manager, there is no confidential 
position in Administrative Services to focus on sensitive human resources tasks. The backup for 
this function should not be the General Manager. 
 

Finding #7: Job descriptions within a series of classifications (Maintenance Technician I, II, III) 
should be flexibly staffed and the full range of the series should be developed for all applicable 
classifications. The wage schedule should have a consistent variance between the top step of each 
classification in the series. This should be consistent for all series-based classifications. 

 
Finding #8: The Board has not adopted a policy on wage comparability (mean, 75

th
 percentile, 

etc.). Once adopted, the VSD Wage Schedule should be developed based on this policy. 
 
Finding #9: The Board has not adopted a policy on internal parity or market comparability as the 

determining factor in setting supervisory classification wage schedules. The VSD Wage Schedule 
should be developed based on this policy. 
 
Finding #10: The Wage Schedule does not address the impact of the District’s participation in 
Social Security on take-home pay. 
 
Finding #11: The Board has not adopted a policy on benefits and where the District should be in 
comparison to other local agencies (see Finding #8). 
 

Based on the analysis and findings, VSD’s total staffing level should be between 40 and 50 FTEs, 

which is an additional 10 to 20 positions. Some of the FTEs could be offset by contracting out 

highly specialized or infrequent tasks. In addition to increasing the number of staff, the wage 

schedule needs significant changes and the benefits package, in conjunction with wages, needs to 

be more competitive. The classifications, number, and timing of implementation should be 

discussed as part of the mid-year budget review and FY 2020-21 budget development. 

 

Conclusion 

Valley Sanitary District is staffed by dedicated employees who are committed to their profession as 

well as to the District. VSD has operated in the margins as far as its capacity to perform the day-to-

day tasks necessary to collect, treat, and discharge wastewater for its service area. The staffing level 

does not allow for meeting the day-to-day needs as well as special projects, increasing regulatory 

requirements, and unanticipated breakdowns in the system. It also does not allow for succession 

planning and implementing recycled water. 

 

This report includes findings to assist VSD in addressing the issues highlighted by the data. The 

timing of implementing changes to address these will be governed by the cost and how each change 

fits into the short- and long-term financial projections of the District. Implementing the changes 

will reap long-term benefits for the District and create a stable and reliable workforce. 

Page 41 of 85



  
 

Valley Sanitary District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

September 8, 2020 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
 
THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 
 
FROM:  Ronald Buchwald, Engineering Services Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Award of Contract to Desert Concepts Construction, Inc. for the 

Cabazon Road Slope Stabilization Project 
 
☒ Board Action ☐ New expenditure request ☒ Contract Award 
☐ Board Information ☒ Existing FY Approved Budget ☐ Closed Session 

 
Executive Summary  
The purpose of this report is for the Board of Directors to review and discuss the bid 
submittal from Desert Concepts Construction, Inc. 
 
Strategic Plan Compliance 
This item complies with VSD Strategic Plan Objective 3: Excellent Facilities. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
The total cost of this bid is $40,425. The current budget for the Cabazon Road Slope 
Stabilization project is $250,000 and is included in the FY 2020/21 Capital Improvement 
Budget.  
 
Background 
The slope along the south end of the District’s property is being eroded during flooding 
events which is causing the posts of the chain link fence to become exposed. District 
staff worked with the City of Indio to develop a solution to protect the slope (within City 
right-of-way) and provide a minimal fee permit to perform the work. The work includes 
grading the existing slope and installing filter fabric, gravel base, and rip-rap rock on the 
newly graded slope.  
 
This bid covers only a portion of the overall project as staff wanted to see it before 
moving forward with the entire project. If this initial phase is successful, staff will request 
to move forward with the remaining portion of the project. 
 
 
 

 

Page 42 of 85



Page 2 
 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors award a contract to Desert Concepts 
Construction, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $40,425 for the slope restoration and 
stabilization project. 
 
Attachments 
Attachment A: Desert Concepts Construction bid submittal dated, August 27, 2020. 
Attachment B: Contractor’s license status and detail. 
Attachment C: Contractor’s DIR number information. 

Page 43 of 85



Page 44 of 85



H
Q

B
ad

>
<

m S

_
on

A
m

»w
=

nE
_.

$

.u
E

m
E

m
_.

=
% r\

m

.5
5

w
ém

a
<

3:
cm

5%
8

:8
Si

am
»

B
w

uo
sm

zi
o3&

2
E

ro
m

a
E

d
83

3%
2:

:
E

n
%

8_
.m

§a
a

3
w

B
N

B
D

O
H

m
m

nm
w

m
on

od
x

8
:8

m
ai

n;
ca

.
58

3%
8

%
an

a=
8

cw
:8

33
2.

.2
5

1%
:

W
m ..m

m
an

<
oa

.
m

m
:8

_.
:8

_.
om

~
om

So
93

5
33

‘
30

.5
3.

8
«a

w
n.

E
d‘

om
m

: 2
%

.
ca

8
5:

5
::.

o:
:m

:Q
ca

53
3

5o
m

d_
w

1Q
5

:8
3%

.
.2

8
a

Sa
ab

cm
:5

U
w

oo
no

m
m

Page 45 of 85



U
m

m
m

: O
oz

nm
u?

O
o:

m
~E

n.

ga
la

Pd
.2

:
U

cn
E

:n
=

E
co

95
:0

:
3.

U

n.
o=

:.m
i3

.m
m

m
, c

ow
:

N
.

c=
.

w
as

a
2

E
s?<
>

rE
w

<
m

>
2:

>
w

<
E

m
dc

oa
m

m
ow

aé
ow

z
oo

zm
aw

co
do

z
O

O
2.

E
~>

O
H

O
>

w
>

N
O

2
_~

O
>

U
m

ro
w

am
,_

.>
_w

:L
—

N
>

.E
O

2
w

zo
am

oa
_.

_.
>

w
dm

m
>

2:
di

m
.

?a
w

oo
in

m
o?

A
..O

o=
.§

S.
.v

W
m33

0
3.

5
oi

ow
om

38
:5

M
N

3%
a,

>
E

_.
_m

r.8
8

cw
m

am
w

ag
on

:
:5

<
>

~.
:w

<
m

>
z_

a>
w

<
E

m
da

oa
c.

<
m

u_
.V

m
98

:0
25

2.
m

an
8:

»
no

=
=

.w
o8

_.
<

38
5

u:
=

o€
m

_
E

w
oo

cm
95

5%
m

e
:8

8.
O

>
A

..O
o=

:m
o.

H
o«

..v
.

<
m

U
m

am
O

o=
:m

o8
~

m
8

m
oB

o8
.:o

m
E

&
<

E
:m

:<
ga

ng
8

m
m .

.§
3.

.
85

oo
:a

o:
<

o_
< m

m.
.§

:§
..

E
m

am O
os

?m
or

N
.

_~
m

o:
>

rm
.

N
p

<
m

U
W

m 98
:0

35
35

$3
2

om
m

m
iw

oaE5
3

:5
oo

sm
az

io
s

E
8

_m
e<

m om
E

a
m

ga
om

9:
39

5
2:

:
E

u1
:o

8m
_

E
w

en
om

A
cs

m
w

so
m

m
E

?m
oo

<
8

w
ca

os
m

?o
or

5&
0.

O
»E

.o
::m

E
N

S.

PM
O

o=
.:m

o8
~.

O
oE

§o
8a

.5
5

8
@

98
3:

B
E

m
m

m
s?

o
8m

w
o:

m
E

E
.Q5

:5
w

8<
_m

8=
cm

81
3:

oo
sm

cd
on

os
m

ow
io

om
88

:8
8

3
<

3
oz

:8
8:

3
38

oo
sm

zm
os

m
m

o»
8:

:
5

8%
O

os
?m

or
O

oB
B

o8
«

B
w

ao
m

ai
w8

2
:

a
ox

uo
lo

so
oa

5
w

8<
E

E
m

ca
ow

om
m

8:
m

_
O

os
m

qs
on

os
m

oa
io

om
8

vs
cs

ooz
oi

m
.E

m
:

:
m

an
5

oB
E

o<
m

omo
n

m
cv

oo
s?

m
o?

on
m

:8
8

m
:

bw
oo

m
m

m
nwm

oo
sm

om 25
2:

5:
8

uo
m

m
o?

s
E

m
m

ow
io

om
8

:5
W

38
om

oa
m

oa
a.m

um
E

m
:

W
m

$3
?

2:
:

:8
E

m
a

om
<

m
U

.

3
.

<
m

o
._

8_
.§

8
as

m
m

m
o

O
o=

:m
o8

~
8

8:
82

m
ac

: m
oa

io
am

8
O

c=
m

:.:
2

E
3

55
8:

5:
2.

?u
cu

m
n E

5
93

2.
.m

8E
=

N
m

=
m

W
ea

r
Z

N
SE

E
3.

8.
93

m
mm

m
"8

3:
5

m
i

O
os

qm
oa

. N
A

8
an

O
oa

nm
ow

ao
sm

.
O

os
qm

o?
oa

gm
38

50
9.

88
m

o:
<

o~
m

oo
so

sd
os

zv
.

58
2:

?
m

w
m

vq
do

s?
w

ea
85

m
w

oa
m

o?
dm

so
ow

ea
5

B
ox

.
om

80
3:

05
:

om
:5

88
_

03
:3

2
<

w
E

o.

u.
._

.E
a<

_m

3
oo

E
B

o=
.a

.
12

5
00

33
9

E
or

ao
m

m
an

33
3

E
oo

?o
az

om
5

8:
cm

R
m

oa
os

oo
80

8:
95

am
ao

o:
B

2:
m

.E
or

p?
sm

m
: 9

39
8.

aq
m

es
sm

m
.

m
w

ao
w

m
om

m
os

m
85

80
58

98
80

85
.

E
5

m
§o

_.
B

§a
m

am 3
.5

%
H

39
68

”
O

o=
3.

ae
8~

..m
0:

88
.

W
m

.
O

os
qm

oa
oq

E
on

nm
omm

am
m

m
m

oo
m

.
R

:m
oi

:
co

m
»

m
am

$6
03

0.
8

m
ad

am
: 8

<
m

U
m

: a
ce

.B
?o

a?
m

.
8o

_m
. o

ni
u?

os
r

m
ow

io
om

.
m

am
E

oE
o=

8_
m

am
o:

m
8B

m
Q

$5
1»

so
oo

m
m

m
w

w
8

9:
2

88
&

£§
§<

oo
B

E
o8

:8
_u

8_
.o

o.
.

E
o_

:&
:m

m
: m

::o
88

m
m

am
$9

55
..

sa
oa

m
m

m
awm
om :

5
w

8_
.a

9
om

%
%

:c
8

8
80

02
:3

9
92

9:
»?

83
33

8
50

:8
8

m
m

:5
.a

<
2_

3.
3

m
H

on
:

O
os

?w
o?

w
an

e m
m

%
8:

._
,&

w
sn

m
cm

i8
85

O
os

?m
or

>
=

<
<

o:
n :5

:
co

m
:E

.a
oH8

.
m

an
33

3%
5

m
oo

om
m

m
so

o
<

38
80

m
,c

o<
o a

om
oa

os
oo

m
m

oo
=

B
o=

$.
m

m:
5:

m
mS

o
?a

gs
aa

ga
59

.0
.8

m
am w

so
oa

w
oa

m
eo

m
39

.9
:

cw

Page 46 of 85



29
%

.6
12

.
2

—
.m

1.
o:

:..
E

on
25

C
._

E
.£

Q
_

02
::

m
m

m
a=

%
a

ow
. w
m

1.
o:

:m
=

on
.v

a_
._

.o
::~

=
..n

n 3,
m

.:u
_a

<
oo

m

0o
=

=
,o

_
ea

_u
m

<
_.

=
n=

_o.
, m

=
_5

:_
_.

B
§.

O
o_

:_
...

_9
E

__
W

a_
o:

.e
=

m
_:

.=

88
80

08
.

.:.
:8

0:
m

:m
3:

m
08

0:
:0

m
:0

=
m

03
:8

¢<
3:

n
38

:..
:::

.S
:o

:.:8
m

3:
c8

:
3

m
xa

z.
:>

:
38

0:
8:

:8
88

3:
30

30
03

8:
:8

8:
:

cw
::m

80
88

50
8.

m
08

0:
m

:
00

=
:::

00
m

.:.
3w

.
8:

33
m

8

:8
¢<

3:
m

38
:8

m
3:

c8
:

3
m

xa
cx

::w
.. 3

30
:8

:
88

8
3:

30
30

03
8:

:8
83

cw
:_

:m
88

83
08

.

0.
0

0:
38

3
m

00
08

om
>

0w
0:

3m
8

3
:8

m
00

08
0:

.:
8

33
:»

.
39

:0
:

0:
.

08
30

03
80

08
.38

8
0:

.3
33

:3
:m

3
0:

08
:8

80
M

3
3w

0.
90

:.
33

.3
33

:3
:m

:w
38

38
:8

08
30

03
33

083
03

:8
9.

:8
¢<

3_
n

m
cm

:
:3

c8
03

::
:.3

3
30

08
08

:==
:8

m
mm

c0
: 0

:3
m

8.
m

:::
:0

=
3

:8
:9

:0
:

:m
30

08
8:

3
3:

38
8

33
:

3
23

3m
cw

3
3:

:
0:

3m
80

3:
83

88
03

8:
cw

<
m

0.

m
i:

. 0
03

39
3

m
:3

:
03

83
3

3:

00
30

88
3:

¢<
3:

n
03

:3
:._

:m
00

33
9

23
:3

0.
.

03
:8

3:
33

:8
.w

m
.

c8
m

3=
3m

:8
8:

.:.
89

:<
8

:3
8

0:
.

:8
20

:0
8

8
08

08
8:

0.
00

33
9

.:.
:3

8:
:.0

03
39

3
m

:8
:

03
:3

3
::m

23
:.

3
3:

9
30

03
:3

30
8

2:
:

3w
00

30
:8

98
3m

0:
8:

::8
.0

0=
m

:3
0:

00
m

0:
8:

::8
3

08
:8

9
3:

:8
m

8:
8m

:8
<

8:
00

8:c
w<

m
0.

m
co

: m
0:

8:
::8

m
3

3:
8m

8:
8m

33
w

c8
30

3:
8:

m
m 0

3:
0:

.m
x:

:c
::m

:>
..

3
..w

.. 3
80

:8
:

:8
88

.
3

33
w

c8
08

3:
8:

m
00

m
38

:w3
23

3m
8

:8
00

33
93

.
00

33
93

m
m

88
m.

33
:0

m
:0

:
<

<
3:

n
:m

33
00

30
:9

8:
23

:3
:8

3.
08

38
38

8:
00

33
9

.:.
:3

8
3:

83
03

33
3

8
3w

m
:0

:
00

36
:0

30
5

m
0:

8:
=

:8
.00

:m
:3

9:
03

m
0:

8:
::8

3
08

:8
9

3:
8m

88
m

:8
<

0:
00

8: 0
33

33
8

08
<

:m
:0

=
m0m

:8
00

33
9.

::
:m

:=
:3

m
80

:.
m

0:
30

2:
8:

m
8:3:

m
m

88
::3

<
m

0
2:

:
m

3.
:a

3 :
33

3m
0.

m
:=

8
::

:m
3:

03
9:

03
:3

:
:3

.8
3m

:c
:8

8
:9

83
38

:8
33

00
3

00
39

:3
:

:3
3m

m
8.:9

:m
£8

8:
:8

:
:8

00
33

93
m

:8
::

03
w

8
<

m
0

m
m:

8:
3:

:::
::3

8:
:3

33
m

8m
.

3:
:3

3m
3

08
3:

w
.:

8
m

:3
0:

.
8.

5
3

83
0:

3:
8<

3w
38

3:
3

:m
w0:.

:8
:m

wc
8w

0:
::8

00
33

9
.3

38
3

c8
w

03
: 3w

00
30

:8
98

0m
0c

8:
::8

.00
=

m
:3

9:
0=

m
0:

8:
::8

3
08

:8
9

3:
8m

8:
8m

8m
3c

:m
:8

:
0:

83
3

8
:8

00
33

9.

W
m

.
00

33
93

m
:3

:
03

83
3

3:
¢<

3:
n

03
:3

::m
00

33
9

3
3

m
:::

:::
3:

23
:n

33
:::

8
33

03
.

3:
00

0m
:m

83
2:

:
:8

m
:3

:3
:m

m
88

3:
w

80
0m

3N
8:m

m c
83

m
83

0:
0w

8:c
w 0

8m
8m

m
:0

3:
m

3
:8

33
8

::m
0:

0:
383

:8
m

38
00

03
:8

33
.

00
33

93
80

8m
83

m
3:

33
:3

33
m

:3
:

::
:m

m
:::

8:
3

:8
08

:.8
m

m
:0

:m
:

0m
:3

m
=

80
8m

m
3w

8
03

03
3

:8
¢<

3:
n.

00
33

93
23

33
m

:3
:

3:
83

0:
0w

88
m3:

m
:c

00
33

93
m

m
:8

:
:5

8
m

:m
:0

83
m

:::
3:

8x
03

:8
=

088
03

8:
:

:8
¢<

3:
n

m
m

m
:m

=
8:

8
:8

3.
0:

3:
w

.0
03

39
3

80
8m

83
m

:3
:

F
::m

83
0:

0w
88

m3:
m

:c
00

33
93

m
:3

8
3:

:0
8=

m
8m

.
08

3:
:m

.
.:3

:::
03

:0
3m

3:
30

08
<

3:
mo

m 2
:3

8<
3

33
8

:3
:

38
:8

m
m

:w8
:3

8:
8

03
8:

3
:8

¢<
3:

n

30
:=

:3
m

3
0:

:w
:w

:m
:=

8m
m :L

:0
8:

m
8.3:

:3
m

:0
:

:0
0:

m
8m

3:
:

m
00

8<
m

:mm
cm

: c8
33

33
38

:
:3

0:
m

:0
3

:8
:8

3
0:

.:
:m

00
33

9.
>

m
08

<
::8

:
:.3

3
:8

3:
83

3:
:0

3:
00

08
<

:m
:0

=
m0:
.:

::m
00

33
9.

00
33

93
m

:::
: 03

:3
3.

3
::m

02
:

00
m

:3
:

8x
08

3m
83

:
2:

30
3

8:
3c

3m
83

83
W

03
<

m
0.

3w
23

:n
80

8m
m

3w
8

03
89

38
8

3
03

:m
m

:0
:m

2:
30

:
38

03
:8

:
cw

00
33

93
.m

.
:9

m
83

0:
0w

88
m

.
3

m
=

c0
03

39
3m

.
8:

38
8

00
30

:w
2:

:
:8

33
:3

:
ow

03
8

0_
.0

<
::8

:
m

3
:8

83
.

>
0w

83
0:

0w
882

:8
:m

:9
33

38
:

cw
<

m
0

8
c8

S8
00

08
3:

<
8.

30
03

08
83

.3
9:

83
8

:8
$3

0.
0:

. 0
3m

00
m

3
:8

20
%

3
3w

83
0:

0w
882

:0
:.3

:m
3

8:
u:

m
8m

8
03

83
:

:8
«<

3:
3

3

33
33

m
00

80
3c

:88
<

m
0.

m
:3

:
c8

08
30

:w
83

08
:

:.8
3

:8
08

:8
9

cw
00

33
93

3:
m

:3
:

:9
c8

8-
83

0:
0w

8:0
:

:8
<

<
3:

n.

W
m

.
<

m
0

88
3m

00
33

93
0:

30
3:

80
3:

83
00

33
93

cm
m

:m 3:
00

33
93

:m
:9

3
83

0:
0w

883
.

<
m

0.
>

=
w

m
:::

:0
3:

08
80

38
:

03
:.3

33
m

:8
23

:
M

08
38

:
cw

:.:
m

00
33

9
03

c8
:8

::.
0:

. 0
03

39
3

m
:8

:
3

3:
:3

8m
c8

30
:3

00
33

93
.m

8x
0:

=
m

:<
8 ::

89
:0

=
3:

00
38

:.
00

33
93

m
:3

:
03

w
3:

2m
m

8m
.m

m
:3

:8
m

.
3:

9:
3

33
0=

3m
:8

m
:0

:
08

80
38

:3
00

38
98

:
2:

:
:8

3
08

33
33

08

Page 47 of 85



<
m

U
.m

w
”

o.
ow

:
E

5:

:5

F.
59

:
3.

00
:.

un
:m

..:
_o

=

co
m

m
am
am

03
:3

2
m

oo
m

m 8
95

89
cw

_m
€.

O
oo

qm
oa

oa
m

cm
=co

m
om

w
oo

m
m

c?
m

omm
: B

oo
zm

w
oo

oc
cm

m
ao

om
R

m
w

oo
m

omm
oo

caa
ao

sa
uo

m
m

oo
oo

r
E

or
zs

om
.9:

so
”

:3
3

8”
m

o&
m

_
m

m
oc

nx
w

E
xa

m
.5

85
0

E
x

Sz
cc

or
m

om
.:=
oB

E
ow

B
oE

E
m

sn
m

so
o.m

om 2
2.

83
.

oo
no

oo
om

m
m

os
E

m
?m

oo
o.

.4
...

»
.

<
m

o
m

m
no

om8
oo

m
m

m
om
om

ao
om

€3
3

os
m

w
m

o
O

os
?m

o?
oa

m
m

on
E

ao
oo

om
oio

oo
?m

o?
oa

8
m

E
.E

m
co

:
B

m
81

m
_m

m
om

8
oo

nm
on

o
m

:¢
<

o:
n

m
oo

oz
co

m
8

?c
o

83
5m

m
an

83
:5

3
:2

9:
oo

o?
m

oo
aw

ow :
5

m
os

.
m

om 3
::

oc
o<

o.
m

xo
oo

»m
m

o?
co

iim
o

22
5%

E
:8

O
oo

?m
or

:8
<

m
U

as
:

co
w8

0o
=

.:.
m

o8
rm

m3
:

oo
om

ao
am

so
o

m
om :5

m
m

nm
m

m
oa

on
w

oo
nm

o?
ow

oo
oo

cw
E

a
O

os
?m

o?
on

3.
:5

m
ow

so
omm

om
oc

cm
m

ao
om

B
as

in
g

cw
m

am
O

oo
qm

or
=

5
c?

oé
32

80
8

oo
ao

oo
m

w
m

oo
3

m
oo

oa
m

oo
o

39
oo

n?
oo

m
w

no
s

oa
oi

m
w

oo
m

m
an

m
o?

c E
:5

O
oi

nm
oo

om
O

oa
oo

om
m

ao
sm

om §
<

B
9:

m
.m

._
>

33
3

ow
O

oa
oo

oo
m

m
m

oo
.

>
m

oo
om

ao
am

ao
o

m
om o

om
w

od
om

so
a

ow
:5

¢<
o:

n

m
an

si
on

€3
5

<
m

o
m

m
m

oo
m

8
om

w
O

oo
qm

on
on

:5
‘_

Jo
8_

02
:3

9
vi

no
m

A
o_

$m
.o

o
U

o=
»_

.m
A

A
§w

o8
_

O
oo

?m
o»

§8
..o

32
3%

ac
»:

m
zo

c Bo
om

s.

as
:

co
m

:c
_.

o9
8

m
&

.:m
3o

oB oc
m

m
cm

i8
:5

m
oo

so
w

c?
a8

m
om

"E
m

O
os

qm
oa

om
€3

8:
oc

m
om

o
2%

:
m

3.
~o

<
oam

oo 3
:8

5
m

o<
m

=
oa cw

<
m

o.

w
m

p
.

E
n«

co
¢<

o:
n

W
mm

oc
oa

io
m

oa
om o

oB
o_

oa
o=

3

33
as

om
_a

m
m o

io
oo

m
m

9%
,

<
m

o
<

3:
oi

m
om

o
w

ow u
m

w
no

oi3
.

So
1_

Jo
8_

O
oo

?m
oa

w
lo

o
E

oo
o

oo
B

w
_o

m
o=
m

om m
oo

8<
m

_ c
w<

m
o

om
:5

¢<
o:

n.
:

E
a

¢<
o:

n
cm

m
os

aa
a

m
om o

oB
E

oa
oo

E
B

om
a

:5
:

.3
3

Q
3

o?
oo

om
a
m

m
w

m
.

<
m

o
<

3:
w

ow
O

oo
nB

o8
H

on
m

B
oo

m
zw

cm
m

w
m

m
m
om

oi
ao

m3
33

5.
O

:
om

co
m

om
o

:8
E

9
E

5
om

wom
ow

oc B
oi

c.
O

oo
?m

o?
om

as
:

m
uc

us
: 8

<
m

o
W

5

:o
::N

om
oo

uz
om

m
oo

w
ow o

m
w

zo
oiE

:5
33

3
%

%
=

&
cw

<
m

o
aa

oa
am

:5
m

B
oS

:
om

<
<

o:
A

8§
.§

&
m

w
so

o
oo

B
B

o:
oo

B
o=

..
om

H
co

<
<

o1
n

om
m

w
so

o
:5

5m
m w

ao
m

no
m

m
w

m
w

oo
os

r
w

co
m

o vo
w

m
oo

co
m

ao
om

as
:

co
2.

35
:3

cw
oi

m
os

oo
23

%
cm

39
58

cw
::m

O
oo

?m
oa

m
om

m
so

c Sc
am

%
9_

B
S§

§_
m

m<
m

o
B

ow
88

:8
.

O
oo

:.o
o8

w
as

:
8:

5
:3

:
H

co
/Z

ol
a

w
on 2

3%
om

w
ao

o?W
m

m
on

so
m

ao
m

co
mc

om
:m

oo
nm

om "
cm

:E
a

B
m

81
w

_m
:m

8m
m

8
m

83
m

£5
3

5&
om

8m
.

O
os

?m
?o

m
B

ow
ca

25
58

9
8

m
cn

am
c

m
Q

08
28

m
oc

om
io

3.
<

m
_:

om
co

o:
B

nc
om

?ow
<

m
U

m
om

5
m

an
:m

oa
n:m

om
m

on
o mm

<
m

o
m

cm
z R
ns

om
rm

co
<

<
E

m"c
o

ao
m

o?
?o

m
.

so
:

30
3.

o<
o~

co
m

n_
. ow

om
r

E
5

m
: 0

92

Q
so

oo
m

om
E

<
o_

<
on

_
E

oa
oa

8
om

oi
ao

m
cm

m
omw

ow a
o?

od
iis

m
:5

m
B

oE
:

om
om

om
ao

m
m

om
w

ao
oa

m
.

<
m

o
m

cm
: mo

io
é

25
w

ow
m

: o
m

om
w

om
m

om
w

qo
oo

m m
on

co
m

?mE
m

oo
oa

m
so

o
2:

:
:5

E
oi

m
co

om
m

om
3:

:
3

m
oo

ao
: :3

ow
:5

oa
ao

aa
E

23
O

oo
?m

o?
C

om
o.

Z
o

om
om

m
om

m
om

w
so

oi
m<

3:
ca

33
0

m
om¢

<
o:

n
oo

?
oo

3E
o8

mE
m

oo
om

am
oo

o
s?

c
m

om
O

oo
?m

or

m
m

m
O

oo
qw

o?
W

o?
oo

m
o?

.3
9:

om
oc

m
E

o~
o<

om om
om

no
m

m
um

w
?o

om
R

ao
om

rm
<

o ca
m

eo
s»

3&
0

25
co

oo
ei

a
m

om 3
85

3
cw

<
m

o.m
om

"c
a

83
33

2
,5

:
ca

35
8

O
oo

?m
o?

oh
>

:
02

:3
2

H
og

as
w

m
oas

:
co

m
?o

m
m

oa
w

on 3
5

8
O

os
?m

oe
ou

83
m

:c
oo

:.:
m

o8
~m

oc
m

m
sw

on
8

95
.0

3;
Pe

so
O

oo
qm

om
9%

m
oo

ao
o 33

.

m
.m

.A
9:

2
W

om
oo

ao
om

.c
o

m
on

m
ao

o
8

02
:3

9
m

om
os

ao
om

.
<

m
o

B
ow

ga
ng

$0
3

oo
oc

E
om

ao
m

mo
m

w
?o

ao
n

8:
05

:
oo

oo
m

m
aw8

30
89

<
m

o
W

om
b8

m
m

co
om

cm
o

ow
C

V
E

sa
aa

am
?m

m
om<<

E
oc

cw
<

oo
oo

m
ca

m
om

om
:8

.5
8

om
E

n
m

oo
co

m
ao

o
m

ow o
m

w
?o

on
A

Bm
ow

m
?o

m
ox

oo
om

oa
cw

<
m

o
E

oo
m

m
od

dw
om

m
ow

om
O

o:
.R

m
o8

m
.m
oc

zm
m

m
os

m
:3

2
:5

02
.3

2
23

%

Page 48 of 85



Page 49 of 85



02
:

32
0:

cm
<

<
o_

._
A

<
5»

W
e

_.
am

o=
B

:.<
a

m
m

<
an

:§=
«m

_E
__

0o
_:

:.n
8_

..m
?n

_.
om

n=
§:

<
a

O
cs

qu
n.

38
..

33
30

:

:8
.

:5
8

m
m@

83
8:

88
8.

E
:8

88
5.

.
cm

:8
8:

cm
:8

03
:8

2
cw

O
o3

8o
8h

<
m

_u
58

%
83

5.
38

8
:8

02
:8

3
:B

B
o:

88
_<

<
<

::o
E

8:
8.

3.
5%

89
88

:u
w

<
B

Q
:8

:8
O

oE
8o

8~
E

:8
m

B
o.

.=
:

8o
8m

m
m

J.
8

.8
9

<
m

U
.m

8m
:_

:=
m

m
w

im
m

om
.

m
s:

E
m

:
uc

nm
so 8

%
o:

8n
m

<
m

:m
E

8
88

:8
8

m
m

is
m

?
O

o:
.:m

o8
H

.
O

o§
8o

8~
39

%
:2

.8
3E

=
m

8
:E

m
03

:8
2

88
83

5
Sa

m
e.

E
E

8
88

3
:E

m
02

:8
2

E
m

8:
E

=
m

8:
8

S8
8

on
E

:8
3

m
m
30

3:
8?

<
m

c
55

%
@

88
8.

E
8:

m
8:

88
8

m
s: 8

m
ac

: 88:
2

m
m:

33
88

8:
8

m
E

.8
::m

.8
.m

Q
.<

88
m m

:B
:m

~8
:5

8
83

88
8:

.
12

1:
9.

:
:E

m
03

:8
2

E
m

8:
E

:m
8:

m
m

:u
8<

E
8:

.<
m

U
39

%
8:

58
O

oE
8o

8~
8

@
83

8
m

: :E
m

:8
:

om
:::

E
m

8:
:o

o:
:8

E
m

.8
8.

.:m
m

8B
m

.:8
€E

m
m

.
B

88
18

8
om

0.
90

:.
38

:2
c8

38
:

ow
9:

:
E

x
O

oE
8o

8~
8

85
:8

8:
05

2:
:

:m
_8

~8
_.

B
m

:8
om

:E
m

00
38

2.

P3
.

9:
8:

O
oE

8o
8~

88
:E

8m
:8

»
:

rm
m o

oB
::o

8:
:8

<
<

o:
n 8

9:
8:

88
5.

O
oE

8o
8~

m
rm

: mo
8:

?
<

m
U

E
<

<
1:

:m
m

s:
m

rm
: wE

.E
m

:m
: 8

83
m

s:
58

8%
:

88
m

m
om

8:
58

:
8%

H
E

m0
9:

89
.

<
m

U
m

:m
: :8

8=
w

o=
E

m
ce

e::8
¢<

o:
n.

:a
:8

¢<
o:

n

m
m :2

m
o8

_u
8E

o
8

<
m

U
.<

m
U

m
rm

: E:
8m

8
8

O
o=

.8
o8

~
E

€1
:=

m
:8

m
:8

o:
:ou

ow
:o

=
m

om
88

m
Se

¢<
o:

n
¢<

E
o:

m
8

=
=

m
m

:m
w

m
o8

J~
ow

E
oo

B
w

88
.O

88
O

o=
»8

o8
m

88
8:

:8
m

:8
:

:
E

8

oo
B

:8
8:

:8
E

oo
:6

88
om

c:
m

m
:m

m
m

o8
J~

¢<
o:

n.
O

o:
.8

o8
~

58
%

8n
8m

.n
m

8-
E

m
:8

o:
o:

3.
<

m
o.

Q
88

:8
¢<

o:
n

E
m m

o8
:8

E
88

<
m

U
.<

m
U

m
:m

: ©m
<

8
O

oE
8o

8H
:8

A
dm

: 0
3:

82
W

30
0 8

B
m

E
E

m8
_8

B
a.

8m
m

8%
E

50
8:

€E
o:

<
m

U
5.

5%
8

m
E

:o
:8

:
om

E
82

8:
cw

E
S

8

88
8.

w
m

<
B

8E
om

88
5:

3.
3.

80
%

:8
8

O
o:

.8
o8

~
m

rm
:8

:8
8

E
w

oo
oa

m
so

o
2:

:
m

oo
no

s .23
So

:8
O

m
:8

_.
E

m
:u

:E
8

02
:8

2
02

8.

PS
.

<
m

o
88

8%
.8

m
:m

:m
8m

u
ca

:3
om

E
m

m
om

m
m

so
o.

8
m

o»
m

m
:m

8:
u8

m
o:

8:
<

om
om

:8
:8

:.o
_.

B
m

:o
8

3,
»E

m
02

:8
9

A
:<

m
U

.m
W

8n
8m

8=
S:

<
oJ

.<m
U

.m
:~

ou
8m

8=
8:

<
om
g:

:8
8

:8
uo

éa
a

8
m

o»
o:

88
:.

om
<

m
U

w
owu

:
vc

?o
m

om
C

SQ
O

H H
E

m 0
03

.8
2.

O
o3

8o
8H

m
g:

:2
m

on
o?

E
89

8:
om

38
8

$0
8

8%
co

m
m

on
03

:9
.

:8
:

<
m

U
.m

W
8w

8m
8=

8:
<

o
ow

:2
ow

E
m

55
:8

.

m
.5

.
W

88
8

m
§.

:=
m

:8
¢<

o:
n.

O
o:

n8
o8

~
m

rw
: m

:E
::

E
<

<
1:

=
m:8

8:
8.

@
:m

::o
m

:o
=

m
m

s:
93

81
88

8
9a

:m
un

ou
om

om
8:

8m
o:

8:
<

o
<

<
:o

m
rm

: 8
m

:E
oQ

8
:8

8<
8€

m
s:

m
€:

8<
m

:o
m <

m
U

A
:0

oE
8o

8~
.m:

~8
:8

m
8_

:m
:<

8J
.

:u
o:

o€
E

m
w

w
E

.o
<

m
:

E
x<

m
U

.O
oE

8o
8H

.m
W

ov
8m

8=
8:

<
om
rm

: E2
8

8:
m

E
:o

1Q
8

8.
38

83
8:

:
m

o»
on

.8
:8

:.
3.

O
o3

8o
8~

m
ow N

: u
c?

om
om

=
32

.E
m

09
:8

0:
.

O
o_

:8
o8

~.
m

W
8w

8m
8:

8:
<

8m
:m

: m
sc

on
im

o8.
:

E
89

:8
¢<

o:
n.

:m
8m

E
m

co
m

»
m

E
:

8:
38

3:
8?

8:
m

g:
8

8m
co

=
m

E
8w
onm

:o
o:

m
:.:

o:
o=

:8
m

:m
.

:8
:8

:m
.

8o
E

E
n:

8m
.m
on

ca
so

omm
s: :

8o
8:

:8
m

SE
m

om :
8

m
m

:m
m

88
Qoo

o:
E

8:
o=

om
m

: w
oa

os
mom

:8
¢<

o:
n

E
B

Q
Q

. :E
m

03
:8

9.
O

oE
8o

8u
.m

W
o_

u8
m

8:
8:

<
o

m
rm

: 8<
o8

E
:

:3
8

8
:8

:u
8:

.o
Q8

:
81

:2
8

on
E

m
ao

m
m

m
so

o.
28

m
g:

8
m

oo
8:

8E
88

<
m

U
.m

g:
_8

:8
m

8E
a

2.
5

¢<
o:

n
m

8
E

m
: :=

8m
88

8%
¢<

o:
n

m
m 8

:8
m

8m
m

m
s:

3
8%

::8
E

N
:

95
%

83
30

88
ow

m
cc

oo
=

.m
8o

8~
om

O
o3

8o
8~

E
m

H
88

83
M

:
:8

¢<
o:

n
m

8.
>

w
8=

m
o8

8E
mm

ow
8m

w
o=

m
:.c

8
m

:H
8w

<
:m

:o
=

.
m

oo
ou

8E
88

<
m

U
.m

rm
: .8

:8
8

m
om Q

dn
w

m
os

ow
¢<

o:
n

€E
o:

55
%

8
82

58
:.

m
:o

:E
O

oE
8o

8~
83

8
8

or
w

zm
o

:m
O

o=
..8

o8
a.

m
:w

ou
8m

o:
8:

<
8.Oo

E
8o

8~
m

g:
@

83
8

:8
88

:5
8:

03
m

m
8o

:.8
:

M
89

8
8.

:
O

E
B

:
<

m
U

.m
€1

8:
m

E
.8

<
m

:.

W
5

.
m

_§
_a

m
sw

€8
m

:o
:

m
am

a 8m
m

~&
=

m:8
:8

m
E

=
m

cm

86
03

3.
m

a
om

:8
:8

<
:m

8=
mo

w :
E

m
09

:8
9

on
$1

8:
on

on
: E

m
3.

o:
o:

m
3.

05
»

<
m

c.:
8

Page 50 of 85



rc
m

m E5
D

E
E

.
5

,2
_:

r.
9.

,
62

.:
:2

.

§_
:_

::=
:

W
m

::.
nE

o_
:m

00
0.

00
0

m
:0

:
:0

00
00

00
00

8
<

w
U

.m
W

00
00

m
02

0:
<

0.
€:

0m
0

00
00

30
0

m
:0

:
:0

:0
00

00
m 0

00
0

00
00

00
08

0.

W
K

.
00

00
00

08
0

m
:0

:
:0

00
m

00
0m

:::
0

80
0:

8m
m

00
0

00
00

0m
0

2:
00

:
00

0%
00

0m
0 02

00
.0

:0
00

80
0

om
0:

0
€0

0:
0m

00
008

:0
00

00
.00

0.
00

00
:0

00
00

0
00

. 0
:0

0:
0B

00
0m

.
00

0.
00

00
00

%
00

m
00

0m
00

00:
.m

00
_:

0m
2:

00
:

00
0%

00
0m

0 00
:0

00
00

02
00

00
00

0:
0

00
0m

00
00

00om
0:

0
$0

0:
:2

:
0:

0
m

00
00

0m
8:

0
00

00
00

00
000

0
00

00
00

00:<
<

m
0.

E
0€

0<
00

.
00

00
00

08
0

m
:0

:
:0

00
m

00
0m

::_
00.

00
00

00
0m

0
00

05
00

00
0?00

:m
00

:<
>

2m
00

. 0
00

.5
0:

00
0:

0
0.

00
0:

0m0
0

m
00

.0
00

:8
00

. 0
:0

00
00

00
00

00 0
0:

:0
00

20
02

00
00

. 0
00

%8
0:

0
00

:0
2

00
.0

.2
0

00
00

00
03

.5
00

.0
:0

02
0:

00
00

00
2

00
:0

0
0m

m
00

0:
._

00
:0

00
00

.
:0

0:
0

0<
00

0
00

, 0
00

00
m

0
00

00
00

00
00

?
00

0m
00
:<

:>
2m

00
. 0

00
.:

<
m

0
00

0%
20

00
00

00
000

::m
00

00
00

2
00

00
0:

00
0
C

V 0
0m

m00
<

00
00

0
20

30
0

00
:0

0.

P;
00

00
00

05
00

00
0.

.0
0

0:
0

00
:0

2
00

:0
2

00
00

00
00:

0\
:0

2.
00

00
00

08
0

m
:0

:
00

00
00

.
00

00
00

00
?00

0
:2

0
<

m
0.

00
m2

.:0
00

_m
.

0m
._

00
0m

. 00
00

8<
00

m
.

<
0_

02
00

0m
00

0
0m

00
0m0

00
0

00
0

:0
00

00
m

m 0
.0

00
0 0

00
00

0
0:

0:
00

00
m

.
00

00
00

0m
.

00
:m

0m
om

00
:0

0.
00

m
0m

. 0x
00

0m
0m

.:0
:0

:J
:

8m
m

.
00

00
0m

0
00

00
0.

00
%

.
:0

0,
0

00
09

03
:8

00
00

00
?0

0
00

0m
00

m
.0

00
:0

00
0m€0

00
m

m
:_

00
00

:.0
0

00
%

00
00

00
0

00
m

00
m00
0

0m
00

00
00

00
00

8
00

%
02

m
.0

00
:m

m
00

0m 00
SE

00
_0

0m
00

00
02

00
. 0

00
00

00
80

.3
0m

._
0_

0_
m

. 0w
:0

00
m

.
00

00
_0

<
00

m
. 0m

02
m

.00
0m

0_
00

2m
00

0
00

20
00

80
m

00
0m

00
m

02
00

00
00

00
00

02
80

2:
:

0:
0

00
08

00
00

00o
m 0

:0
$0

0:
00

0:
:m

00
00

00
2.

00
0:

:0
00

m02
:0

2
00

00
00

00
0:

0
00

00
00

000
0.

0:
00

0m
0n

00
0.

00
_ 00

00
0m

0m00
0

02
80

00
00

.0.
00

m0
00

2:
00

00
00

00
00

0m
_.

.m
00

0
0x

00
0m

0m
.0

00
00

00
80

m
:0

:
00

00
00

,0
0

00
20

00
80

.m
02

0
00

m
0. 0

x0
00

m
0

00
0

0m
:. 0

0%
00

0
0:

m
:0

:
08

00
m

00
0 m

cz
m

.
00

.0
00

m
00

2:
00

_0
m

0_
00

00
00

00
0m

m
00

90
0%

50
0

0:
00

00
0%

:0
:0

0:
m

:0
00

:0
m

:0
20

0
0m

00
0m

0
<

m
0.

:m
00

00
08

0m
.

0w
:0

:0
_m

0m
._

00
0m

. 00
00

:0
00

0? 0
m

00
0m0

0
<

0E
20

00
m

.
00

00
00

08
0

m
:0

:
00

%
00

0
m

00
m

@
00

%
_.

=
0m

00
00

0.0
20

00
00

00
00

00
0:

00
00

0%
:0

00
00

00
00

0m
00

0m
0

<
m

0
00

Fm
00

00
08

0m
.

0m
._

0:
0:

m
.

0m
._

00
0m

. 00
00

:0
<

00
m

.
0m

00
0m0

0
<

0_
00

00
00

m
. 00

00
%

m
00

:
m

0?
00

:0
0

00
2:

00
:0

m
0:0

00
00

00
00

m
.

00
00

00
08

0
m

:0
:

00
00

0:
00

m
0 <

m
0

00
0

m
m 0

00
00

80
m

.
00

am
00

0:
m

v
00

.m
00

0m
.

00
00

:0
<

00
m

.
0m

00
0m0

00
80

<
o_

02
00

0m
, 0

.0
0 0

0%
00

0
0:

0m
m

: 0x
00

0m
0m

00
0

00
m

0m
00

00
00

00
:0

00
00

:
00

.0
:0

00
00

00
00

00
00

0
0:

00
0:

00
:

00
:0

00
0q

00
00

0m0
:0

00
00

00
05

0
:0

00
00

00
03

00
0.

00
00

00
08

0.
m

3:
00

3:
8

00
00

00
05

0
m

:0
:

m
00

<
:<

0 0
00

00
00

0000
00

00
00

00
00

0m
:0

m
00

00
00

2
00

0
m

:0
:

02
:0

00
20

02
00

8
00

m
:0

00
00

00
00

00
0m

.
0.

00
%

.
00

00
0<

00
:0

0:
0

U
0m

00
:0

.r
5

m
0<

00
00

0m:0
00

0.
00

00
08

0m
.

00
.0

00
0?

0m
._

00
0m

.
00

00
_0

%
00

m
.

0m
02

m
.00

<
0_

:2
00

0m
.

0:
0

00
::

:0
0:

8
00

00
00

08
0.

m
00

00
00

03
00

00
0

0:
:m

00
00

m
:0

:
:0

0:
00

00
00

00
00 :<

0?
:

00
00

m
00

:0
0

30
0

0x
00

00
.0

0m00
00

00
08

0
00

00
0 0

00
00

00
:w

00
m

U
0m

32
0m

00
0m

0
U

0m
32

.m
m

0:
0 0

0
00

.0
<

0 0
0m

:m
00

0000
<

<
::n

:_
00

m
00

00
02

.

0.
00

:0
m

00
00

00

W
30

00
.

00
00

00
08

0
m

:0
:

02
02

00
00

00
0

€0
0:

00
00

0
0:

0m
00

00
00

2
00

0:
0

:0
m

00
03

00
003

00
00

0
m

0.
0m

w
00

80
<

8
<

m
0

0:
00

0
:0

m
m

00
00

00
0:

00
m

00
00

00
00

00
00

000
00

00
0:

0m
m

02
80

.
:0

00
00

00
0.0

02
00

08
0

m
:0

:
02

0:
02

00
%

m
::0

00
00

00
80

8
02

00
00

00
$0

0:
00

00
%

m
0:

00
00

00
2

02
:

0
:0

m
00

03
00

00
30

00
00

m
0:

m
0.

00
80

<
8

<
m

0
0:

00
2:

0
m

0:
00

20
00

80
:0

m
m

00
:0

00
0:

00
m

00
00

00 0
09

00
000

00
00

00
m

m
00

:0
0.

W
E

N
.

00
20

00
80

m
:0

:.
00

:m
0x

00
0m

0.
00

00
00

0
00

0
00

00
00

00
80

0:
0

00
00

.0
00

00
.0

:0
00

20
02

:0
m

:0
00

00
0m

00
0m

.
0_

00
00

m
80

00
_.

00
00

m8
00

0m
00

m0
0

00
00

0m
0m8

00
00

00
000

0:
00

:
00

0%
00

:m
00

00
00

00
:0

00
00

00
00

0
2:

:
0:

0
00

08
00

00
000

0.
0:

0
€0

0:

:0
00

00
00

0
:<

00
00

00
08

0.0
m

0m
00

0m
.

00
00

0m
00

00
.0

<
0m

.
00

00
03

08
00

m
0:

00
00

00
08

0m
.0

00
00

00
80

m
:0

:
0:

m
0 0

08
00

00:
00

.m
m m

::0
00

00
02

00
m

8
00

00
00

0
00

0
00

00
00

00
0:

0
m

0_
00

00
m

00
00

00
0.

00
0:

0

Page 51 of 85



Page 52 of 85



O
o<

a_
.m

m
o

m
a E

.H
:G

:
c:

=
E

__
.n

m
v.

.
20

w
2;

.
C

.=
:u

:o
=

m

1q
o_

.$
,a

c_
:._

5%

m
E

,=
:n

n
W

Q
o=

:a
:m

>
8»

.
E

_:
._

:
c:

:m
:_

.S
¢

<
m

q:
.:E

:o
:

o_
. O

o<
o_

.m
a

o.
a.

o.
o

<
<

o:
no

~m
. O

oB
co

=
m

m
:o

=
m

s:
m

B
c_

o<
o~

.m
E

m
:::

<
1_

.:o
E

m
cw

ow
m

:m
: m

m
no

o
8

2m
:<

o
m

: :m
::mo

m m
c:

8m
m

:o
= £2

2
<

m
U

.:m
::o

o8
~m

.
o:

.:o
::m

.
om

m
oo

qm
.

oB
:_

o<
oo

m
. w

m
oa

mm
s:

<
o:

::o
oH

m
8:

8m
m

om
:3

:
:3

2
::o

:o
_.

B
m

ow
::o

:.m
:B

=
oo

U
O

E
O

K
2:

8:
m

lm
o :

83
23

:
33

3%
:<

O
o_

:8
o8

~.

m
.a

.§
>

:
O

oa
oa

m
m

?.m
oo

::_
m

..=
.m

:o
o uo

:o
<~

o:
::o

: 32
:::

m
00

38
9

m
:m

::o
25

.3
8

8
m

8:
o

:5
:

C
V o

o<
oB

m
o
m

:w
: so

::
o

m
:m

:o
=

:o
:.

<
o:

:o
:.~

o:
:o

o:
om

om
=

oo
_o

: o
xo

om
:

m
m

oa :5
?

G
3

m
m

w
m

:1
3

21
:3

8:
8

,3
oo

::.
_o

:
35

:.
38

3
B

oo
n:

~o
n:

om
:o

:.
:m

m:
oo

=
m

:<
o:8

<
m

U
wm

s:
A

8
S2

m
m

:=
~o 8

oo
:::

<2
::

ao
w

oa
smon

o:
:o

a
u8

<
:m

8=
mom

::o
_o

o:
o:

om
.

:8
:::

=
m

:n
om

o:
omo

m 2
m

Q
m

=
:o

m
.m
:m

:so
:
m

m
w

oo
:

oo
<

o3
m

o
:n

o<
::o

:
8

<
m

U
.:m

::o
o8

~m
.o:

.:o
::m

.
ow

m
oo

am
.

oB
w

_o
<

oo
m

. w
m

oi
mm

s: <
o:

::o
oH

m
.

W
3:

_w
:::

on
m

.\>
:

E
m

:
3:

2
W

on
S~

oB
o=

:m
.:J

:o
:::

:o
~m

<
w

: E
m

:E
m

sa
?o

o
m

:m
: :8
<

::o
E

m
:<

m
U

:o
sm

?o
:

m
m8

m
m
w

w
w

oo
.

F
m

:n
::o

=
.

::o
E

m
ca

oa
m

:m
: 2m

:<
o
w

: :m
::mo

w
m

::8
m

m
:o

:m
m

?s
m

:<m
U

.

m
.3

.m
.

>
:

:_
m

:B
=

oo
m

on
im

o:3
2

:::
mm

oo
:o

: m
:m

:oo
s:

m
:. m

8=
:m

~:
m

o_
uw

3:
os

om
:_

m
:~

o:
m :

8<
:m

8=
m

.:5
m

:::
8=

.
m

co
: Em

cn
m

so
o

m
:m

:so
:o

oH
:m

:_
B

Q
m

co
oa

:
:B

:m
:o

:m
05

:.o
m

oo
w

o
3.

:8
:o

o:
o:

m
w

m
oa

o:
8

<
m

U
.:m

..:
~o

o8
~m

.
9a

:o
::m

.o
w

m
oo

w
m

.
oB

E
o<

oo
m

.
m

m
oi

mm
s: <

o:
=

:o
o~

m
.

w
ao

.
>

:
w

8:
:o

o:
m

. os
m

m
so

ow
m

.
oo

=
m

::m
::m ow

:o
m

:m
:

u8
:.o

m
m

8:
m

:m
~o

8E
o:

.3
2O

oE
B

o8
~

m
:m

:w_
m

o E
oo

sa
o

us
: 5

35
8:

:
w

on m
vo

le
:

om
:<

o
C

V
w

om
nm:.o

:o
2:

.m
oo

B
E

o:
o:

om
::o

00
33

0:
.

03
.0

3
m

m
: o:

:m
m

8:
m

:m
:::

<E
m

sn
m

so
o 2

::
m

:5
:

cm
so

:
_o

m
m E

m
:

m
rg

ob
oo

co
mo

oo
c?

os
oo

.
:J

::m
E

m
cu

m
so

om
:m

: sm
ao

<
m

u.
:m

::o
o8

~m
.

9o
:o

::m
.o

m
m

oo
am

.
o:

68
<

oo
m

. m
m

oi
mm

s:
<

o_
E

:o
o~

m
m

mm
:::

8=
m

_
m

s:
E

m
sa

om
m 2

::
ao

m
w

oo
:

8
¢<

o:
n

w
oa

m
od

do
a.

m
s: m

:m
: o:
:o

~2
:m

o
oo

B
E

<2
::

m
: ao

n:
:o

B
o=

:mo
m :

::m
m

oo
:o

=
.

93
.:

U
o:

:o
:::

om
8:

:
m

o:
..:

:
.

>
=

<:
o:

:o
:::

om
om

m
o?

.
E

m
ca

oa
H

o:
o=

:o
:m

Sa
m

:
:o

:o
o_

m
~o

: 8
m

s:
m

E
u8

<
o:3

2<
m

U
.

O
o:

?m
o_

..o
~

m
:m

: m
cm

nm
ao

o
:5

:
N

:
:5

8:
8:

ow
<

m
c.

o:
:o

:
C

V
::o

E
m

za
oa

m
:m

:ao
m

co
o on

o:
B

:::
o

m
co

: :o
::o

:::
om

ca
m

o?
.

:.m
:n

o:
~o

8=
:o

=
m

m
m

oo
m

uo
gm

<
m

U
.:

m
::o

o8
am

.o
:.:

o:
:m

.
03

8;
.

o:
:u

_o
<

oo
m

. m
m

o?
mm

s:
<

o:
::o

o~
m

w
ow

A
BO

oH
:§

o8
~

m
:m

: w
no

os
w

o
m

:0
5:

m
:m

B
H

:o
o:

H
m

w
m

w
ao

s:
om

8m
m

om
m

s:
~o

::o
:

:=
<

om
:m

m
:o

:
oo

m
:m

.
o_

m
:B

m
m

s: m
:B

::m
.:m

:<
o

m
s:a

om
os

m
o

ox
uo

nm
om

.

w
am

.
:g

m
:S

=
oo

a
8

:o
E

m
oo

:2:
:

E
m

sn
oa

m 2
::

w
oc

?o
s:

>
._

<
_.

w
om

?m
8:

:m
so

_o
m

m E
m

:
>

”<
=

.
:o

o:
m

o:
8

:0
::m

:_
om

m
E

O
m

::.
o:

:m
.m

s:
m

m
:m

m
m

o8
Q

8
::o

.<
m

U
.

w
am

.
O

o:
:B

o8
~

m
:w

: :5
5:

<
m

o
2:

:
o:

m
:::

oo
a:

:o
m

:o
m

om
E

m
ca

m
so

om
s:o

::o
H

m
oB

o_
:m

o:
.o

o:
=

m
oo

<
o3

m
o

3:
88

:
32

:::
m O

os
?m

o:
on

33
;

m
m

:m
m

m
o8

Q
8

<
m

U
.

:;:
o

oo
_.

::o
w

:o
m m

s: o
::o

~m
oB

o:
:m

w
on o

m
o: E

m
?m

so
o
uo

:o
<m

:m
::o

3:
8

32
m

w
on

m
osm

:::
o:

N
o:

32
:8

:
E

m
ca

oa
8

:8
:

oo
<

oB
m

o
on

:m
:o

:m
:nm

s:
m

:m
::o

on
38

;

m
:E

u:
o:o

m
m

E
u8

<
o:3

.<
m

o.
>

:
oo

::.
_o

w
:o

m
m

a:
o:

:o
w

m
oB

o_
:m

Sa
m

:
:o

~o
oo

:<
o:m

s:
m

E
.8

<
o:

3.
<

m
o

:o
8H

o
23

:
oo

B
B

o=
oo

m
.

<
m

U
~o

m
o~

.<
om

::o
:m

::8
no

ni
uo

oo
B

E
o:

ovo
Q

.::
o:

oo
cm

om
om

m
: H

o:
=

:o
:Em

sn
m

so
o :o

:o
:o

m
.

m
: m

s:
:5

8.

Page 53 of 85



an
E

ns
.

m
ea E
na

ao
zm

8.
3.

8
m

:c
oo

:~
8.

o8
am

.
>

:
m

:c
oo

:§
88

~m
m

cm
: :82

:8
m

oa
::o

::o
:.m

om
::m

m
oo

:o
: 83

3
oo

H
:H

:o
:o

::m¢<
o:

n.
::

m
%

::o
:.

O
o:

:S
o8

a
m

cm
:::o

:::
o

w
: m

:c
oo

:»
B

o8
nm

m
m

::m
E

o:
m

:::
o~

xm
:o

:o
:o

mon
:5

:
93

;:
m

ow
m

am
ao

oo
w

::o
:8

m
m

::
o:

:o
~m

oB
o:

H
m

m
omo

m
o:

m
:c

oo
::m

o8
:

>
:

oo
<

oB
m

om
m

omm
:c

oo
::$

o8
H

m
m

g:
co

m
:c

_.
oo

.H8
m

:c
m :

8
~o

.::
ao

B
o:

»m
m

S8
:

:2
3.

m
. 3

w
o:

: W
oo

cw
o?

oi
m

.

P3
,:

.
45

¢
w

m
w

?o
aw

o:
: a

on
so

m
no

m
cw

<
m

:
m

:: ~
o:

.o
8:

oo
:

::
m

oo
:o

: N
A

m
co

<
o.m

::
::o

o€
oS

8:
39

.9
5

cw
33

3:
8.

m
:m

:co
ox

oo
?o

m
m

::
:8

<
E

o:
cw

O
o:

Q
m

o8
~

8
<

m
:

oo
:o

:§
o:

:w
2:

:
::m

00
:5

8:
::

m
:

3:
05

3
89

:8
:

cw
<

m
:

m
:::

: w
:5

:
:8

<
E

o:
om

m
::8

<
o:

cw
<

m
:.

Z
o

:m
w

B
o:

~5
::

co
B

w
m

o 8
0o

:.Q
m

o8
a

:::
_

:8
co

::
cu

mc
oo

:
H

oo
o:

<
o:

w
::

m
::8

<
o:

cw
<

m
:.

w
.3

.~
:u

o:
ao

::m
:o

ow
o:

:.
12

:0
w

oD
oo

::m
:o

o
w

o:
:

H
on

so
m

ao
m

cw
<

m
:

w
::

ao
:.o

~o
:o

o:::
m

oo
:o

: N
A

m
co

<
o.m

::
::o

o_
.:o

8.
8:

:8
8?

cw
~o

m
o~

o:
oo

.
m

:m
:co

ox
oo

?o
a

m
::

:8
<

E
o

cw
O

o:
.:m

o8
~

8
<

m
:

oo
:o

:Q
o:

:w
S:

::
::m

O
o:

.R
m

or:
:

m
:

35
05

:
8:

58
:

cw
<

m
:

m
:::

: m
:5

:
:8

<
::o

:
om

m
::8

<
o:

cw
<

m
:.

Z
o

:m
w

H
:o

:H2
::

co
3%

8
00

53
.9

90
:

:::
:

:8
co

::
cm

mco
o:

H
oo

o:
<

o:
W

D
Q m

::8
<

o:
cw

<
m

:.

33
:2

5
:u

8<
:m

:o
:m

.
m

:o
=

E
.:

:
<

m
U

.m
m

o:
o o:

::8
:,

m
:w

co
::

co
oo

:8
::m

E
o:

o:
o:

H
om

m
:w

m
ca

o?
wco

3:
3

8
co

::m
w

:m
:.w

o8
:.w

.
00

53
69

0:
m

:m
:~o:o

€
om

ao
::m

oo
:8

o:
.:.

oo
8:

co
::

§:
::

A
83

5
m

m
w

m
om

~o
oo

:<
::m:o

:o
o

$3
:

<
m

:.
::

:8
o<

o:
:

:8
m

ca
on

w
ow

O
o:

.:m
o8

H
::8

::m
8

H
oa

so
o

om
om

:o
o: m

:w
88

:8
:

co
::.

2
8m

m
. ::

:w
$3

m
w

w
m

:1
3

$1
30

5

:o
:o

o
m

cm
:co

m
:<

o:8
<

m
:.m

:: O
o:

?m
o8

m
m

:m
: w
om

a
m

oo
o:

8c
:oao

::m
oo

~:
o:

.H
co

::m
8

:o
m

m
.

8:

C
8

am
w

m
:1

3
8

93
3:

0:
Se

:8
o1

m
::m

:co
::m

. Z
:

:3
5

:m
w

B
o:

.H
mm
rm

:co
:o

o:
8:

98
om

2:
:

co
33

0
:::

on
::m

O
o:

.E
8H

:::
_

m
:w

~o
:_

m
oo

::o
:~ co

::m
39

53
cw

::m
m

oo
:o

: :8
m

oo
ow

?o
a

cw
<

m
:.

:1
0

:8
ox

8:
r

R
m

:w
.:8

:
:8

.3
8:

O
o:

Q
m

o.
.

w
lo

o
:m

E
om

om
m

oa::
w

oo
o~

:w
:o

o
2:

:
:8

O
o:

.R
m

orO
o:

38
8~

m
:m

:. ::o
:

no
as

om
?om

<
m

:.o
m

sm
o

:8
35

0:
5»

3.
:8

co
::

8
co

E
oa

om
m

oa
m

oo
o:

::m
_w m

::m
:::

:8
B

::w
:o

:<
o~

m
m

:m
m

m
o8

:.w
o<

E
o:

oo
om

m
so

c::o
uo

m
m

o
8

<
m

:.
:1

:
:8

ox
8:

:
m

<
m

:m
c_

ov :8
co

::m
m

cm
: :::

8~
:8

<
::o

E
m

:
:0

oc
m

:m
o

ow
m

:o
B

:o
:

3.
:8

O
o:

.B
o.

c:
o:

E
::m

.€
::8

E
:::

S:
o:

.
m

:
E

oa
ow

m
o::

:8
H

08
:

O
o:

qm
oH

w
no

o.mm
H

ow
o?

om
8

m
co

<
ov

.
ox

.8
:m

:o
:m

om
:B

o.
ow

H
:o

&
:o

::o
:m

ow
:8

E
H

50
. 8:

:m
.

ow
oo

:&
:c

:m
ow

:m
w

H
:o

:»
8

0o
:.:

m
o8

:
,3

:
~o

:o
m

m
o

:8
m

ca
oe

w
.

:
O

o:
:$

.o
8«

:,m
:m

8
:..

E
.::

m
c w

:w
H

on
ia

omc
o:

:.<
m

:
B

w
w

8_
.::

:m
8

:8
O

o:
58

»
w

ow o
m

sm
o.

93
.:

.
O

:_
w

co
::m

ox
oo

:8
:

cw
m

:
m

:B
::o

:
m

ca
oa

w
E

m
?o

h
m

m8
:8

:
E

95
03

5
O

oa
o

om
0?

:
w

m
oo

oa
su

o
m

oo
m

o: EM
S?

m
cm

:co
m

oo
o:

8:
..2

8
m

sa
on

w
Sa

m
"

co
m

O
m

:w
o~

:::
-m

:H
::.

:o
: m

?o
ew

m
:: m

m
:m

m
88

aw
8

<
m

:.
:

m
O

m
:m

o:
.::

m
-m

:H
:::

o:
m

E
.o

H
w

::m
:m

om :m
m

:::
m

co
::m

ao
om

:3
B

oo
:

:8
m

o
~o

n:
:n

oH
:o

:n
m

.
:8

::m
:n

o~ 9
::

co
oo

:m
E

oa
o:

::m
::o

:
:.

:
a

::
oo

::.
o:

:m
:o

o <<
:::

m
oo

:o
:Sw

ag
ow

:8
O

m
:w

o.
.::

m9
%

ow
0?

:
30

08
59

8:
:

:8
3.

om
m

co
c :m

:8
<

::o
:

8
:8

<
m

:.

8.
;

m
.m

m
o.

..w
.

O
o:

§8
8n

m
:m

: ox
oo

?o
N

SQ
H

:m
::8

::
m

m<
<

o:
n m

o
m

m8
m

<
o:

: ::
:.:

w
w

om

:m
B

m
m

o
8

w
:w

vo
nm

o:o
m

:8
:o

:w
.

O
o:

qm
o8

n
m

rm
: oo

B
::w

3:
:

:8
H

on
ia

oa
oa

mo
m :

8
m

:o
o:

:o
m

:o
:m

8:
m

::m
8

m
m

m
on

w
B

om
m

cm
om

m
:::

om
c:

o
::

:m
::o

::m
~

o:
o3

:o
:m

ow
:a

::m
om

20
:0

H
:

ow
:.w

::m9.:
m

m ¢<
o:

n.
O

o:
38

8n
m

rm
:a

m
: ::

8m
co

::
oo

§:
:m

:o
o

2:
:

m
:m

:::
om

c_
o 88

:.

Page 54 of 85



rm
im

25
xa

im
ao

zm

88
8

88
8.

83
:

E
88

.E
88

ea
8m

:_
8o

:m
.

aa
8»

:
88

85
8

8:
:8

88
m

m
m

_~
%
c8

88
.:o

:m
w

ow 8
8

83
.8

8%2
.

8:
:E

o%
88

m 8:
88

:8
8

8
88

88
8

om
88

$8
8

8m
88

8o
:8

:o
:m

.8
88

E
88

88
$8

8
W

m8
88

w
8l

.o
::8

m
.m

m
8.

H
%

68
88

38
8

88
8.

88
82

8
88

:
88

88
.

9:
88

:
:8

:
U

0
88

:8
8.

88
8.

58
:8

U
H

O
H

O
O

SO
D

m
in

:8
m

m
<

8m8
a:

8_
:8

:n
88

95
8

Z
E

SE
B

N
SO

S
8n

5.
82

88
55

ea
:5

3
ow

8B
ao

:m
w8m

8:
8n

o:
m

8
88

58
:»

w
8<

8:
m

o:m
om m

: 8
8w

8%
88

m
.

8:
8

m
m 8

w
8E

:8
:.%

m
cm

am
.

88
8

¢<
m

:Q
<

m
%

m
. 88

3.
85

8.
8:

58
8“

8:
88

8.
m

8m
38

88
.

8a
.:_

&
88

88
68

88
88

88
:8

:8
8m

88
88

1:
?

8:
@

88
98

:
3a

88
88

88
8?

85
88

8.
88

88
8:

»
ea

¢<
8m

1:
m

8:
m

8_
m

m
:8

:8
88

m
m

m
n%

oa
_m

€8
=

%
88

:8
9

8
88

8:
.

88
88

88
8

om
8_

.::
8m

w8
8

88
88

8
88

83
88

w
on 8

8

U
H

O
U

O
H35

60
03

05
aa

::&
:8

:8
88

om
8:

88
8%

88
88

88
.

m
58

8n
:o

8.
O

O
B

D
SO

H
O

H8:
:

?.
o8

88
::%

88
8%

88
88

88
88

8_
8:

8o
:8

:::
88

8
cm

M
:8

88
:

28
88

88
2

88
88

:8
8:

88
m

8
88

<
§:

:%
cm

88
w

8_
.8

8r
m

m$
5:

88
88

83
67

03
02

5.
82

om
88

88
8

E
:_

u:
_8

88
88

28
8.

m
&

.m
88

:.H
8

N
: 8

8:
88

:8
8

8”
88

38
.8

8»
88

.

W
E

¢<
m

_8
:.Q

.
08

.8
88

8
<

<
E

.8
:.8

8:
3.

88
E

52
88

O
o:

.a
88

.a
A

S8
88

88
8:

88
.8

8
om

.8
8

88
.8

:
88

:
88

88
88

8
8

88
88

::8
8o

1N
8m

$5
8

28
8

88
8

:0
»

G
O

O
D8

89
8a

93
%

8%
:o

:-
8o

:8
_.

:::
m

88
81

38
88

88
38

88
88

88
€8

10
8

.8
8
ow

m
oo

n 85
5%

85
3.

88
.4

08
8%

a8
:n

88
:<

8
om

8:
:%

88
81

3
aa

<
<

o:
Q

:8
88

.
08

88
88

8
88

88
88

:
w

on 8
R

18
om

o:
8

%
83

A
9.8

8
@

88
5

om
8:

8
88

85
88

8_
m

8<
88

8
8

88
08

38
8.

.
3

8
8%

m
:m

8:
88

ow
28

.8
3%

88
38

8
8%

8%
::8

:8
o8

8n
om

83
88

8
om

88
88

8:
»

om
88

81
38

88
85

88
88

88
88

€0
8.

¢<
E

88
<

8n
m

m 88
3

N
58

8
88

88
om

W
E

E
m

88
8w

8:
88

.08
88

88
8

88
:

€3
8:

8:
C

8
am

%
mm
m

?
35

8
88

a
8

$1
.8

m
8%

<
m

U
So

8%
88

88
.:

8
88

$8
8

oa
:o

:-
8o

:8
3:

88
8

3.
88

$8
8

8
88

O
o:

.8
8r

80
:8

8:
88

88
38

88
85

8
8.

8
98

8:
m

8:
88

N
:

€8
8

:8
88

w
w

B
.%

8
85

:
88

85
:8

om
88

€m
:.8

:.%
3

:8
82

8
88

88
88

8:
8.

C
O

E
H

N
O

H
O

H
88

:
:8

8
88

:8
8

m
m 8

98
88

8
8%

<
w

U
8

88
8:

8
8

8
88

8~
m

8:
8%

.
8

88
30

:.
O

o:
.8

88
H

88
8

3
:8

88
88

.:
88

8:
88

:8
8.

88
8?

3.
8

82
:8

8
8%

@
83

88
om

88
$8

8
A

O
H€8

8
om

o8
8~

8o
:.R

m
88

8v8
88

88
8%

:8
Q

8w
8o

3<
8€

08

ow
$8

8
88

88
88

88
88

8
8

88
88

88
Sq

8w
m

E
:m

ow
8:

_m
88

m
m

8m
88

:<
8€

88
.

w
ow

8%
$8

8
m

o
89

88
88

.
08

88
88

18
3:

88
.:

FO
H

O
C

SQ
O

H 8
00

5.
00

»
88

83
8

$8
8

88
:

88
88

8.
38

g
w

on 8
m

m
8m

o:
m

_
o:

8
%

83
@

81
88

. 8
o:

:H
:8

:o
8m

<
38

88
8:

8
3,

88
88

38
88

ow
8:

8
89

.8
88

8
98

8.
08

88
88

8
88

:
U

O
H

W
O

H
H

U
8:

8
88

3
m

m
<

m
U

88
%

89
:8

8
<

25
88

8%
oO

5.
oo

E
<

o 8
38

:8
.

88
_:

8:
m

.
€_

8o
S

:::
8m

o:
.

88
85

:.
86

8.
5.

ea
83

88
88

83
88

o8
E

%
<

38
88

8€
:8

_:
8:

8
om

88
08

88
2.

>
=

88
%

8m
m

o8
88

a<
38

8:
8

89
88

28
83

8:
8

89
88

2:
?

88
_:

8:
m

88
88

o<
m

_.
83

88
88

83
.3

5
88

82
8.

8:
om

8a
:8

88
:.H

88
88

81
85

:8
88

m
m

8.
~%

8

m
a:8

88
88

8,
88

:
88

88
82

8
8m

uo
:m

8:
:%

om
08

.8
88

:
>

=
¢<

m
:8

:.8
m

ea
m

:m
8:

88
m

om
m

:c
oo

::.
m

o8
8,

83
88

8
88

88
28

88
88

88
88

:8
2

8
8%

69
.3

05
om

88
«<

08
.

$8
88

88

88
88

om
W

SU
Z

O
Q

.
m

8
%

8§
_

8
88

88
88

a
8%

O
O

SQ
N

Q
O

Hw
on 8

8
88

:8
?

om
<

m
U

.8
m

m
:._

=
8m

m
om

$8
88

88
om

:2
8:

8
28

38
:8

88
8

ea
m

:w
8:

88
m

88
8

G
00

3
:$

:m
m

8n
8m

om
38

:8
8

<
w

U
8%

88
88

88
m

m
88

88
::

ea
08

,8
88

8
£8

88
8

8:
88

8
8:

8
2:

88
:8

8
89

m
:8

8:
88

m
.
:.

:8
88

m
m

3%
.o

:
60

39
:.

om
<

m
U

.
H

:8
8

98
5»

8»
:

O
o:

.8
88

~
8:

8
8

60
1.

03
5:8

oc
:m

8o
:m

:3
2

8%
m

88
:o

:.
ow

::8
H

8%
0.

59
.

28
.8

3%
ow

m
:w

8:
.%

C
D

99
.8

%
08

:3
89

.
8

88
8m

w
o:

8_
8

88
88

83
0:

om
<

m
U

.<
m

U
88

:
88

8
88

am
?

8
00

5.
00

»
25

83
88

8
8%

88
82

8
cm

:o
:-

8o
:8

n:
::m

$5
8

35
8%

$5
8

88
88

88
8%

8:
8

€8
8

om
88

8:
_m

88
H

:8
:9

ow
00

58
03

05
88

8c
m

8:
O

o:
H

88
8H

.m
88

8:
88

:8
8.

O
O

D
H

H
W

O
H

O
H

.
8:

:
.8

8
8=

m
w

.H
8a8

88
%

88
85

88
<

m
U

w
on

8%
8:

68
:8

8
88

:8
8

88
8:

:a
8a

:8
8:

88
89

w
ho

.
08

38
88

8
88

:
88

:
:8

8:
8=

%
88

3:
8

2.
89

W
:

83
:3

8:
88

:8
8

8:
88

8
88

8
88

88
8_

SS
8.

88
8

aa
8m

E
8o

:m
8

8%
88

:9
m

m
.8

8:
:m

88
68

88
88

88
8c

m 8
8

08
38

2
on

88
€0

8.
88

88
:m

8:
O

m
<

O
m

E
>

8n
88

88
:8

.
ea

88
:

Page 55 of 85



:
?.

o:
&

:o
:m

:3
2

:.E
:a

C
E

:

m
:<

am
::o

:a
am

_.
£a

:a
:<

52
.

O
os

qm
o?

om
m

:m
::a

:m
::a

w
ow m

:<
8_

m
:o

:m
om

m
so

:_m
€m

m
s:

H
am

im
so

sm8
ao

::a
o:

o=
2:

:
¢<

o:
n.

R
O

o:
.:m

a8
m

o:
m

a3
am

8»
:

E
a

:3
<

<
:.m

mom
m

:a
a5

am
:o

:m
w

m
a3

<
m

:m
=

aa 2
::

m
s:

:9
2.

as
om

m
am

im
m

os
.

:
m

:m
: :8

B
::<

so
n?

<
m

U
E

23
5.

>
5:

sa
oa

m
m

w
w

w
o:

m
:m

amm
:m

::a
5%

:<
53

8
a:

m
=

m
a

oa
am

. E
. O

os
?m

on
om

w
an

m
on

dm 95
%

So
n:

W
so

sq
sm

:
8

:a
ao

E
B

J\
8

m
sa

: _m
€m

._.
E

am
m

s: m
am

im
ao

smm
s:€

::o
=

.
m

:<
:_

m€5
8

so
ao

a 8
<

m
o.

O
o:

Q
m

a8
m

m
:m

::a
m

o_
a_

< ~a
m

:o
=

m
::a

w
owu

:
ao

m
?m

m
am

w
sm

»:
am

aw
8E

.
O

o:
:m

a8
m

m
:w

:
Q

90
25

. 5
85

3
as

::
o_

:
<

w
U

.5
oa

aa
m

. .:«
aa

8m
m

vo
m

m
oa

nm
.

aB
:_

o<
aa

m
W

D
Q

. m
m

ai
mw

aa
m

s:
:m

n:
_a

m
m

.
E

?m
cm

i8
H

:a
:a

o3
=

:.§
ao

=
:8

<
:m

8:
mo

m .H
::m

O
os

?m
or

W
08

m
s:

93
8

om
:m

:::
Q

m
am

m
sw

9:
om

m
sw

m
m

:=
m

a
om

m
:a

m
a:m
m

::m
a

8
ao

B
::%

€:
:

m
co

: :m
€m

. «E
am

ow
m

am
im

no
bm

.

W
m

:
_u

Q
.B

:m
m

s:
C

oa
sm

am
.

O
oE

B
a8

m
m

:m
::a

na
m

:o
:m

::_
a

m
om m

aa
sl

sm
<

m
U

H
55

5
m

s:
:a

a=
m

am sa
aa

m
m

m
w

w
8

w
az

oo
dd»:

a
¢<

o:
n

m
am

a1
:a

m
:a

m
a:

.. :.a
:::

:m
.

:E
:2

:8
8:

8.
m

0:
:

w
:m

:_
am

m C
aa

sm
a.

¢<
::a

00
53

.9
99

.
2:

:
so

»
:a

o:
m

m
m

a:
w

m
aaw

on a
s:

0:
?

ua
nd

zm
.Oo

E
§o

8m

m
:m

: 3%
$5

05
m

mm
E

.:a
m

:_
a :

cm
8a

m
m
:o

a:
m

a m
aa

.

W
N

N
.

:
H

:a
:6

8:
03

:3
2

m
ic

a
ax

oa
am

m m
m

m
bo

om
u:

m
»:

a
/‘

<
3:

m
o<

a3
a: :

<
.::

m
O

os
?m

am
a:

8:
m

ax
om

<
m

:o
:om

m
sw

Sa
ba

:
on

.R
a:

a:
am

m
<

a C
V

m
8.

om
SO

H
O

5
m

ac
?

O
oE

3a
8~

m
:m

: ao
B

:_
<

2:
:

m
:m

:::
om

:_
a :8

<
:m

8:
m

2.
m

a O
m

:w
o:

:w
H

m
:o

m
9%

.
::o

:::
:m

m
ao

ao
s 38

.
H

o
"E

m
an

?
0o

E
B

o8
m

m
:m

: m
::B

:
m

om <
m

U
.m

na
<

:a
<

<m
s:

w
::8

<
m

:w
aa

8:
a:

E
m

:m
:o

<
<

:.m»:a
m

am
m

m
s

om
m

:o
1:

m
. :B

a:
:m

.m
8E

:m
.on

2:
9

:8
<

:m
8:

m8
:a

E
m

m
am

om
22

$
@

88
30

:
$0

8
?:

a
:w

N
m

3
om

am
is

m
m

m
oc

sa
€5

5
H

:a
ax

am
<

m
:o

:om
m

so
: 3.0

50
?

om
Q

a:
a:

am
.

E
.m

ca
: E

m
:<

m
1a

m$
03

::a
m

:o
1:

mm
%

m
.H

aBm
?m

sa
m

m
m

m
.

H
:a

E
m

:m
:m

::a
um

av
m

m
aa

:<
w

m
am

m
m

?a
m

am
a:

<
: o

n
m

38
8B

_
as

m
m

sa
am

.

m
um

E
m

nm
m

ao
cm_

<
_m

.a
1m

_m
m

s:
U

:o
m

a1
.>

m
m

an
iq

am
:<

O
w

_:
oo

38
w

:::
a

02
:8

9
9%

m
aa

ao
s :3

.
R

.::
m 0

3:
39

8<
o:

<
am

E
m

m
m

sm.R
a:

a:
am

om
3:

3
ax

om
<

m
:o

:m 8»
:

Sa
ab

:
aa

au
am8m

:
85

T
c

:2
:a

8€
$5

m
ca

m
m

aa
.

O
os

?m
an

om
m

:m
: :8

B
::v

n
m

s:
:1

3
8

&
m

8m
:m

=
aa

om
m

s:
oo

:n
::o

:m
, 8:

?
<

m
U

om
C

V
8%

B
m

?a
lm

:n
:m

ao
<

an
am 8

ax
om

<
m

:o
: 83

O
o=

Q
w

a8
~

:a
:a

<
am

8
:a

m
:m

N
m

ao
:m

€8
8

E
m

»
a

39
:3

5
8

:a
m

aB
o<

a:
8

w
Q

m
m

m H
.Q

m
m

m E
om

Q
m

m
m

E
E

m
uo

m
m

z
m

:a
w A
8m

::m
:1

.w
aa

cm
5.

8:
»

::<
m

_a
m

_ ao
E

::o
=

m
R

»:
a

m
za

E
m

m
aa

sm$0
5

:8
m

a
E

?o
?a

m
3.

<
m

U
wm

s:
E

v
E

:c
8¢

<
=

::<
m

:a
m

_ ao
E

::o
:m

om
m

s
:=

:m
:m

_
sm

z?
a

a
m

:a m
m

a.
m

:m
E

m
aa

::<E
m

m
aa

aa
$0

3
H

:o
m

a
o:

::m
~:

<a
sa

oc
sm

am
aa

3
m

so
:oo

sq
m

o?
23

:.
C

ue
:

:o
:m

om
:o

:.
<

m
U

m
:m

: :8
B

::<
E

<
am

:m
m

H
a

»:
a

oo
E

::o
:m

8
30

33
0

<
<

:a
?:

a~
w
a:

m
:m

a
oa

am
:m

m
w

um
ou

a?
a.

3
.5

0
a<

a:
.H

om
m

.:m
:E

a.
O

o=
.B

o8
m

m
:m

: :2
:a

ax
ac

m
am #

08
m

s:
m

a:
am

=
_a

:

oo
B

E
a:

o:
m

a?
am

s:
m

:a
: E

oa
aa

a5
%

:
w

:¢<
o~

:
8

:a
R

:.2
.B

2.
_

ss
aa

m H
:a

O
os

qw
ar

9:
m

:m
:

88
8

m
: :m

:»
m

32
5%

:<
H

:a
O

os
?m

on
om

:<
52

w
ow B

aa
sm

E
oe

am
?mm

s:m
am

o_
<

::m »:a
E

m
u?

a.

W
N

A
.

H
o

.n
:a a

ia
i

m
an

ia
aa :

<
m

ao
m

os LN
G

om
E

a
O

m
:8

::m
Q

o<
aB

B
a§

9%
.

<
m

o
m

:w
: oo

n?
ab

m
m

?aO
o=

Q
m

a8
H

m
om »

:a
oo

m
?m

om
A

S E
om

as
m

m
s:

38
5%

33
9%

8
cs

aa
m

m
m

os
sa

:::
.Q

m
m

a:
::a

m
so

»
aw

cm
aa :<

H
:a

m
a?

a
om

O
oE

So
8~

8
92

2%
m

am
m

o:
m

:_
a am

m
aw A

3 ~
aB

o<
:=

mon
m

a_
oa

m
:=

m
cs

aa
w

m
m

oc
sm

8:
5.

m
m

o:
_:

am
=

2
:z

:a
&

aQ
8

.:a
oo

=
m

:E
a:

o:
am

m
im

sm
m

w
m

s:
A

3
an

E
:B

aE
:a

aa
m

m
m

~:
<

E
3:

m
ca

smm
so

: So
ar

O
o:

Q
m

a8
n

m
:m

: :3
:a

m
m

m
am

m
a:

_E
:E

m
8m

3:
38

m
om 3

%
am

cm
aa :<

33
3

om
<

m
U

8
:8

<
E

a
m

om
85

05
:

om
na

_o
om

:o
: o

m m
an

: #5
:?

m
§_

a$
.

Page 56 of 85



1_
.n

<
n

.3
.

E
um

m
m

>
_.

o=
:r.

2&
_a

92
.;

P.
_.

o:
w

nn
ci

m

0.
00

.
00

=
::0

0:
3

:m
02

00
0:

.:
:0

:0
:::

0B
0=

:m
0:

.0
0:

:.0
::0

:L
0:

3
00

:0
m

00
::0

:m
:8

.
0:

m
g;

0:
:

30
:.

0:
00

0.
.

0m
20

:
0m

00
:3

3:
00

:0
0:

. :~
0m

E
0:

:0
:m

.
.:.

:_
0

0.
m

00
:0

:
:8

8.
0:

m
m

?
:..

:.:
0<

0:
:_

m
¢<

0m
0

:L
02

m
J.2

::0
:

30
93

0:
:0

00
50

0:
:

0:
. :

30
<

0:
:_

m
20

m
0

:0
:0

m
0:

:
::0

00
33

35
00

000
:

0:
0:

:0
n:

:0
B

0=
:m

00
00

30
::

::.
:::

0
23

:m
:

0:
:

:B
0:

:0
=

00
00

:
:3

0_
.0

0:
m

.m
:0

00
::0

m
0:

.<
:0

0m
0:

0
:0

:.m
00

33
50

0:
0m

:0
0:

0m
0:

0:
::0

0:
_0

::0
:::

0
23

:m
..

3

:B
0:

:0
=

0:
00

:
38

.0
0:

.
0m

:0
:.E

0:
:0

.
::0

:u
:0

<
0:

:.m
¢<

0m
0

:0
2m

.
0:

:
m

:.0
0

::0
8:

0:
00

B
:0

0=
m

0:
:0

=
:m

$.
08

03
B

30
.

00
=

::0
0:

3
0m

:0
0m

:0
:,.

::<
00

50
?

2:
:

m
:0

:
::0

<
0:

:_
m

¢<
0m

0
:.0

2m
.

<
m

0
m

:0
:

30
3:

0
00

::n
00

:3
2:

:
0

00
3.

0:
.:

:0
:3

0<
0:

:_
m

:0
:0

m
0m

:0
0:

::0
B

20
m

0m
:0

0m
:.0

0: 0
:

::0
00

33
00

00
30

0:
om

:::
m >

m
:0

0B
0=

:.00
=

::0
0:

3
m

:0
:

30
:0

00
::0

m0
m

::0
:3

0<
0:

:.m
:0

:0
m

0m
:0

:
:0

3
20

m
0m

:3
00

0:
30

:.
0:

0m
m

:._
00

:0
=

3
J6

0
ow

23
:0

:
50

0:
0:

:0
0x

00
::0

::0
m

0:
<

:0
0m

0<
0:

0:
_0

:0
::0

:0
m

:0
:

:0
:::

0m
::0

:
:0

n:
0m

:.0
::

m
:0

:
:0

0m
:00

::0
m0

:
::0

00
:::

00
:3

.m
3:

00
:0

0:
E

00
00

:.
::m

:.0
m

m
0:

:
0:

::0
38

.0
0:

m
:0

.
00

:::
00

:3
m

:0
:

:0
:.0

::.
:::

0B
:::

..<
0:

:
:0

_:

::0
<

m
0.

:m
0_

00
:0

:
0:

.:.
:0

::m
.0:
.:.

_0
0:

m
. 0E

::0
<

00
m0:

:
0m

0=
:m:.

:0
0

0:
:

:0
3:

0m
m

:.:
0B

00
%

0_
0:

B
m

.

:0
:::

:0
m

. 0
0m

:m
. :0
0s

0:
:0

m3
::0

:0
m

:
0:

m
:.m

0:
:

0:
. 0

5:
3:

30
3

0:
0m

0:m
0:

30
:0

00
3:

?
2:

:
::0

:0
:0

<
0:

:0
m¢<

0m
0

:L
02

m
.

0.
00

.
¢<

:0
=

00
:::

00
:3

03
::0

<
m2

3:
30

:
:0

0:
0:

:3
0:

::0
00

::0
0:

0:
3

20
:0

.
00

0:
:0

0:
3

m
:0

:
00

3:
0?

2:
:

::0
:3

0<
:m

:0
=

m
0:

.m
00

::0
0

3.
3:

0:
::0

00
:m

3:
:0

:0
:3

00
:0

2:
:

:0
m

00
0:

:0
::0

0B
::0

<
B

0:
:0

:.
30

00
30

::0
m

:m
:0

:0
:

0E
30

:::
00

m ::0
:

:.:
::0

23
:m

.
.:.

:0
3:

00
?

:0
m

00
0m

:::
:<:.3

03
00

:0
00

02
::

m
0:

:
m

00
::0

0
:.3

0:
0E

30
=

::0
00

::0
00

0:
:0

:0
:m

m
:0

:
:0

2:
:

00
:3

0:
03

.

m
.~

.\
20

3m
0:

.¢
<

3:
.

00
=

::0
0:

3
:m

0:
<

:m
0:

::0
:

0:
m

:::8
:0

3m
_0

:3
00

:m
:::

:0
m

0
_0

m
0_

:0
<

.m
23

:.
:.3

m
:0

::
:0

m
00

::0
0

$5
0:

.:
:0

00
:3

3;
:L

0:
3

00
:0

.0
0:

::0
0:

3
m

:0
:

:2
0:

::0
m

:0
:::

3:
<0

:::
0:

N
0:

00
:0

5.
03

23
:0

:
:.3

00
0:

:0
0:

::0
:

00
0:

23
:3

:m
:0

:d
::0

:
:0

23
:

33
0

::0
:

05
::

:3
:0

3m
:0

03
.

00
0

00
:0

0:
03

:0
2

0:
:

:.3
:%

33
:0

3m
:0

00
%

00
0

00
:0

0:
03

20
0:

.
00

80
::

2:
0:

00
05

00
0::

3
0<

0:
:::

0
0

30
:0

0:
:0

:
_0

m
m
::0

:
0:

0
0:

:
0=

0-
:0

_:
.

2-
23

:::
0m

::0
:0

m
:0

30
:0

:3
::0

:
23

:3
.

m
um

.
:0

00
03

:0
50

0
2:

:
::0

:0
::3

03
0:

:m
om

00
::.

0Q
:0

:L
0:

3
00

:0
m

00
::0

0
:3

9
00

=
::0

0:
3

m
:0

:
:0

0:
00

03
08

00
04

0:
:0

03
:m

2:
0:

0:
0

0:
:0

:
00

:9
5;

30
3:

0:
:0

:::
0

U
:<

:m
:0

=0
:.

:0
:3

w
:0

=
:3

:m
m

::.
30

0B
0:

:
3

2:
0:

00
20

::
::0

m
0B

0
::m

0:
.B

0:
0:

30
93

0:
:<

m
so

:0.3
;.

W
0m

:0
=

m
:::

::<:.3
00

30
:0

00
02

::
00

::.
3:

:0
:L

0:
3

00
:0

M
00

30
0

:3
:

m
:0

:
30

m
:m

0_
0_

< 2:
:

00
0:

:0
0:

3.
0:

:
03

::.
00

:3
m

:0
:

30
:0

0:
m

:0
:

:0
03

:m
0<

0:
0:

_0
:.3

:0
m

:0
0:

:0
=0:

0:
:0

0m
0=

0:
:0

:0
3m

.

0.
00

00
=

::0
0:

3.
m

:L
0:

3
03

:::
._

00
:0

0.
02

:m
m

:m
=

0:
30:3

0_
.E

:3
.

00
=

::0
0:

3
00

:::
:._

0m

::0
:

:0
:m

02
03

0
0:

.:
:0

_3
0<

:m
:0

:m
0:

. m
00

::0
=

38
0:

.:
:0

00
::.

3_
:0

H
0:

3
00

:0
2:

:0
:

30
83

0
90

52
03

30
0:

:0
:0

:.m
30

:
0m

0:
.m

: :0
:::

:\
:.3

¢<
3:

0:
.m

00
B

:.0
:m

0:
:0

0
3

:0
:=

:0
:0

:0
20

:.
::m

30
=

00
::

00
03

:0
00

0
2:

:
::0

:3
0<

:m
:0

=
m

So
::0

:
00

:0
.

0:
:

0m
:0

0m
:0

00
3:

?
2:

:
m

=
0:

:3
0<

:m
:0

=
m

:0
:.3

0
00

B
B

0:
0:

0m
::0

00
33

35
00

000
:.

::0
¢<

3:
.

>
00

~:
::.

_0
0:

00
:8

5
:2

:::
m

:3
00

m
0.

2:
:0

:
:m

0:
:0

0:
0:

:0
:::

m 0
3:

30
:

0m
m

x:
:::

:0
:

00
:

:_
00

€3
0:

0:
:3

0:
:<

:0
m

0:
0:

00
.

m
:0

:
:0

0x
00

::0
:

m
:::

:0
s0

0:
m

_<
2:

:
:::

m 0
3:

50
:. :N

Page 57 of 85



m
=

:_
.n

00
5:

5:
Z

cn
_:

._
nu

:o
=

>
m

m
mE..

=
n_

:
m

9.
__

a%
._

.8.
...

..
5:

2
28

_<
_m

81
m

_
W

o8
m

m
om

. O
o:

:.m
o8

~
as

:
E

SE
.

88
Sc

am
S5

E
m

81
m

_

88
88

$0
3

m
:m

cc
oo

sq
m

on
oa

vo
aw

on
is

mE
oz

n
os

.
ow

m
cn

im
cm

smBm
81

m
_m

m
o:8

8
E

oz
n

m
o<

w
:8

acw
E

a
O

os
?m

o?
“.

13
8

E
53

um
w

B
Q

:c
w<

m
U

.

8.
3

.
O

oE
8o

8a
8w

8m
a:

8
"c

w
:

:
8

m
s

B
E

:
ow

w
on

ec
sx

w
oB

w
_o

w
on
m

am
$5

”
3

as
:

:2
&

m
o1

B
5m

8
£3

5.
m

sw
aB

E
ow

ooo
w
m

uw
zo

m
sa

m
om

oB
E

ow
:8

Ec
oo

m
cm

o
3.

$8
.

8:
m

8:
.

88
v

53
03

oa
m

w
s.

m
so

om
qw

. m
ax

. m
m

oow
o?

co
w 8

88
m

m
3.

82
%

cw
28

m
ag

om
19

83
:

00
33

83
03

.
m

so
c :o

:-
&

m
o1

B
8m

:o
:

as
:

30
:5

9
cE

so
,

ca
:::

8a
8.

m
: 2

33
8

88
8m

8
SE

E
oB

E
ow

B
Q

:.
E

um
am

?s
m

.
m

aB
o:

os
.5

3$
:

8o
E

::8
=

»
om

80
35

88
3

m
a<

o3
m

5m
.

5%
cu

8:
33

:0
5.

K
N

>
:.:

-.
H

E
m

.
Q

m
w

sm
. E

m
ua

oi
m

m
osas

:
co

ow
oB

:<
oso

m
am

O
os

?m
oa

W
m m

3.
:o

m
c8

8
95

.0
3:

.
SE

3
O

os
?m

o?
O

98
m

oo
se

: :8
9

H
:

8:
81

am
88

«E
m

O
ob

?m
o?

8
m

=
E

:w
m

oo
m

m
.

m
9.

<
8o

m
oa

B
m

8:
m

_m
.

O
oE

B
o8

a
co

8c
w

3.
83

m
ag

m
m

nm
om

8
3%

:
8

<
m

U
m

: lm
ca

.
38

.
85

E
88

3
8

ea
8

m
: om

cm
om

om
m

on
o: :

B
m

w
E

28
E

82
m

oo
se

: A
2.

:8
O

_m
w

8:
>

9
cm

c.
m

_o
.

m
oo

se
: E

v
ow

E
D

Q
9.

:8
O

w
ns

im
c?>

2
A

O
cm

w
8nN
. o

oB
B

m
:o

E
m2:

:
m

oo
se

: 33
0.

om
3:

4
N

om
U

75
8:

w
cm

:8
w

cm
w

so
m

m
35

w
no

m
om

m
m

os
m

00
98

m
am

w
zm

$0
3

9:
05

2;
om

m
oo

m
m

.
m

ow
io

om
.

ow
B

m
81

m
_m

cc
am

cm
i8

35
00

33
2.

ac
;

m
m

am
s?

aia
s:

co
3&

0
m

am
c8

oo
:8

$8
95

3
98

3:
8

<
m

U
8E

8~
m

s»
:

um
w

?o
i

8
:8

O
os

?m
o?

ob
23

52
92

:2
m

o_
n8

<
<

8m
m

B
o3
cw

98
$3

3.

8.
8

Z
om

oo
m

.
>

=
so

no
om

co
ao

cs
m

oa 88
oo

g?
si

om
no

bm
B

m
m

an
cs

m
58

82
43

0:
ow

:8
83

8
om

:8
08

:8
2

ow
oc

m
sm

am
88

88
as

:
co

w
8<

E
oa

cw
:8

B
m

w
cs

m28
83

.
cw

8m
i8

8m
om

81
3.

88
38

:.
88

3
88

8.
.

8n
:a

m
8m

. w
om

?m
o38

35
E

8
&

&
8m

&
m

m8
:9

29

<
m

U
O

O
2.

H
_~

>
O

A
.O

—
~

<
m

:o
wm

w
sz

m
uw

U
83

9
3-

80
<

m
=9

:8
:

98
2

59
0.

O
>

82
:

>
2?

w
o<

Q
.:

zm
um

cm
z

>
=

w8
:8

m
o E

8:
m

g:
co

oo
nm

io
m

om
88

78
a

cw
:8

o?
co

a E
3

98
8

C
Va

m
w

m
m

w
8a

A
86

8:
8

:8
C

.m
.

E
m

:
m

m
m

88
a

m
co

<
o m

am
2§

$m
8

8
:8

33
M

:3
5

m
co

<
o E

58
8.

>
o8

m
_

so
co

o
m

cm
:ca

88
38

98
9.

88
so

zo
o o

n
:8

A
88

m
os

t:
co

co
a o

oo
s?

oa
. 8m

w
a8

m
mom

88
B

09
8

om
m

oi
so

n.

W
K

.
H

cw
m 0

3:
89

oo
:8

3m
3.

5
8:

38
£8

85
83

ow
:8

w
m

w
no

m
2:

:
88

89
8

:8
m

:c
_.

8o
.HB

m
no

a
83

%
.

m
an

m
=

cQ
.m

o.
8mw

: 3
2.

so
m

oa
w

no
sm

.
:§

8E
8=

&
=

m
m

oa
$8

83
83

8.
H

ci
00

33
9

B
m

w
o:

_w
ca

58
53

cw
m

E
xa

m
3:

8
cw

w
as

$3
2.

8.
3

H
58

2.
m

m
m

as
oo

.
H

38
a

om
:8

om
m

as
oa

E
:8

vo
um

ou
dm

so
o

om
m

i
00

58
2.

w
as

.
O

o:
?m

o8
q

m
cm

z no
w9

92
<

o_
:=

8:
_w

on
cw

m
on

o:o
m

E
S.

sw
am

:
ow

Q
w

sm
m

on
ai

m
00

38
2

3
m

sw
%

=
m

..a
o=

. E
m

s.
..38

oa
8.

82
8”

$2
38

cw
O

o:
.Q

m
o8

H
c8

88
25

.9
:

88
32

S1
8:

oo
sm

oi
om

<
m

o.
:

O
o:

.R
m

o8
~

m
no

sé
a

w
:

m
m

m
m

m
sa

oi
on

53
?

ow
=

5
O

os
qm

o?
om

m
sw
oc

cm
m

m
os

.
am

?
38

om
38

8%
88

::
<

m
U

B
m

w
.

3

U
m

m
m

: O
os

om
u?

wOo
:m

..E
o.

._
o:

.
_:

o.

N
o-

3,
...

>
<

m.
5 _:

n_
_o

.
O

>
.

8.
2:

.:.
__

_o

Z
a

>
a&

om
m

03
¢

99
8

N
E

9%

Page 58 of 85



oo
no

m
uoo

sm
:

_.
:::

E
..

0:
...

w
e_

..

3
3m

00
30

:.8
:3

38
83

3<
0_

8
90

00
33

2
3:

9
23

:
2:

03
:0

0:
ca

3:
05

0
#0

3
33

%
3:

0
3:

oc
sm

m
m

os
m

.8
00

33
23

01
8

m
m

m
w

m
so

o
ow

.:3
=

m
.o

a3
a.

W
3

Q
0<

2.
3:

m
H

32
.

H
im

00
33

2
33

:
ca

m
0<

a3
am 3

90
_3

<
<

m
02

.2
.0

m
38

ow
03

:3
33

.
<

33
23

:
co

3
H

?<
2m

E
a

00
:3

<
.

K
w

00
:3

aB
3:

m
..

25
00

33
2

33
%

co
0x

oo
3o

0
3

00
:3

2.
03

?
30

:
om

$3
2.

$3
:

o0
:m

m
E

8
3:

0:
m

33
_.

0%
m

co
oo

m
m

oa
.

.2
6

T
33

8
00

3
:.o

3m
2<

om
.2:
0:

:2
3.

28
03

03
.

3a
33

3_
.3

0~
.m

,

m
co

om
m

m
oa

.
m

am
m

m
m

m
m

sm
m

m
w

oa8
90

9:
00

30
35

35
000

2.
3:

2
90

E
oi

m
w

os
m00

33
30

0
3

$5

00
33

2.

$5
03

:3
o?

m
db

oo
02

H
om

m
20

22
33

23
53

3
35

09
2

30
32

0:
30

33
.

28
3m

om
?d

bo
c

0a
8%

23
:

co
3m

0_
<

oa
0:

33
3

.8
E

0
3:

o3
m

m
<

0
32

03
03

m
0_

33
=

E
oo

om
sn

omm2
3:

:
3

03
5.

03
3

33
:0

00
33

2
00

00
m

mNo
ah

.2
30

.

W
k:

w
33

_3
om

58
32

?

W
E

;
m

0:
o_

.3
:0

:.
00

33
23

33
33

:;
33

€3
33

m
2:

2
3

ru
m :

3
03

0_
0<

0m
so

w
33

33
35

%
00

30
33

03
00

30
:.

0.
32

:3
:

3
.5

03
30

03
38

50
E

oz
as

m
m

0_
o_

<3
:

00
33

23
.

20
8:

0:
9.

30
:3

9%
00

33
2.

33
5:

00
33

23
<

<
m

:.3
3w

93
3

ra
m :

02
03

5
50

a

35
3

m
m

ao
om

20
03

%
35

%
00

3.
03

%
ow

00
30

?
09

2
E

3:
3

00
3

30
03

33
60

éo
aa

sm
m

0_
o_

<3
00

33
23

.
33

%
w

oo
. o0

33
2m

m
20

=
.

_0
o3

n3
3m

o.
_0

3_
83

m
n

m
oo

. m
5

0a
09

2
o0

=
m

E
o3

:0
:

o0
33

m
o3

:0
0:

on
3m

:_
:=

m
$0

3
:8

3:
33

0»
33

5n
m

0m
:3

0.
00

33
2.

w
on

33
2.

0a
$0

33
0:

0m
9;

<
3_

33
<

.
<

20
23

:
3:

5
:8

~5
3

20
8:

33
8

"E
m

00
33

2
$5

53
:3

.3
:.Q

.

W
E

N
00

3:
2

0m
38

32
.

w
ow

90
20

3
0m

9;
00

33
2.

:0
30

30
9.

03
02

0a

03
38

50
om

<
20

.
93

$
:5

22
.3

om
E

m
on

:2
m

ow
io

o<
39

<
20

.
m

am
: 32

0
SQ

&
32

3.
83

2
3

:5
00

33
2.

0a
03

33
35

%
38

03
0a

35
30

33
8

33
81

3
02

.2
.:

m
aa

sm:.o3
¢0

3.

W
A

N
02

.:m
o3

:0
=

2
E

02
50

.
00

33
23

00
33

8
93

m
m

02
.:8

3.
8

02
.$

80
33

:
90

:5
00

33
2.

00
33

23
35

3
25

03
00

33
20

30
.

so
oz

m
o 0w

:6
23

m
m

:._
om

:0
=

33
03

00
.0

20
2

E
32

00
33

20
a.

m
m

w
m

=
3E

3.

H
Z

é?
zm

m
m

ém
m

w
m

om
.

30
¢

0m
:8

H
03

38
ru

m 0
35

00
:5

00
33

2
.8

00
98

03
03

0:

30
03

%E
3

<
03

.
33

3v
0<

o
€3

83
.

<
>

rr
m

<
m

>
2E

.>
-<

U
~m

.:-
0.

H
0O

2.
:~

>
0H

.O
-

U
m

m
m

z
2.

0:
.

_:
o.

3"
W

u:
Q

2:
_3

_
33

:3
2.

m
50

25
»

20
.

m
ka

m
m

u

E

Page 59 of 85



m
xm

nn
e

:0
:

O
H

W
A

.~
m

.~
O

>
.:O

Z
H

.>
w

O
—

.~O
O

U
H

.
m

H
O

.H
—

O
Z$

3

H
.:8

§%
a_

m
=

g_
O

os
qm

o?
on

. E
:

m
ém

ao
om

:8
um

oi
ao

sm
om

m
oo

se
: 38

S
M

W
Q

.a.
:8

95
08

5
5&

2
9%

SE
3

B
as

in
o<

oQ
oB

E
o<

o~8
ca

52
3

£3
3.

:%
=

§
m

om¢
<

o:
8~

.m

O
o?

uo
sm

m
m

os
ow

8
§%

§_
8

m
oz

xs
m

cg
so

a
E

m
oo

oa
m

w
so

o
2:

:
:8

E
o?

m
w

os
mow

:5
9%

.
m

an

H
.:8

§%
a_

m
=

&
O

os
qm

o?
ob

m
m

ao
o

8
m

an S
E

oo
B

E
<2

::
m

an
: E
oi

m
w

os
m5&

8
oo

B
B

o=
oE

m

:6
w

oa
m

ol
dm

so
o

om
:8

<
<

o:
n o

n
:5

09
:8

2.

O
c=

:.»
o8

..
2

U
m

m
m

:O
o:

:m
=

:o
._

o:
._

:o
.

5

Page 60 of 85



no
z.

_.
m

>
n4

om
O

O
z.

_.
>

O
._

.
m

om
:

._
.:_

m 3
::

3%
.

am
na

3u
_m

$n
_

3.
m

i
no

:._
‘m

n_
o«

5:
0

E
m

am
on

m
um

s:
5.

..
W

u3
_.

m
n_

.
m

zn
ca

no
3u

_m
~m

a 3
m

:<
m

:u
no

3_
.m

n8
_.

_ 52
52

as
3m

:E
m

o=
.:m

_.
5:

0
im

am
28

;3
.

«m
an

m
m

zo
zm

m
aa

m
zn

ca
m

9.
9:

2
u_

.o
_.

m
n.

:9
:

om
go

am
3.

0.
.8

ca
cu

m
s.

..
.3

5
83

.
5.

:
am

m
cu

a?
m

a8
:6

<
m

m
< m

m
az

m
é0

.3
.5

3.
=

6
ac

m 3
.5

5.
3

_.
: 3

m
_:

<
=

m
»_

a:
8

m
a

2
: 5

am
$3

8
:9

Sm
vo

:m
.<

wm
an

E
m

:
.

__ um
_‘

m
E

3m
a

c:
o_

u¢
:m

a.
,_

.:.
m

8:
:

nm
:U

m
3m

._
m

n
«m

am
_=

<
_§

_§
E

m
. . S

xm
B

oa
E

vm
m

g
m

zm
zz

oa m
o:

m
_§

=
§_

&
on

m
3m

__
m

Q
8

m
cc

o:
<

B
E

<
m

:m
.m

m
:_

_m
= .o

_.
. 2

29
:5

m
aa

m
xm no

nw
.._

<
am

aw
_u

m
_o

<
< 3c
m

,
B

N
8:

2.
5

.._
m

_.
=

m 2
3m

no
E

nm
:<

__
m

.m
n

on
5m

9:
.

m
3

3m
m

aa
m

xm m
:<

m
_o

nm
.

§ 
%

B
xx

kv \\
\\.

. V
va

xx
h.

\N

\.&
v%

Jm

36
m

ca
.8

am
no

:

O
o:

:m
o8

«.
m

ow
m

3:
<

_m
22

:9

O
os

zm
?o

xm
ow

m
ax

?
_3

m
8m

.
S

3o
_.

m
Q

E
m

.m
ag

?
m

:_
8o

2a
§2

_
<

25
?

33
\

O
oz

zm
?o

w
m o

w
m

ax
}

>
qq

$m
m

”
\W

:\N
u\

K
V

N

oo
::m

o8
xm

2
m

:.=
<

.mOo
im

o?
_u

oa
o:

N
R

8
V

V
N

.
O

o:
:m

o.
8_

._
m

2
m

:.=
<

.m_u
:o

:m
2?

oo
zz

m
oa

w
m

2
m

:E
<

_m
m

am
: >3

68
”

no
U

B
9

0

jim
3:

:
2.

8
8

ac

Page 61 of 85



/

Data current as of 8/27/2020 2:41:29 PM

Home | Online Services | License Details

Contractor's License Detail for License # 849837
DISCLAIMER: A license status check provides information taken from the CSLB license database. Before
relying on this information, you should be aware of the following limitations.

Business Information

DESERT CONCEPTS CONSTRUCTION INC A CALIFORNIA CORPORATION
79775 AVE 40

INDIO, CA 92203
Business Phone Number:(760) 200-9007

Entity Corporation

Issue Date 11/08/2004

Expire Date 11/30/2020

License Status

This license is current and active.

All information below should be reviewed.

Classifications

Bonding Information

CSLB complaint disclosure is restricted by law (B&P 7124.6) If this entity is subject to public complaint disclosure click on link that will appear below for more
information. Click here for a definition of disclosable actions.



Only construction related civil judgments reported to CSLB are disclosed (B&P 7071.17).

Arbitrations are not listed unless the contractor fails to comply with the terms.

Due to workload, there may be relevant information that has not yet been entered into the board's license database.

A - GENERAL ENGINEERING CONTRACTOR

C36 - PLUMBING

C16 - FIRE PROTECTION CONTRACTOR

C27 - LANDSCAPING

B - GENERAL BUILDING CONTRACTOR

C10 - ELECTRICAL

C-8 - CONCRETE

C23 - ORNAMENTAL METALS

C33 - PAINTING AND DECORATING

Page 62 of 85

https://www.cslb.ca.gov/
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/OnlineServices/
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&&sectionNum=7124.6
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/onlineservices/checklicenseII/PublicComplaintDisclosure.aspx
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=BPC&sectionNum=7071.17
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/Library/Licensing_Classifications/A_-_GENERAL_ENGINEERING_CONTRACTOR.ASPX
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/Library/Licensing_Classifications/C-36_-_PLUMBING.ASPX
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/Library/Licensing_Classifications/C-16_-_FIRE_PROTECTION.ASPX
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/Library/Licensing_Classifications/C-27_-_LANDSCAPING.ASPX
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/Library/Licensing_Classifications/B_-_GENERAL_BUILDING_CONTRACTOR.ASPX
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/Library/Licensing_Classifications/C-10_-_ELECTRICAL.ASPX
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/Library/Licensing_Classifications/C-8_-_CONCRETE_CONTRACTOR.ASPX
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/Library/Licensing_Classifications/C-23_-_ORNAMENTAL_METAL.ASPX
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/Library/Licensing_Classifications/C-33_-_PAINTING_AND_DECORATING.ASPX


/

Copyright © 2020 State of California

Contractor's Bond
This license filed a Contractor's Bond with AMERICAN CONTRACTORS INDEMNITY COMPANY.
Bond Number: 234714
Bond Amount: $15,000
E�ective Date: 01/01/2016
Contractor's Bond History

Bond of Qualifying Individual

NOTE: There are 4 qualifiers (with bonding information) for this license. Up to 3 are displayed on this page.

Workers' Compensation

This license has workers compensation insurance with the EVEREST PREMIER INSURANCE COMPANY
Policy Number:7600021228201
E�ective Date: 01/01/2020
Expire Date: 01/01/2021
Workers' Compensation History

Other

The qualifying individual SILVIANO CASTRO certified that he/she owns 10 percent or more of the voting stock/membership interest of
this company; therefore, the Bond of Qualifying Individual is not required.
E�ective Date: 05/04/2017
BQI's Bond History



The qualifying individual JULIO CASTRO certified that he/she owns 10 percent or more of the voting stock/membership interest of this
company; therefore, the Bond of Qualifying Individual is not required.
E�ective Date: 07/18/2016
BQI's Bond History



The qualifying individual ELOY OCHOA certified that he/she owns 10 percent or more of the voting stock/membership interest of this
company; therefore, the Bond of Qualifying Individual is not required.
E�ective Date: 05/18/2017



Personnel listed on this license (current or disassociated) are listed on other licenses.

Back to Top  Conditions of Use  Privacy Policy  Accessibility  Accessibility Certification

Page 63 of 85

https://www.cslb.ca.gov/OnlineServices/CheckLicenseII/INSDetail.aspx?Action=INSDETIC&Code=G52
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/OnlineServices/CheckLicenseII/ContractorBondingHistory.aspx?LicNum=849837&BondType=CB
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/OnlineServices/CheckLicenseII/INSDetail.aspx?Action=INSDETWC&Code=555
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/OnlineServices/CheckLicenseII/WCHistory.aspx?LicNum=849837
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/OnlineServices/CheckLicenseII/BQIBondingHistory.aspx?Licnum=849837&QualIndv=1
https://www.cslb.ca.gov/OnlineServices/CheckLicenseII/BQIBondingHistory.aspx?Licnum=849837&QualIndv=2
https://www.ca.gov/use/
https://www.dca.ca.gov/about_dca/privacy_policy.shtml
http://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/Accessibility.aspx
http://www.cslb.ca.gov/About_Us/CSLBCertificate.pdf


 !"#$%&#!$'(")!$*%#+!"

 !"#$%&'()(*%+#,!

,-.-/0' 12 -30.' 12.0/4 0(125'(2 6

 !"#$%&'()(*%-*.!

 !$7!$%#+!"

/(#(01

-87+$9:

2!")1(3#()4'%+0,5!3

;<<<<<==;>

2!")1(3#()4'%!6!7()8!%9#(!

=?;@?A<;B

2!")1(3#()4'%!:.)3#()4'%9#(!

=?@<?A<;>

;#)$)'"%<993!11

C>CCD'EF-'G<H'(2,(1H>AA<@H EH4"+#9:'.#%#9I'!)'E*9$+&%

=>*1)7#$%<993!11

C>AB;'EF-'G<H'(2,(1H>AA<@H EH4"+#9:'.#%#9I'!)'E*9$+&%

&,#)$%<993!11

-3#9!%+#,!?@A<

 )7!'1!%+0,5!3B1C

1#J9$KBG>B@C

/9L+I#$%#+!"'M+I#!$N

O9L%P'-"#+#N'(")!$*%#+!"

D43.43#()4'%+0,5!3E

E<=C==;=

F!9!3#$%&,.$4*,!'(%G9!'()H7#()4'%+0,5!3E

=3!1)9!'(%+#,!E

Q4O(1' E.0/1

I)7!%=3!1)9!'(%+#,!E

/-R(2E' E.0/1

-3!#103!3%+#,!E

/!73!(#3*%+#,!E

D&J%+#,!E

<"!'(%4K%/!38)7!%+#,!E

ES(/

<"!'(%4K%/!38)7!%;#)$)'"%<993!11E

C>CCD'EF-'G<HH(2,(1H>AA<@H EH4"+#9:'.#%#9I'!)'E*9$+&%

T!$U9$I' !*79"I%#+!"

-V9&#+W9',%#9'HH -87+$%#+!"',%#9

=?;@?A<;B =?@<?A<;>

=?;>?A<;C =?@<?A<;B

D?D?A<;= =?@<?A<;C

C?A?A<;D =?@<?A<;=

;?A@?A<;D =?@<?A<;D

C?;?A<;> =?@<?A<AA

@4%*40%$!#1!%!,.$4*!!1%(>340">

=34K!11)4'#$%&,.$4*!3

J3"#')L#()4'%B=&JCME

=$!#1!%.348)9!%*403%7033!'(

N43O!31%74,.!'1#()4'%)'103#'7!

)'K43,#()4'%5!$4NE

3-1'(")!$*%#+!"

3-1

2%*9

3-1

3J!"9

3-1

-*%+P

.9P)'("IX$9:

P43O!31%D4,.!'1#()4'%D!3(?=4$Q GD<@Y;@@

P43O!31%D4,.!'1#()4'%D!3()H7#Q ;<?;G?A<;A

Page 64 of 85



  
 

Valley Sanitary District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

September 8, 2020 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
 
THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 
 
FROM:  Ronald Buchwald, Engineering Services Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Contract with Harris 

& Associates in an Amount Not to Exceed $47,400 for Inspection 
Services for the Indio Boulevard Rehabilitation Project 

 
☒ Board Action ☐ New expenditure request ☒ Contract Award 
☐ Board Information ☒ Existing FY Approved Budget ☐ Closed Session 

 
Executive Summary  
The purpose of this report is for the Board of Directors to review and discuss the 
proposal from Harris & Associates. 
 
Strategic Plan Compliance 
This item complies with VSD Strategic Plan Objective 3: Excellent Facilities. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
The total cost of this proposal is $47,400. The current budget for the Collection System 
Rehabilitation & Program Management project is $876,260 and is included in the FY 
2020/21 Capital Improvement Budget.  
 
Background 
The Collection System Rehabilitation & Program Management project is comprised of 
multiple sewer main replacement or relining projects within the District’s boundary. 
Inspection services are required to make sure the contractor performs the required work 
per VSD design standards and project specifications. VSD staff will be involved in these 
efforts but need outside assistance to perform the daily inspection tasks. 
 
This proposal is for the Indio Boulevard Rehabilitation Project only. Future projects in 
this program will need inspection services as well, but we will use this project to 
customize future proposals. 
 
 
 

 

Page 65 of 85



Page 2 
 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to 
execute a contract with Harris & Associates in an amount not to exceed $47,400 to 
provide inspection services for the Indio Blvd Rehabilitation Project and authorize the 
General Manager to execute Task Order No. 20-01. 
 
Attachments 
Attachment A: Harris & Associates’ proposal dated July 31, 2020 

Page 66 of 85



 

 

1  
 

July 31, 2020 

 
Ron Buchwald, PE 
District Engineer 
Valley Sanitary District 
45500 Van Buren Street 
Indio, California 92253 
 
Subject: Task Order for Inspection Services for the Indio Boulevard Trunk Sewer Rehabilitation Project  

 

Dear Ron, 

Harris & Associates (Harris) appreciates the opportunity to present our proposal for inspection services for the Valley 
Sanitary District (District) Indio Boulevard Trunk Sewer Rehabilitation Project (Project). This Project consisting of 
installation of CIPP liner in existing sewer mains, across two sites with eight segments and one segment of line respectively 
is anticipated to take less than 30 days including re-establishment of sewer laterals, manhole rehabilitation, and sewer 
bypass. Harris & Associates is registered with the DIR and experienced in inspecting this type of work.  

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
Field Inspection Services: 

• Review work for conformance with contract specifications and plans. Review Contractor’s work and operations 
regarding safety, traffic control, quality and quantity of work.  Review Contractor’s adherence to the environmental 
and regulatory conditions of the contract.   

• Maintain complete and accurate daily contract records (including photographs) for work performed.  
• Obtain certifications for materials incorporated into the work and check material against requirements in the contract 

documents.  
• Check for incorporation of approved changes into the work.  
• Communicate daily with the Project Manager on status of all work and issues. 

 

STAFF 

 
We have two highly qualified and experienced Senior Inspectors in the area and realize that the proposing contractor’s 
schedule will determine timing of field work on this project. Therefore, we are providing you two resumes for proposed 
staff for Inspection Services on the Project, Kenneth Hicks and Ralph Roberts, attached to this proposal. Depending on the 
final schedule of services in the field one of these inspectors will provide inspection for this Project. 
 

PROPOSED FEES 

 
Harris proposes to provide the Inspection Services as detailed above on the Project for the hourly not-to-exceed “time 
and materials” fee of $47,400 based on the project’s 30 working days at a rate of $196.27 for this prevailing wage work.  

Page 67 of 85



 

 

2  
 

Harris & Associates has construction management professionals, technical experts, site safety experts, and 
administrators if additional services are necessary. If materials testing or geotechnical support is necessary, that would 
be at an additional cost. Let us know if this is of interest. We have partners in the industry that support this scope of 
work. 

 

We look forward to continue to work with the District on this important project.  Please do not hesitate to contact me 
with any questions. 

 

Regards, 

HARRIS & ASSOCIATES, Inc.           

                   
Ehab Gerges, PE, QSD  
Senior Vice President   
(949) 683-2011   

ehab.gerges@WeAreHarris.com  

 

Attachments: Resumes 

Page 68 of 85

mailto:ehab.gerges@WeAreHarris.com


Harris & Associates, Inc.   

Kenneth Hicks, QSP
CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR

Kenneth has more than 16 years civil construction inspection experience on large civil infrastructure 
projects including sewer systems, water systems, storm drains, dams, and roadways. Determining 
quality, materials, and workmanship through his inspections, Kenneth provides inspections of 
construction work for underground pipelines including rehabilitation by CIPP lining installation; 
restoration of all in place landscaping and irrigation; and street repair including PCC sidewalk, curb 
and gutter, and paving —all to plans, specifications and all contract documents. He supports project 
managers with documentation, schedule and budget management, reviewing potential change orders, 
conducting project meetings, and keeping the District regularly informed of progress and any issues 
or concerns.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

• City of San Mateo/Kennedy Jenks, Basin D Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation. Construction 
Inspector. Harris is providing construction management and inspection services for the 
City of San Mateo for rehabilitation and repairs of its aging Sanitary Sewer system Basin D 
quadrant. We have been monitoring multiple work crews performing 300+ repairs, line and 
manhole replacements, and rehabilitation of the system on behalf of the City. Construction 
management duties include schedule and budget management, reviewing potential change 
orders, conducting project meetings and keeping the City regularly informed of progress and 
any issues or concerns.

• City of Hermosa Beach, Sewer Improvements Phase 2 (CIP 17-416). Construction Inspector. 
The general scope of work for this project is the rehabilitation or replacement of approximately 
30 sewer segments and 60 manholes throughout the City of Hermosa Beach using a variety 
of methods, dependent on the severity of pipe or manhole defects. The project consists of 
replacement or rehabilitation of multiple sewer segments and manholes throughout the city 
of Hermosa Beach. A variety of pipe rehabilitation methods are recommended dependent 
on the severity of defects within the pipes, including root removal, CIPP lining installation, 
point repair replacement, and full pipe replacement. The project also includes recommended 
rehabilitation methods for 59 manholes based on a field inspection of approximately 90 
existing manholes in the City. 

• City of Indio, I-10 and Jefferson St. Interchange. Construction Inspector. This $42 million 
project involved the modification and construction of on-ramps and off-ramps, traffic signals 
at on and off-ramps, construction of a new six-lane bridge with bicycle lanes and sidewalk over 
the I-10 freeway, and demolition of existing I-10 overcrossing and northbound Indio Boulevard 
overcrossing. Kenneth provided inspection services on all elements of this project.

• City of Culver City, LA Metro Expo Light Rail Line. Construction Inspector. The Metro Expo 
Line is a 15.2-mile light rail that runs from downtown Los Angeles to Santa Monica. Phase 
1 was comprised of 8.6-miles from downtown to Culver City with most stations opening 
in 2012. Phase 2 was a 6.6-mile portion between Culver City and Santa Monica. Kenneth’s 
responsibilities included assisting with general inspections for street improvements, traffic 
signals, street lighting, signing striping and drainage, monitoring night construction of 
sanitary sewer and relocation of utilities in the public right-of-way, assisting with “over 
the shoulder” inspections of constructions of bike paths and pedestrian connections, and 
photographing site, documented existing conditions and assisted with Daily Constructions 
Reports (DCR’S). 

REGISTRATIONS 
Qualified SWPPP Practitioner, 
California Stormwater Quality 
Association

CERTIFICATIONS 
OSHA 10-Hour Construction 

Nuclear Gauge Certification 

Page 69 of 85



   3

Ralph Roberts
SENIOR CONSTRUCTION INSPECTOR

Ralph has more than 40 years of experience working in the engineering and construction industry. 
His most recent experience includes the Sebastopol Road Water and Sewer Replacement project for 
the City of Santa Rosa; and Kings River, Fresno Recharge, Reclaimed Water and SW-1B projects 
for the City of Fresno. These projects included the replacement of existing water and sewer mains. 
Ralph also has a broad range of experience including the operation of heavy construction equipment, 
grade checking, construction inspection, CAD drafting, and mapping. His unique combination 
of experience provides understanding of engineering, surveying and construction practices and 
procedures. Ralph’s responsibilities include construction management and inspection, record 
keeping, maintenance of as-built plans, and pay quantity estimates.

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

• City of Fresno, Recharge Fresno Project. Senior Inspector. Ralph has been performing 
inspection services on the Recharge Fresno project for the last three years, which is the 
program to improve the pipelines and water system facilities that will capture, treat, and 
deliver water to Fresno homes and businesses, including surface water from the Sierra Nevada 
Mountains. He has been involved in a number of separate projects for Recharge Fresno, 
including the Kings River, SW-1A, SW-1B, and SW-1C projects.

 – Kings River: Involved 13 miles of pipeline of 72-inch CML&C raw water pipeline from the 
Kings River Diversion to the new Southeast WTP.

 – SW-1B: Involved 5,620 LF of 48-inch CML&C welded steel pipe; 10,719 LF of 36-inch CML&C 
welded steel pipe; and 3,923 LF of 10-inch PVC pipe. It also included ductile iron piped 
blowoffs and ARV lines, and isolation joints on the steel main. 3-66-inch jack and bore steel 
casings were used for the 48-inch RWTM in Cornelia under State Highway 180, UPRR, and 
Belmont Avenue. This required a Caltrans encroachment permit. Three were 2-54-inch jack 
and bore steel casings on Belmont Avenue for the 36-inch RWTM. Trench restoration paving 
was done to Caltrans specifications and City of Fresno specifications. A fiber optic duct was 
installed throughout the installation of the reclaimed water transmission mains with vaults.

• Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, On-Call Inspection Services. 
Senior Construction Inspector. These projects included construction and installation of storm 
drains, rein-forced concrete boxes, reinforced concrete pipe, trapezoidal channels, head and wing 
walls, warped wing walls, concrete aprons, rock slope protection, velocity dissipation baffles, slope 
paving, channel crossings, right-of-way access roads, right-of-way fencing and gates, junction 
structures, and manholes. Ralph worked with developers and contractors to verify the development 
work relating to District’s facilities adhered to County Flood Control Standards, specified Caltrans 
Standards, and to the designed plans. He inspected as many as 14 active projects. Ralph performed 
on-site inspection visits, kept progress reports/redline drawings for the projects, and reported daily 
to the Construction Inspection Department at Flood Control District.

• Cities of Rialto, Muscoy, and San Bernardino, 210/30 Freeway Drainage Inspection. Senior 
Construction Inspector/Utilities Coordinator. This $112 million project was delivered to Caltrans 
Standards and Specifications. Ralph worked with Caltrans right-of-way engineers and encroachment 
permit inspectors to confirm compliance. He inspected drainage facilities including all sizes and 
types of pipe (including 30-inch and 36-inch welded steel pipe-line and RCP storm pipeline), 
catch basins, drainage inlets, headwalls, and drainage ditches. Early work on this project included 
DIP potable water pipeline relocation. He also oversaw traffic control activities. Utilities included 
State of California, Department of Water Resources, Water and Sewer Divisions, Water and Sewer 
Departments, West Valley Water District, Muscoy Mutual Water Department, and more.

CERTIFICATIONS
Auto CAD Certification

Page 70 of 85



  
Valley Sanitary District 

Board of Directors Meeting 
September 8, 2020 

 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
THROUGH: Beverli A. Marshall, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly General Managers Report – July  
  
☐Board Action ☐New Budget Approval ☐Contract Award 
☒ Board Information ☐Existing FY Approved Budget ☐Closed Session 

 
Executive Summary 
The purpose of this report is to keep the Board and public informed on VSD’s day-to-
day operations. 
 
Strategic Plan Compliance 
The recommendation complies with the VSD Strategic Plan Goal 6: Improve Planning, 
Administration, and Governance. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact from this report. 
 
Background 
The following data represents the activities and metrics for the month of August 2020. 
 
Administrative Services 

• The auditors completed their onsite fieldwork and are anticipated to submit a 
draft report by the end of September 2020. 

• Updating the statistical section schedules and Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A) for June 30, 2020, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR). 

• First Budget and Finance Committee meeting was held on 09/01/20. Director 
Dennis M. Coleman was selected as Committee Chair. The next Budget and 
Finance Committee meeting will take place on 11/03/20.   

• Continuing to work with CASELLE to upgrade permitting and accounting 
software. 

 
 
 

Page 71 of 85



Page 2 
 

Operations & Maintenance 
• Operations has scheduled a weekly exchange of biosolids trailers with Denali 

Water Solutions. Every Wednesday, Denali will show up to remove a full trailer 
and leave an empty to be filled for pick up the following week. The weekly 
disposal has already begun. 

• Iron Sponge media used to remove hydrogen sulfide from the digester gas has 
been removed and replaced. The offline tank is ready to go into service when 
needed. 

• Operations staff finished dredging the south cell and has moved the dredge into 
the North Cell to remove the sludge accumulated over the last few years. 

• The solar mixer has been assembled and installed out in the middle of Pond 3. 

• The Ammonia Study Work Plan was approved by the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board.  The mandatory ammonia study will begin on September 1, 2020 
and will be ongoing for one year. The study includes the weekly sampling and 
testing of ammonia at the influent, primary effluent, pond effluent, activated 
sludge effluent, and the outfall. As part of the work plan, staff will be adhering to 
process control guidelines spelled out in the work plan to maintain substantial 
removal of ammonia from the waste stream. In 18 months, a technical report will 
have to be submitted of the data gathered during this time. 

• Staff is working with Schneider Electric and Stantec in coordinating site visits to 
various wastewater treatment plants that have installed bar screen and grit 
removal technologies that are being considered for the upcoming VSD treatment 
plant upgrades.  

 
Development Services 

• DR Horton is in the process of developing homes in the Monte Vina subdivision 
after it sat idle for more than last 12 years.  After assessing the condition of the 
unfinish sewer mains, it was discovered some repairs would need to be done 
prior to breaking ground on the Lots. 

• The Vallarta Supermarket in moving into the old Marshalls building. The full-
service Supermarket will include multiple restaurants and a bar.   

• Whites Steel medal fabrication site has been cleared in the downtown area. 
Whites Steel has moved to a new location in the Mecca/Thermal area after being 
in Indio for many decades. 

 
Collection Services 

• No-Spill report for August 2020 will be submitted to the California Integrated 
Water Quality System, as required by the Waste Discharge Requirements 
Monitoring and Reporting Program.  The report is due on or before September 
30, 2020.  

• Updating the Collection System Questionnaire in the California Integrated Water 
Quality System, as required under the Statewide Waste Discharge Requirements 
(WDR).  This is an annual requirement that is due on or before September 30, 
2020. 

Page 72 of 85



Page 3 
 

• The Field Vactor Crew is currently working on Avenue 48 and Jackson. 

• CCTV pipe assessment inspections are currently being conducted on Avenue 45 
and Palo Verde. 

 
Capital Improvement Program 

• The Preliminary Design Report for the replacement of the sewer siphon at 
Westward Ho Drive is complete. This is a FEMA funded project to replace the 
damaged sewer siphon from the February 2019 storm. Design is in progress.  
Staff and the consultant had a preliminary meeting with CVWD regarding 
requirements for crossing the channel. Carollo has provided a preliminary 
progress submittal of design plans which District staff has reviewed and 
submitted back to Carollo for revision. The complete design plans are scheduled 
to be ready by February 2021.  

• Staff is continuing to work with Harris and Associates on the Collections System 
Rehabilitation and Maintenance project. Currently, Harris is working on putting 
together bid documents for the CCTV inspection of sewer mains that need 
special requirements or technology. Harris has provided a final version of the 
front-end bid documents. Harris has also developed a first project to begin the 
rehabilitation portion of the program which staff has also reviewed and submitted 
revisions. Final project documents have been approved by VSD and the City of 
Indio. The first rehabilitation project was put out to bid and advertised to potential 
bidders on August 3, 2020. Proposals are due to the District and will be opened 
on September 10, 2020. 

• VSD has chosen SGH Architects as the architectural firm for the preliminary 
design of a new two-story training/office building.  Staff had a second meeting 
with the architect to discuss ideas for a functional and adequate building. Staff 
has selected a new location for the building that will allow a possible single-story 
building and without any demolition. Once a new layout has been developed, 
staff will share with the Board. 

• VSD is currently working with Stantec, who is acting as an Owner’s 
Representative, on the repair and rehabilitation of the Influent Pump Station. 
Stantec and staff have received five (5) Statement of Qualifications as part of the 
Request for Qualification (RFQ) solicitation. Staff and Stantec shortlisted three 
(3) of the firms to move on to the next step of submitting a proposal for the work 
to be completed. The Request for Proposal (RFP) was released on August 28, 
2020 and is due on September 28, 2020. 

• VSD has received one bid for a landscape contractor to install gravel and rock 
material along the existing fence line alongside Cabazon Road to prevent 
washout during heavy rain events. The bid is responsive.  Staff will request 
Board award at the September 8 Board meeting. 

• Staff is working on implementing an asset management system for the treatment 
plant using Lucity web software.  VSD is currently working on building out the 
Lucity Web system with the help of a Lucity implementor. The first session of 
virtual training from the implementor was completed on August 25, 2020. The 
next session will be scheduled in late September. Staff has finished the 
installation of Lucity Mobile and is pursuing the implementation of plant-wide WiFi 

Page 73 of 85



Page 4 
 

which will allow access to the asset management system from a mobile device 
anywhere in the plant facility. 

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board receive the Manager’s Report for activities during the 
month of July. 
 
Attachments 
Attachment A: Administrative Services Report for July 
Attachment B: Monthly NPDES Report for July 
Attachment C: Development Services Report for July 
Attachment D: Collection Services Report for July 
Attachment E: Capital Improvement Program Update for July 

Page 74 of 85



Administrative Services - Task Summary 2020

Task Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total 

To 

Date

Active litigation filed 1       -   -   -   -   -   -   1       

Board meeting 2       2       2       2       2       2       2       14     

Budget/Finance Committee 

meeting -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Employee anniversaries -   3       2       -   3       4       4       16     

Employee promotions 1       1       -   -   1       1       2       6       

Facebook postings 1       9       9       6       7       7       2       41     

Insurance claims initiated -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Lost time work incidents -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Media coverage items -   -   -   1       -   -   -   1       

New hires -   2       -   -   2       1       1       6       

Press release -   -   3       1       1       -   -   5       

Public records request -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Resignations 1       1       1       -   -   -   -   3       

Retirements -   -   -   -   -   -   1       1       

Page 75 of 85



Monthly 

July 2020 VSD WWTP

July 2020

CBOD

(mg/L)

CBOD 

Load

(lb/day)

TSS

(mg/L)

TSS Load

(lb/day)

1

2 221 10,082 239 10,903

3

4

5

6

7

8

9 212 9,671 218 9,945

10

11

12

13

14

15

16 233 10,629 186 8,485

17

18

19

20

21

22

23 301 13,631 218 9,872

24

25

26

27

28

29

30 251 11,430 214 9,745

31

Average 244 11,089 215 9,790

Minimum 212 9,671 186 8,485

Maximum 301 13,631 239 10,903

Count 5 5 5 5

Total 55,443 48,950

95 Percentile

Exceedences 0 0 0 0

Plant Influent 

Page 76 of 85



Monthly 

July 2020 VSD WWTP

Flow - to 

channel

(MGD)

CBOD

(mg/L)

CBOD 

Load

(lb/day)

CBOD 

Weekly 

Average 

Concentrat

ion

(mg/L)

CBOD 

Weekly 

Average 

Load

(lb/day)

CBOD 

Monthly 

Average 

Concentrat

ion

(mg/L)

TSS

(mg/L)

TSS Load

(lb/day)

TSS 

Weekly 

Average 

Concentrat

ion

(mg/L)

TSS 

Weekly 

Average 

Load

(lb/day)

4.90

5.02 10.1 423 5 209

5.33

5.3 10.10 423 5.00 209

5.16

4.48

4.48

4.58

4.64 9.0 348 5.7 221

5.03

5.04 9.00 348 5.70 221

4.98

4.42

4.49

4.67

4.71 5.92 233 2.2 86

4.69

4.63 5.92 233 2.20 86

4.58

4.88

4.75

4.7

4.65 6.1 237 3.1 120

4.76

4.69 6.10 237 3.10 120

4.54

4.6

4.47

4.59

4.58 5.48 209 3 115

4.6 7.32

4.74 7.32 290 7.78 310 7.32 3.8 150 4.00 159

4.42 5.48 209 5.92 233 7.32 2.2 86 2.20 86

5.33 10.1 423 10.10 423 7.32 5.7 221 5.70 221

31 5 5 4 4 1 5 5 4 4

146.94 1,450 1,241 751 636

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ASP Flow ASP Effluent Composite 

Page 77 of 85



Monthly 

July 2020 VSD WWTP

Pond 

Effluent 

Flow

(MGD)

CBOD

(mg/L)

CBOD 

Load

(lb/day)

CBOD 

Weekly 

Average 

Concentrat

ion

(mg/L)

CBOD 

Weekly 

Average 

Load

(lb/day)

CBOD 

Monthly 

Average 

Concentrat

ion

(mg/L)

TSS

(mg/L)

TSS Load

(lb/day)

TSS 

Weekly 

Average 

Concentrat

ion

(mg/L)

TSS 

Weekly 

Average 

Load

(lb/day)

1.0

1.43 18.4 219 27.2 324

0.22

0 18.4 219 27.2 324

0

1.27

1.64

1.35

1.57 14.0 183 41.2 539

1.2

1.15 14.0 183 41.2 539

1.13

1.18

1.13

1.11

1.12 16.8 157 29.8 278

1.1

0.94 16.8 157 29.8 278

0.92

0.11

1.09

1.23

1.37 15.9 182 29.7 339

1.25

1.14 15.9 182 29.7 339

1.06

0.99

0.97

1.1

1.2 20.5 205 41.7 417

1.16 17.1

1.04 17.1 189 16.3 185 17.1 33.9 379 32.0 370

0 14.0 157 14.0 157 17.1 27.2 278 27.2 278

1.64 20.5 219 18.4 219 17.1 41.7 539 41.2 539

31 5 5 4 4 1 5 5 4 4

32.13 946 741 1,897 1,480

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Pond Effluent Composite 

Page 78 of 85



Monthly 

July 2020 VSD WWTP

EColi

(MPN/100m

l)

Temperatu

re

(degrees F)

pH

( )

SO2 Usage

(gal)

CL2 

Residual

(mg/L)

Daily 

Chlorine 

Usage (lbs)

(lb/day)

Daily SO2 

Usage (lbs)

(lb/day)

Ammonia 

(total, as N)

(mg/L)

Total 

Nitrogen

(mg/L)

Dissolved 

Oxygen

(mg/L)

13.1 82.2 7.44 144 < 0.01 3,353 1,201 6.32

80.6 7.39 184 < 0.01 4,162 1,535 6.46

80.8 7.3 152 < 0.01 2,319 1,268 6.34

81.1 7.32 145 < 0.01 2,527 1,209 6.15

81.5 7.33 139 < 0.01 2,610 1,159 6.18

82.4 7.48 169 < 0.01 4,529 1,409 6.14

80.8 7.67 143 < 0.01 4,028 1,193 1.7 21 6.28

25.3 82.9 7.39 167 < 0.01 3,486 1,393 6.13

80.6 7.36 187 < 0.01 4,554 1,560 6.23

81.5 7.03 265 < 0.01 4,779 2,210 7.02

82.2 7.22 215 < 0.01 4,554 1,793 6.06

80.6 7.21 182 < 0.01 4,162 1,518 6.20

82.0 7.49 203 < 0.01 4,170 1,693 6.46

81.5 7.37 204 < 0.01 3,703 1,701 6.56

42.8 82.6 7.47 207 < 0.01 3,228 1,726 6.41

80.6 7.42 218 < 0.01 3,052 1,818 6.72

82.4 7.17 263 < 0.01 3,186 2,193 6.05

82.0 7.28 266 < 0.01 3,153 2,218 6.07

81.3 7.24 174 < 0.01 2,986 1,451 6.18

82.4 7.61 171 < 0.01 1,751 1,426 6.34

83.1 7.48 166 < 0.01 2,927 1,384 6.17

11.9 84.6 7.39 159 < 0.01 3,169 1,326 6.25

81.3 7.35 207 < 0.01 3,286 1,726 6.36

80.4 7.19 201 < 0.01 3,595 1,676 7.19

80.4 7.26 163 < 0.01 3,836 1,359 6.38

81.5 7.26 195 < 0.01 3,578 1,626 6.21

82.4 7.44 212 < 0.01 3,820 1,768 6.37

82.4 7.29 167 < 0.01 3,328 1,393 6.57

34.5 84.0 7.51 154 < 0.01 4,095 1,284 6.67

81.7 7.42 162 < 0.01 4,454 1,351 6.47

86.5 7.28 155 < 0.01 5,238 1,293 6.45

22.5* 82.0 7.36 185 0.01 3,601 1,544 1.7 21 6.37

11.9 80.4 7.03 139 < 0.01 1,751 1,159 1.7 21 6.05

42.8 86.5 7.67 266 < 0.01 5,238 2,218 1.7 21 7.19

5 31 31 31 31 31 31 1 1 31

5,739 111,618 47,860

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Plant Discharge (Outfall) Grab 

Page 79 of 85



 4B      

4-Aug-20
Plan Check in Progress
Inspection in Progress

New Project

PROJECT NAME STREET ADDRESS / CROSS STREET CURRENT PROJECT STATUS NEXT ACTION ITEM

7-Eleven  Golf Center Intersection of Golf Center/Avenue 45, address TBD

Civil plans submitted for new 7-Eleven store. Completed 1st plan check and returned 
to the engineer 12/4/19. Completed 3rd plan check and returned to applicant via 
email 3/25/20. Perform 4th plan check upon plan resubmittal.

A&J Nails TI 82151 Avenue 42, Ste 108
Plans sumbitted for TI of existing nail salon. Completed 1st plan check and returned 
to the applicant. 5/4/20. Perform 2nd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Abel Lupian Commercial Bldg. 45105 Commerce Street
Plans submitted for new commercial building. Completed 1st plan check and 
returned to the applicant 4/3/20. Perform 2nd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Animal Samaritans - TI 42150 Jackson Street, Ste's 104-106
Plans submitted for building TI. Plans approved and returned to the applicant 
2/4/2020. Issued permit 3874 on 2/28/2020. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Arbys' Restaurant  TI 82111 Avenue 42/Monroe Street
Plans submitted for TI of existing shell building. Completed 2nd plan check and 
returned to applicant 7/10/20. Perform 3rd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Bel Cielo - Tr 32425 West of Clinton South of Ave 44
Model homes. No plan check is required. Permit and Inspection fees need to be paid. 
Issued permit 3840 on 9/13/19. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Buzzbox 42625 Jackson Street #112
Plans submitted exisitng building TI. Completed 1st plan check and returned to the 
City 2/22/19. Perform 2nd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Cardenas Single Family Dwelling (SFD) 82266 Stallone Drive Plans submitted for new SFD. Plans approved, notified the applicant 6/16/20. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.
Chandi Plaza SW Corner of Indio Blvd/Avenue 44 Plans submitted for new plaza. In Queue

Chavez Tenant Improvement 45330 Jackson St/Civic Center

Plans submitted for TI of existing building. Demolition of interior walls and facilities. 
Completed 4th plan check and returned to the City 6/25/18. Issued permit 3755 on 
7/9/18. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Chipotle Mexican Grill TI 42213 Jackson Street, Suite 106
Plans submitted for TI of existing shell building. Plans approved and returned to 
applicant 7/16/20. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

Citadel RV Storage-Phase 1 83667 Dr. Carreon Blvd/Calhoun Street
Plans submitted for construction of new RV storage facility. Plans approved and 
returned to the applicant 3/17/2020. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

Corso Residence 49491 Braley Court Plans submitted for single family residence. In Queue

Donuts Bistro 82151 Avenue 42, Ste 104
Plans submitted for construction of new restaurant. Plans approved and returned to 
the City 8/28/19. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

Dunn Edwards Paint Store 81921 Hwy 111/Las Palmas
Plans submitted for new retail building. Plans approved and returned to applicant 
4/13/20. Issued permit 3884 on 5/12/2020. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

El Destino Nightclub - TI 83085 Indio Boulevard/Civic Cnter Mall
Plans submitted for existing building TI 11/30/2015.  Plans approved and returned to 
the City 3/22/16. Issued permit 3577 on 5/24/16. Issued permit 3596 on 8/3/16. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

EOS Fitness Ave 42 Gym SWC of Spectrum Street & Avenue 42
Plans submitted for construction of new gym facility. Completed 2nd plan check and 
returned to the City 11/13/19. Perform 3rd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

EOS Fitness Hwy 111 Highway/Jefferson Street
Plans submitted for construction of new gym facility. Plans approved and notified 
applicant 4/27/20.

Waiting for Develoment Agreement and Bonds 
before owner can process permit paperwork.

EOS Fitness Public Sewer Extension SWC of Spectrum Street & Avenue 42
 Plans approved and returned to the engineer 6/3/19. Bond and Develoment 
agreement in place. Waiting to recieve recorded agreement. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Fred Young (Villa Hermosa Apts Phase III) 83801 Dr. Carreon Blvd / West of Van Buren
Plans submitted for apts at Fred Young Farm Labor Dev. Plans approved and returned 
to the applicant 7/17/2019. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

Gallery at Indian Springs Jefferson St/Westward Ho Drive

Civil plans submitted for plan check. Completed 1st plan check and returned to the 
Engineer 1/10/18. Completed 2nd plan check and returned to the Engineer 1/25/18. 
Plans approved 1/31/18. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Gallery Homes Tract -Indian Palms Monroe & Avenue 50

Gallery Homes has recently purchased the 106 lots.  Staff has inspected the site and 
prepared a list of improvements that need to be made prior to issuing connection 
permits.  Plans submitted for home plans. Reviewed 1st plan check and returned 
back to the city on 6/4/2014. 2nd plan check returned to city 7/7/14.  Model plans 
approved and retuned to the City 8/22/14.  New homes currently under 
construction. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT

Page 1

Page 80 of 85



 4B      

PROJECT NAME STREET ADDRESS / CROSS STREET CURRENT PROJECT STATUS NEXT ACTION ITEM

Gallery Links  - 3 Indian Palms Country Club - Monroe/Avenue 48
Plans sumbitted for installation of 5 sewer laterals for new SFD. Plans approved and 
returned to the applicant 4/13/20. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

George Fregoso SFD 46600 Padua Circle Plans submitted for new SFD. Plans approved and notified the applicant 5/7/20. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

Golden Corral Restaurant Atlantic Ave/Caspian near Ave 42 and Jackson
Plans submitted for new restaurant building. Completed 1st plan check and returned 
to the applicant 2/7/20. Perform 2nd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Habitat for Humanity SFD 43655 Towne Street
Received plans for the construction of a new home on vacant lot. Plans approved and 
returned to the applicant 3/11/20. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

Habitat for Humanity SFD 43689 Arabia Street
Received plans for the construction of a new home on vacant lot. Plans approved and 
returned to the applicant 3/11/20. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

Hampton Inn Sewer Main Extension North Wast Corner of Spectrum St and Atlantic Ave

Plans submitted for the extension of a public sewer main for Hampton Inn at Atlantic 
Ave. Plan check fees paid 7/11/18. Completed 2nd plan check and returned plans to 
the engineer 8/9/18. Plans approved and returned to enginner 8/27/18. Sewer 
Finaled 5/12/20. Waiting for owner to submit Warranty Bond 

Indian Water RV Community Bldg. 47202 Jackson Street
Plans submitted for new community building. Completed 1st plan check and 
returned to applicant. 9/25/19. Issued permit 3873 on 2/26/2020. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Indio Behavioral Health Hospital 81655 JFK Court
Civil plans submitted for new mental health facility. Completed 1st plan check and 
returned to the engineer 12/2/19. Plans approved 6/24/20. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

Indio Juvenile Court 47671 Oasis St/ Ave 48

Plans submitted to demo existing juvinile court building and construct new building 
on the same site. Completed 1st plan check and returned to the City 2/23/16. 
Completed 2nd plan check and returned to the applicant 6/8/2020. Perform 3rd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Indio Palms Sewer Main Extension South East Corner of Avenue 42 and Monroe St

Plans submitted for the extension of a private sewer main for Indio Palms at 
Spectrum Street. Plan check fees paid 2/1/18.  Plans approved and returned to 
engineer 5/10/18. Development agreement and Bonds  in place. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Jackson Street Liquor Store 44350 Jackson Street/Ruby Avenue
Plans submitted exisitng building TI. Plans approved and returned to the City 
4/29/19. Issued permit 3829 on 7/26/19. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Jacqueline & Oscar Lua Residence 80-555 Ridgeback Court Plans submitted for single family residence. In Queue

John Nobles Apartments TBD - Rubidoux Street/John Nobles Ave
Plans submitted new apartment complex. Completed 1st plan check and returned to 
the City 2/27/19. Perform 2nd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Kennedy School Bldg Additions 45100 Clinton Street

Plans submitted for new building additions. Completed 1st plan check and returned 
to the applicant 11/6/19.  Plans approved check and returned to the applciant 
2/3/2020. Issued permit 3875 on 2/28/2020. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Maya Cinemas 82900 Avenue 42/Jackson Street
Plans submitted for construction of new building for theater. Completed 2nd plan 
check and returned to the City 10/16/19. Perform 3rd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Mex-American Tax Services 44250 Monroe St./South of Indio Blvd

Plans submitted for an office addition, Returned 1st plan check back to City on 
1/21/2014. Received 2nd submittal 3/13/2014. 2nd plan check completed and 
returned to the city on 3/31/2014. Received 3rd submittal 4/21/14. Reviewed, 
approved and returned plans back to the city on 5/15/2014. Issued permit 3518 on 
8/4/15. Permit expired with the City. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Motorcoach CC - Casita Addition 80501 Avenue 48, Lot 6
Plans submitted for casita addition and storage building. Plans approved and notified 
applicant 7/7/20. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Motorcoach CC - Casita Addition 80501 Avenue 48, Lot 145
Plans submitted for casita addition and storage building. Plans approved and 
returned to the City 5/9/19. Issued permit 3849 on 10/29/19. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Motorcoach CC - Casita Addition 80501 Avenue 48, Lot 225
Plans submitted for casita addition and storage building. Plans approved and 
returned to the City 5/8/19. Issued permit 3814 on 5/8/19. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Motorcoach CC - Casita Addition 80501 Avenue 48, Lot 320
Plans submitted for casita addition and storage building. Plans approved and 
returned to the City 5/9/19. Issued permit 3848 on 10/29/19. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Motorcoach CC - Casita Addition 80501 Avenue 48, Lot 321
Plans submitted for casita addition and storage building. Plans approved and 
returned to the applicant 12/17/19. Issued permit 3863 on 12/30/19. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Motorcoach CC - Casita Addition 80501 Avenue 48, Lot 328
Plans submitted for casita addition and storage building. Plans approved and 
returned to the applicant 5/5/20. Issued permit 3882 on 5/5/2020. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Nargizyan Dental Group TI 81637 Highway 111, Suite 1-B
Plans submitted for TI of existing suite. Completed 1st plan check and returned to the 
City 7/1/19. Perform 2nd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Page 2

Page 81 of 85



 4B      

PROJECT NAME STREET ADDRESS / CROSS STREET CURRENT PROJECT STATUS NEXT ACTION ITEM

North Outdoor Resorts - Casita Addition 80394 Avenue 48, Lot 245
Plans submitted for shade structure with outdoor kitchen. Plans approved and 
returned to the City 5/15/18. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

North Outdoor Resorts - Casita Addition 80394 Avenue 48, Lot 258
Plans submitted for casita addition and storage building. Plans approved and 
returned to the applicant 10/29/19. Issued permit 3850 on 10/29/19. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

North Outdoor Resorts - Casita Addition 80394 Avenue 48, Lot 349
Plans submitted for shade structure with outdoor kitchen. Plans approved and 
returned to the City 5/29/18. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

Octavio Rosales SFD 43645 Saguaro Street/Avenue 44
Plans submitted for new SFD. Completed 2nd plan check and returned to the City 
8/26/19. Perform 3rd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Old Navy Shell Building 42200 Jackson Street/Ave 42
Plans submitted for new Building. Plans approved and returned to applicant 
3/31/2020. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

Old Navy TI 42200 Jackson Street/Ave 42
Plans submitted for TI of existing shell building. Plans approved and notified applicant 
6/3/20. Waiting for owner to process permit paperwork.

One Stop Shop Grease Interceptor Install 84051 Indio Blvd/Van Buren Street

Preliminary plan submitted for grease interceptor TI 4/19/19. Completed 1st plan 
check and returned to owner's representative 4/30/19. Issued permit 3889 on 
6/19/20. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Ono Hawaiian BBQ 42550 Jackson Street/ Avenue 42
Plans submitted for new retail building. Completed 1st plan check and returned to 
applicant 11/7/19. Completed 2nd plan check and notified applicant 3/23/20. Perform 3rd plan check upon plan resubmittal.

Paradiso Tract 31815 East of Monroe North of Ave 41 New model homes under construction. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Parcel Map 36215 Dr. Carreon west of Van Buren
Civil plans submitted for 1st plan check. Plans approved and returned to the Engineer 
1/18/18. Issued permit 3718 on 1/23/18. Inspect work improvements as scheduled.

Page 3

Page 82 of 85



Task Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total To 

Date

Customer Service Calls 3           2           5             

F.O.G. Inspection - Completed 27         30         47         37         20         27         14         41           

F.O.G. Inspection - Fail -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -          

F.O.G. Inspection - Pass 27         30         47         37         20         27         14         41           

Hot spot cleaning (total)* -       26         26           

Lift station inspection 19         23         42           

Manhole inspection 120       104       224         

Sewer line CCTV (feet) 21,192  23,248  44,440    

Sewer line cleaning (feet) 42,853  43,908  86,761    

SSO Response - Cat 1 0 0 -          

SSO Response - Cat 2 0 0 -          

SSO Response - Cat 3 0 0 -          
USA Markings 44         67         111         

*Note: Hot spot cleaning is performed quarterly

Collection Services Task Summary Report for 2020

Page 83 of 85



UNOFFICAL UNTIL APPROVED 
                                                

  VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

September 1, 2020 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

*****SPECIAL NOTICE – Telephonic Accessibility***** 
Pursuant to Paragraph 11 of Executive Order N-25-20, executed by the Governor of California on March 
12, 2020, as a response to mitigating the spread of coronavirus known as COVID-19, during the 
September 1, 2020 regular meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee, members of the public will be 
allowed to attend and address the Board of Directors during the open session of the meeting 
telephonically. 
 
Members of the public wanting to listen to the open session of the meeting were able to do so by 
calling (425) 436-6376 and when prompted, enter access code 166514.  Members of the public 
wanting to address the Board, either during public comment or for a specific agenda item, or both, were 
requested to send an email notification no later than 12:30 p.m. on the day of the meeting to the Valley 
Sanitary District’s Clerk of the Board at hgould@valley-sanitary.org. 

 
A regular Meeting of the Valley Sanitary District (VSD) Budget & Finance Committee 
was held at the District offices, 45-500 Van Buren Street, Indio, California, on Tuesday, 
September 1, 2020. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Director Sear called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.   

 
1.1 Roll Call   
 

  Directors Present:  
 Dennis Coleman (via telephone), Scott Sear 
  

Staff Present:   
Beverli Marshall, General Manager, Jeanette Juarez, Business Services 
Manager, Holly Gould 

 
1.2 Pledge of Allegiance 
   
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This is the time set aside for public comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  
Please notify the Secretary in advance of the meeting if you wish to speak on a non-
hearing item. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
None. 
 
3. DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS 
 
3.1 Assign Committee Chair 
It was moved by Director Sear, seconded by Director Coleman, and unanimously 
carried to elect Director Dennis Coleman as Chair of the Budget & Finance Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 84 of 85

mailto:hgould@valley-sanitary.org


____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Committee Minutes September 1, 2020                                      2                            Approved:  

3.2 Determine Minute Type to be Used 
It was decided that Budget & Finance Committee would follow same format the District 
uses for the Board of Directors Meetings.  
 
3.3 Audit Update and Involvement  
Jeanette Juarez, Business Services Manager, gave a report to the committee on the 
District’s audit. She informed the committee that the auditors would be onsite 
September 2, 2020. Jeanette is confident that the auditors have everything they need 
from staff. The auditors will have their draft report done by the end of September, which 
will include any findings, and the final report by the end of October. This is the District’s 
fifth year with The Pun Group and will go out for Request for Proposals (RFP) for next 
year. Jeanette will keep the committee briefed on the progress of the audit. 
 
3.4 Sewer Rate Study 
Beverli Marshall, General Manager, gave the committee and update on the Sewer Rate 
Study. The board approved to award the contract to NBS. The biggest hurdle in the new 
study will be the classification study. Beverli asked how involved the committee would 
like to be in the study. Director Coleman stated that he would like to sit in on a work 
review meeting and be updated at certain milestones of the study. Beverli stated that 
NBS should have most of the study done by January 2021. 
 
4. FUTURE MEETING ITEMS 
 
Staff requested the committee’s involvement in the implementation of the new 
accounting software that will be happing this year. They will also be involved in setting 
policies in conjunction with the new software, the CAFR, and the budget. 
 
5. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 1:48 p.m. The 
next regular committee meeting will be held November 3, 2020. 

 
 
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
        Holly Gould, Clerk of the Board 
        Valley Sanitary District 

Page 85 of 85


	Agenda
	3.1. 3.1 Aug 25 2020 Meeting Minutes
	3.2. 3.2 Warrants for Aug 20 to Sep 2, 2020
	4.1. 4.1 Staff Report Desert ARC Janitorial Contract
	4.1. 4.1 Attachment A Desert Arc_Valley Sanitary District VSD
	4.1. 4.1 Attachment B VSD Janitorial Services RFP July 1 2020
	4.1. 4.1 Attachment C 2019 Staffing Analysis
	4.2. 4.2 Staff Report Slope Protection Project Award
	4.2. 4.2 Attachment A Desert Concepts Bid Package
	4.2. 4.2 Attachment B Contractors License Detail
	4.2. 4.2 Attachment C DIR Number Information
	4.3. 4.3 Staff Report Award of Contract Harris Inspection
	4.3. 4.3 Attachment A Proposal Inspection Services Indio Sewer lining_07312020
	5.1. 5.1 Staff Report General Manager Monthly Report July 2020
	5.1. 5.1 Attachment A Admin Services Report July 2020
	5.1. 5.1 Attachment B NPDES Report July 2020
	5.1. 5.1 Attachment C Development Services July
	5.1. 5.1 Attachment D Collection Services Report July
	6.1. 6.1 1 Sep 2020 Committee Meeting Minutes

